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02/13/2019 32–33 7981–8004 

62. Opposition to Videotape 
Deposition of Charla 
Severs, State v. Johnson, 
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02/13/2019 33 8005–8050 
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Laboratory Examination 
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65. Motion for Change of 
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District Court, Clark 
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C153154 (Nov. 29, 1999) 

02/13/2019 33 8166–8291 

66. Records from the 
California Youth 
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67. Jury Instructions (Guilt 
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C153154 (June 8, 2000) 

02/13/2019 34 
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68. Verdict Forms (Guilt 
Phase), State v. Johnson, 
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C153154 (June 9, 2000) 

02/13/2019 34 8497–8503 

69. Special Verdict, State v. 
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Clark County, Nevada 
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15, 2000) 

02/13/2019 34 8504–8506 

70. Affidavit of Kristina 
Wildeveld (June 23, 2000) 

02/13/2019 34 8507–8509 
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Circumstances, State v. 
Johnson, District Court, 
Clark County, Nevada 
Case No. C153154 (Apr. 6, 
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113. State’s Exhibit 148 – Photo 02/13/2019 38 9375–9377 
114. State’s Exhibit 151 – Photo 02/13/2019 38 9378–9380 
115. State’s Exhibit 180 – Photo 02/13/2019 38 9381–9384 
116. State’s Exhibit 181 – Photo 02/13/2019 38 9385–9388 
117. State’s Exhibit 216 - 
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02/13/2019 38 9389–9403 

118. State’s Exhibit 217 - 
Probation Officer’s 
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02/13/2019 38 9404–9420 
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119. State’s Exhibit 221 – Photo 02/13/2019 38 9421–9423 
120. State’s Exhibit 222 – Photo 02/13/2019 38 9424–9426 
121. State’s Exhibit 256 02/13/2019 38 9427–9490 
122. Las Vegas Metropolitan 

Police Dept. Crime Scene 
Report (Aug. 14, 1998) 

02/13/2019 38 9491–9499 

123. VCR at Terra Linda 02/13/2019 38 9500–9501 
124. VCR Remote Control 

Buying Guide 
02/13/2019 38 9502–9505 

125. Jury Instructions (Penalty 
Phase 3), State v. Johnson, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153154 (May 4, 2005) 

02/13/2019 38 9506–9519 

126. Motion to Bifurcate 
Penalty Phase, State v. 
Johnson, District Court, 
Clark County, Nevada 
Case No. C153154 (Apr. 
27, 2004) 

02/13/2019 38 9520–9525 

127. Motion to Reconsider 
Request to Bifurcate 
Penalty Phase, State v. 
Johnson, District Court, 
Clark County, Nevada 
Case No. C153154 (Apr. 
11, 2005) 

02/13/2019 38 9526–9532 

128. Special Verdicts (Penalty 
Phase 3), State v. Johnson, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153154 (Apr. 28, 2005) 

02/13/2019 38 9533–9544 

129. Verdict (Penalty Phase 3), 
State v. Johnson, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada Case No. C153154 
(May 5, 2005) 

02/13/2019 38 9545–9549 
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130. Declaration of Arthur Cain 

(Oct. 29, 2018) 
02/13/2019 38 9550–9552 

131. Declaration of Deborah 
White (Oct. 27, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9553–9555 

132. Declaration of Douglas 
McGhee (Oct. 28, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9556–9558 

133. Declaration of Elizabeth 
Blanding (Oct. 29, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9559–9560 

134. Declaration of Jesse 
Drumgole (Oct. 27, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9561–9562 

135. Declaration of Johnnisha 
Zamora (Oct. 28, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9563–9566 

136. Declaration of Johnny 
White (Oct. 26, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9567–9570 

137. Declaration of Keonna 
Bryant (Oct. 30, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9571–9573 

138. Declaration of Lolita 
Edwards (Oct. 30, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9574–9576 

139. Declaration of Loma White 
(Oct. 31, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9577–9579 

140. Declaration of Moises 
Zamora (Oct. 28, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9580–9582 

141. Declaration of Vonjelique 
Johnson (Oct. 28, 2018) 

02/13/2019 38 9583–9585 

142. Los Angeles Dept. of Child 
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Services_Redacted 

02/13/2019 38–39 9586–9831 

143. Psychological Evaluation of 
Donte Johnson by Myla H. 
Young, Ph.D. (June 6, 
2000) 

02/13/2019 39 9832–9841 

144. Psychological Evaluation of 
Eunice Cain (Apr. 25, 
1988) 

02/13/2019 39 9842–9845 
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145. Psychological Evaluation of 
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02/13/2019 39–40 9846–9862 
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02/13/2019 40 9863–9867 

147. School Records for 
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02/13/2019 40 9868–9872 

148.  High School Transcript for 
John White_Redacted 

02/13/2019 40 9873–9874 

149. School Record for John 
White_Redacted 

02/13/2019 40 9875–9878 

150. Certified Copy SSA 
Records_Eunice 
Cain_Redacted 

02/13/2019 40 9879–9957 

151. Declaration of Robin Pierce 
(Dec. 16, 2018) 

02/13/2019 40 9958–9961 

152. California Department of 
Corrections 
Records_Redacted (Apr. 25, 
2000) 

02/13/2019 40 
  

9962–10060 

153. Letter from Maxine Miller 
to Lisa Calandro re 
forensic lab report (Apr. 
13, 1999) 

02/13/2019 40 10061–10077 

154. Letter from Lisa Calandro 
Forensic Analytical to 
Maxine Miller (Apr. 20, 
1994) 

02/13/2019 40 10078–10080 

155. Memorandum re call with 
Richard Good (Apr. 29, 
1999) 

02/13/2019 40 10081–10082 

156. Letter from Maxine Miller 
to Berch Henry at Metro 
DNA Lab (May 7, 1999) 

02/13/2019 40 10083–10086 

157. Letter from Maxine Miller 
to Richard Good (May 10, 
1999) 

02/13/2019 40 10087–10092 
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158. Letter from Maxine Miller 

to Tom Wahl (May 26, 
1999) 

02/13/2019 40 10093–10098 

159. Stipulation and Order, 
State v. Johnson, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada Case No. C153154 
(June 8, 1999) 

02/13/2019 40 10099–10101 

160. Stipulation and Order, 
State v. Johnson, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada Case No. C153154, 
(June 14, 1999) 

02/13/2019 40 
 

10102–10105 

161. Letter from Maxine Miller 
to Larry Simms (July 12, 
1999) 

02/13/2019 40–41 10106–10110 
 

162. Stipulation and Order, 
State v. Johnson, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada Case No. C153154 
(Dec. 22, 1999) 

02/13/2019 41 10111–10113 

163. Letter from Maxine Miller 
to Nadine LNU re bullet 
fragments (Mar. 20, 2000) 

02/13/2019 41 10114–10118 

164. Memorandum (Dec. 10, 
1999) 

02/13/2019 41 10119–10121 

165. Forensic Analytical 
Bloodstain Pattern 
Interpretation (June 1, 
2000) 

02/13/2019 41 10122–10136 

166. Trial Transcript (Volume 
III), State v. Young, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada, Case No. 
C153461 (Sep. 7, 1999) 

02/13/2019 41 10137–10215 

167. Trial Transcript (Volume 
VII), State v. Young, 

02/13/2019 41 10216–10332 
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District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada, Case No. 
C153461 (Sep. 13, 1999) 

168. National Research Council, 
Strengthening Forensic 
Science in the United 
States: A Path Forward, 
Washington, D.C.: The 
National Academies Press 
(2009) 

02/13/2019 41 10333–10340 

169. Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Dept. Forensic Lab 
Report of Examination 
(Sep. 26, 1998) 

02/13/2019 41 
  

10341–10343 

170. Todd Armstrong juvenile 
records_Redacted 

02/13/2019 41–42 10344–10366 

171. Handwritten notes on 
Pants 

02/13/2019 42 10367–10368 

172. Declaration of Cassondrus 
Ragsdale (Dec. 16, 2018) 

02/13/2019 42 10369–10371 

173. Report of Dr. Kate 
Glywasky (Dec. 19, 2018) 

02/13/2019 42 10372–10375 

174. Curriculum Vitae of Dr. 
Kate Glywasky 

02/13/2019 42 10376–10384 

175. Report of Deborah Davis, 
Ph.D. (Dec. 18, 2018) 

02/13/2019 42 10385–10435 

176. Curriculum Vitae of 
Deborah Davis, Ph.D. 

02/13/2019 42 10436–10462 

177. Report of T. Paulette 
Sutton, Associate 
Professor, Clinical 
Laboratory Sciences (Dec. 
18, 2018) 

02/13/2019 42 10463–10472 

178. Curriculum Vitae of T. 
Paulette Sutton 

02/13/2019 42 10473–10486 
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179. Report of Matthew Marvin, 

Certified Latent Print 
Examiner (Dec. 18, 2018) 

02/13/2019 42 10487–10494 

180. Curriculum Vitae of 
Matthew Marvin 

02/13/2019 42 10495–10501 

181. Trial Transcript (Volume 
V), State v. Smith, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada Case No. C153624 
(June 16, 1999) 

02/13/2019 42–43 
 
 

10502–10614 

182. Trial Transcript (Volume 
VI), State v. Smith, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153624 (June 16, 1999) 

02/13/2019 43 10615–10785 

183. Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Dept. Interview of 
Tod Armstrong_Redacted 
(Aug. 17, 1998) 

02/13/2019 43 10786–10820 

184. Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Dept. Interview of 
Tod Armstrong _Redacted 
(Aug. 18, 1998) 

02/13/2019 43 10821–10839 

185. Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Dept. Interview of 
Charla Severs_Redacted 
(Aug. 18, 1998) 

02/13/2019 43–44 10840–10863 

186. Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Dept. Interview of 
Sikia Smith_Redacted 
(Aug. 17, 1998) 

02/13/2019 44 10864–10882 

187. Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Dept. Interview of 
Terrell Young_Redacted 
(Sep. 2, 1998) 

02/13/2019 44 10883–10911 

188. Declaration of Ashley 
Warren (Dec. 17, 2018) 

02/13/2019 44 10912–10915 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
189. Declaration of John Young 

(Dec. 10, 2018) 
02/13/2019 44 10916–10918 

190. Brief of Plaintiffs-
Appellants, Abdur’rahman 
v. Parker, Tennessee 
Supreme Court, Nashville 
Division, Case No. M2018-
10385-SC-RDO-CV 

02/13/2019 44–45 10919–11321 

191. Sandoz’ Inc.’s Motion for 
Leave Pursuant to NRAP 
29 to Participate as Amicus 
Curiae in Support of Real 
Parties in Interest, Nevada 
v. The Eighth Judicial 
Disrict Court of the State 
of Nevada, Nevada 
Supreme Court, Case No. 
76485 

02/13/2019 45 11322–11329 

192. Notice of Entry of Order, 
Dozier v. State of Nevada, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada, Case No. 
05C215039 

02/13/2019 45 11330–11350 

193. Declaration of Cassondrus 
Ragsdale (2018.12.18) 

02/13/2019 45 11351–11353 

194. Affidavit of David B. 
Waisel, State of Nevada, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Case No. 
05C215039 (Oct. 4, 2018) 

02/13/2019 45–46 
  

11354–11371 

195. Declaration of Hans 
Weding (Dec. 18, 2018) 

02/13/2019 46 11372–11375 

196. Trial Transcript (Volume 
IX), State v. Smith, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153624 (June 18, 1999) 

02/13/2019 46 11376–11505 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
197. Voluntary Statement of 

Luis Cabrera (August 14, 
1998) 

02/13/2019 46 11506–11507 

198. Voluntary Statement of 
Jeff Bates 
(handwritten)_Redacted 
(Aug. 14, 1998) 

02/13/2019 46 11508–11510 

199. Voluntary Statement of 
Jeff Bates_Redacted (Aug. 
14, 1998) 

02/13/2019 46 
 

11511–11517 

200. Presentence Investigation 
Report, State’s Exhibit 
236, State v. Young, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153461_Redacted (Sep. 
15, 1999) 

02/13/2019 46 11518–11531 

201. Presentence Investigation 
Report, State’s Exhibit 
184, State v. Smith, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153624_Redacted (Sep. 
18, 1998) 

02/13/2019 46 11532–11540 

202. School Record of Sikia 
Smith, Defendant’s Exhibit 
J, State v. Smith, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada (Case No. 
C153624) 

02/13/2019 46 11541–11542 

203. School Record of Sikia 
Smith, Defendant’s Exhibit 
K, State v. Smith, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada (Case No. 
C153624) 

02/13/2019 46 11543–11544 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
204. School Record of Sikia 

Smith, Defendant’s Exhibit 
L, State v. Smith, District 
Court, Clark County, 
Nevada (Case No. 
C153624) 

02/13/2019 46 11545–11546 

205. Competency Evaluation of 
Terrell Young by Greg 
Harder, Psy.D., Court’s 
Exhibit 2, State v. Young, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153461 (May 3, 2006) 

02/13/2019 46 11547–11550 

206. Competency Evaluation of 
Terrell Young by C. Philip 
Colosimo, Ph.D., Court’s 
Exhibit 3, State v. Young, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153461 (May 3, 2006) 

02/13/2019 46 11551–11555 

207. Motion and Notice of 
Motion in Limine to 
Preclude Evidence of Other 
Guns Weapons and 
Ammunition Not Used in 
the Crime, State v. 
Johnson, District Court, 
Clark County, Nevada 
Case No. C153154 (Oct. 19, 
1999) 

02/13/2019 46 11556–11570 

208. Declaration of Cassondrus 
Ragsdale (Dec. 19, 2018) 

02/13/2019 46 11571–11575 

209. Post –Evidentiary Hearing 
Supplemental Points and 
Authorities, Exhibit A: 
Affidavit of Theresa 
Knight, State v. Johnson, 

02/13/2019 46 11576–11577 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153154, June 5, 2005 

210. Post –Evidentiary Hearing 
Supplemental Points and 
Authorities, Exhibit B: 
Affidavit of Wilfredo 
Mercado, State v. Johnson, 
District Court, Clark 
County, Nevada Case No. 
C153154, June 22, 2005 

02/13/2019 46 11578–11579 

211. Genogram of Johnson 
Family Tree 

02/13/2019 46 11580–11581 

212. Motion in Limine 
Regarding Referring to 
Victims as “Boys”, State v. 
Johnson, District Court, 
Clark County, Nevada 
Case No. C153154 

02/13/2019 46 11582–11585 

213. Declaration of Schaumetta 
Minor, (Dec. 18, 2018) 

02/13/2019 46 11586–11589 

214. Declaration of Alzora 
Jackson (Feb. 11, 2019) 

 

02/13/2019 46 11590–11593 

Exhibits in Support of 
Petitioner’s Motion for Leave to 
Conduct Discovery 

12/13/2019 49 12197–12199 

1. Holloway v. Baldonado, 
No. A498609, Plaintiff’s 
Opposition to Motion for 
Summary Judgment, 
District Court of Clark 
County, Nevada, filed Aug. 
1, 2007 

12/13/2019 49 
 

12200–12227 

2. Handwritten letter from 
Charla Severs, dated Sep. 
27, 1998 

12/13/2019 49 12228–12229 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Exhibits in Support of Reply to 
State’s Response to Petition for 
Writ of Habeas Corpus 

12/13/2019 47 11837–11839 

215. Holloway v. Baldonado, 
No. A498609, Plaintiff’s 
Opposition to Motion for 
Summary Judgment, 
District Court of Clark 
County, Aug. 1, 2007 

12/13/2019 47–48 11840–11867 

216. Holloway v. Baldonado, 
No. A498609, Opposition to 
Motion for Summary 
Judgment Filed by 
Defendants Stewart Bell, 
David Roger, and Clark 
County, District Court of 
Clark County, filed Jan. 
16, 2008 

12/13/2019 48–49 11868–12111 

217. Letter from Charla Severs, 
dated Sep. 27, 1998 

12/13/2019 49 12112–12113 

218. Decision and Order, State 
of Nevada v. Johnson, Case 
No. C153154, District 
Court of Clark County, 
filed Apr. 18, 2000 

12/13/2019 49 12114–12120 

219. State’s Motion to 
Disqualify the Honorable 
Lee Gates, State of Nevada 
v. Johnson, Case No. 
C153154, District Court of 
Clark County, filed Apr. 4, 
2005 

12/13/2019 49 12121–12135 

220. Affidavit of the Honorable 
Lee A. Gates, State of 
Nevada v. Johnson, Case 
No. C153154, District 

12/13/2019 49 12136–12138 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Court of Clark County, 
filed Apr. 5, 2005 

221. Motion for a New Trial 
(Request for Evidentiary 
Hearing), State of Nevada 
v. Johnson, Case No. 
C153154, District Court of 
Clark County, filed June 
23, 2000 

12/13/2019 49 12139–12163 

222. Juror Questionnaire of 
John Young, State of 
Nevada v. Johnson, Case 
No. C153154, District 
Court of Clark County, 
dated May 24, 2000 

 

12/13/2019 49 16124–12186 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of 
Law and Order, Johnson v. 
Gittere, et al., Case No. A–19–
789336–W, Clark County 
District Court, Nevada 
 

10/08/2021 49 12352–12357 

Minute Order (denying 
Petitioner’s Post–Conviction 
Writ of Habeas Corpus, Motion 
for Discovery and Evidentiary 
Hearing), Johnson v. Gittere, et 
al., Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

05/15/2019 49 12264–12266 

Minutes of Motion to Vacate 
Briefing Schedule and Strike 
Habeas Petition 
 

07/09/2019 47 11710 

Motion and Notice of Motion for 
Evidentiary Hearing, Johnson v. 

12/13/2019 49 12231–12241 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Gittere, et al., Case No. A–19–
789336–W, Clark County 
District Court, Nevada 
 
Motion and Notice to Conduct 
Discovery, Johnson v. Gittere, et 
al., Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

12/13/2019 49 12187–12196 

Motion for Leave to File Under 
Seal and Notice of Motion 
 

02/15/2019  11600–11602 

Motion in Limine to Prohibit 
Any References to the First 
Phase as the “Guilt Phase” 
 

11/29/1999 2 302–304 

Motion to Vacate Briefing 
Schedule and Strike Habeas 
Petition, Johnson v. Gittere, et 
al., Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

05/16/2019 46–47 11609–11612 

Motion to Vacate Briefing 
Schedule and Strike Habeas 
Petition, Johnson v. Gittere, et 
al., Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

05/23/2019 47 11621–11624 

Motion to Withdraw Request to 
Strike Petition and to Withdraw 
Request for Petition to be 
Stricken as Not Properly Before 
the Court), Johnson v. Gittere, 
et al., Case No. A–19–789336–

06/26/2019 47 11708–11709 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
W, Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 
Notice of Appeal, Johnson v. 
Gittere, et al., Case No. A–19–
789336–W, Clark County 
District Court, Nevada 

11/10/2021 50 12366–12368 

Notice of Entry of Findings of 
Fact, Conclusions of Law and 
Order, Johnson v. Gittere, et al., 
Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

10/11/2021 49–50 12358–12364 

Notice of Hearing (on Discovery 
Motion), Johnson v. Gittere, et 
al., Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

12/13/2019 49 12330 

Notice of Objections to Proposed 
Order, Johnson v. Gittere, et al., 
Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

02/02/2021 49 12267–12351 

Notice of Supplemental Exhibit 
223, Johnson v. Gittere, et al., 
Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 

02/11/2019 49 11242–12244 

223. Declaration of Dayvid J. 
Figler, dated Feb. 10, 2020 

 

02/11/2019 49 12245–12247 

Opposition to Defendants’ 
Motion in Limine to Prohibit 

12/02/1999 2 305–306 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Any References to the First 
Phase as the “Guilt Phase” 
 
Opposition to Motion in Limine 
to Preclude Evidence of Other 
Guns, Weapons and 
Ammunition Not Used in the 
Crime 
 

11/04/1999 2 283–292 

Opposition to Motion to Vacate 
Briefing Schedule and Strike 
Habeas Petition, Johnson v. 
Gittere, et al., Case No. A–19–
789336–W, Clark County 
District Court, Nevada 
 

05/28/2019 47 11625–11628 

Petition for Writ of Habeas 
Corpus, Johnson v. Gittere, et 
al., Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 

02/13/2019 24–25 5752–6129 

Post–Evidentiary Hearing 
Supplemental Points and 
Authorities 
 

06/22/2005 22 5472–5491 

Reply to Opposition to Motion to 
Vacate Briefing Schedule and 
Strike Habeas Petition 
 

06/20/2019 47 11705–11707 

Reply to State’s Response to 
Petition for Writ of Habeas 
Corpus 
 

12/13/2019 47 
 

11718–11836 

State’s Response to Defendant’s 
Petition for Writ of Habeas 
Corpus (Post–Conviction), 

05/29/2019 47 11629–11704 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Johnson v. Gittere, et al., Case 
No. A–19–789336–W, Clark 
County District Court, Nevada 
 
Stipulation and Order to Modify 
Briefing Schedule, Johnson v. 
Gittere, et al., Case No. A–19–
789336–W, Clark County 
District Court, Nevada 
 

09/30/2019 47 11711–11714 

Stipulation and Order to Modify 
Briefing Schedule, Johnson v. 
Gittere, et al., Case No. A–19–
789336–W, Clark County 
District Court, Nevada 
 

11/22/2019 47 11715–11717 

Transcript of All Defendant’s 
Pending Motions 
 

03/02/2000 2 416–430 

Transcript of Argument to 
Admit Evidence of Aggravating 
Circumstances 
 

05/03/2004 12 2904–2958 

Transcript of Argument:  
Petition for Writ of Habeas 
Corpus (All Issues Raised in the 
Petition and Supplement) 
 

12/01/2011 22–23 5498–5569 

Transcript of Arguments 
 

04/28/2004 12 2870–2903 

Transcript of Decision:  
Procedural Bar and Argument:  
Petition for Writ of Habeas 
Corpus 
 

07/20/2011 22 5492–5497 

Transcript of Defendant’s 
Motion for Leave to File Under 

02/25/2019 46 11594–11599 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Seal, Johnson v. Gittere, et al., 
Case No. A–19–789336–W, 
Clark County District Court, 
Nevada 
 
Transcript of Defendant’s 
Motion to Reveal the Identity of 
Informants and Reveal Any 
Benefits, Deals, Promises or 
Inducements; Defendant’s 
Motion to Compel Disclosure of 
Existence and Substance of 
Expectations, or Actual Receipt 
of Benefits or Preferential 
Treatment for Cooperation with 
Prosecution; Defendant’s Motion 
to Compel the Production of Any 
and All Statements of 
Defendant; Defendant’s Reply to 
Opposition to Motion in Limine 
to Preclude Evidence of Other 
Guns, Weapons, Ammunition; 
Defendant’s Motion in Limine to 
Preclude Evidence of Witness 
Intimidation 
 

11/18/1999 2 293–301 

Transcript of Evidentiary 
Hearing 
 

05/17/2004 12 2959–2989 

Transcript of Evidentiary 
Hearing 
 

06/14/2005 22 5396–5471 

Transcript of Evidentiary 
Hearing 
 

04/04/2013 23 5570–5673 

Transcript of Evidentiary 
Hearing 

04/11/2013 23 5674–5677 



30 
 

DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
 
Transcript of Evidentiary 
Hearing 
 

06/21/2013 23 5678–5748 

Transcript of Evidentiary 
Hearing 
 

09/18/2013 23–24 5749–5751 

Transcript of Excerpted 
Testimony of Termaine Anthony 
Lytle 
 

05/17/2004 12 2990–2992 

Transcript of Jury Trial – Day 1 
(Volume I) 
 

06/05/2000 2–4 431–809 

Transcript of Jury Trial – Day 2 
(Volume II) 
 

06/06/2000 4–5 810–1116 

Transcript of Jury Trial – Day 3 
(Volume III) 
 

06/07/2000 5–7 1117–1513 

Transcript of Jury Trial – Day 4 
(Volume IV) 
 

06/08/2000 7–8 1514–1770 

Transcript of Jury Trial – Day 5 
(Volume V) 
 

06/09/2000 8 1771–1179 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 1 (Volume I) AM 
 

04/19/2005 12–13 2993–3018 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 1 (Volume I) PM 
 

4/19/20051 
 

13 3019–3176 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 10 (Volume X) 
 

05/02/2005 20–21 4791–5065 

 
1 This transcript was not filed with the District Court nor is it under seal. 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 10 (Volume X) – 
Exhibits 
 

05/02/2005 21 5066–5069 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 11 (Volume XI) 
 

05/03/2005 21–22 5070–5266 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 12 (Volume XII) 
 

05/04/2005 22 5267–5379 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 12 (Volume XII) – 
Deliberations 
 

05/04/2005 22 5380–5383 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 13 (Volume XIII)  
 

05/05/2005 22 5384–5395 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 2 (Volume I) AM 
 

04/20/2005 13 3177–3201 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 2 (Volume II) PM 
 

04/20/2005 13–14 3202–3281 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 3 (Volume III) PM 
 

04/21/2005 14–15 3349–3673 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 3 (Volume III–A) 
AM 
 

04/21/2005 14 3282–3348 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 4 (Volume IV) AM 
– Amended Cover Page 
 

04/22/2005 16 3790–3791 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 4 (Volume IV) PM 
 

04/22/2005 15–16 3674–3789 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 4 (Volume IV–B) 
 

04/22/2005 16 3792–3818 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 5 (Volume V) PM 
 

04/25/2005 16 3859–3981 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 5 (Volume V–A) 
 

04/25/2005 16 3819–3858 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 6 (Volume VI) PM 
 

04/26/2005 17–18 4103–4304 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 6 (Volume VI–A) 
PM 
 

04/26/2005 16–17 3982–4102 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 7 (Volume VII– 
PM) 
 

04/27/2005 18 4382–4477 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 7 (Volume VII–A) 
 

04/27/2005 18 4305–4381 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 8 (Volume VIII–
C) 
 

04/28/2005 18–19 4478–4543 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty – Day 9 (Volume IX) 
 

04/29/2005 19–20 4544–4790 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty Phase – Day 1 (Volume 
I) AM 
 

06/13/2000 8 1780–1908 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty Phase – Day 1 (Volume 
II) PM 

06/13/2000 8–9 1909–2068 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
 
Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty Phase – Day 2 (Volume 
III) 
 

06/14/2000 9–10 2069-2379 

Transcript of Jury Trial – 
Penalty Phase – Day 3 (Volume 
IV) 
 

06/16/2000 10 2380–2470 

Transcript of Material Witness 
Charla Severs’ Motion for Own 
Recognizance Release 
 

01/18/2000 2 414–415 

Transcript of Motion for a New 
Trial 
 

07/13/2000 10 2471–2475 

Transcript of Petition for Writ of 
Habeas Corpus and Setting of 1. 
Motion for Leave and 2. Motion 
for Evidentiary Hearing, 
Johnson v. Gittere, et al., Case 
No. A–19–789336–W, Clark 
County District Court, Nevada 
 

02/13/2020 49 12249–12263 

Transcript of Preliminary 
Hearing 
 

10/12/1999 2 260–273 

Transcript of State’s Motion to 
Permit DNA Testing 
 

09/02/1999 2 252 – 254 

Transcript of State’s Motion to 
Videotape the Deposition of 
Charla Severs 
 

10/11/1999 2 255–259 

Transcript of Status Check:  
Filing of All Motions 
(Defendant’s Motion to Reveal 

10/21/1999 2 274–282 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
the Identity of Informants and 
Reveal Any Benefits, Deals, 
Promises or Inducements; 
Defendant’s Motion to Compel 
Disclosure of Existence and 
Substance of Expectations, or 
Actual Receipt of Benefits or 
Preferential Treatment for 
Cooperation with Prosecution; 
Defendant’s Motion to Compel 
the Production of Any and All 
Statements of Defendant; State’s 
Motion to Videotape the 
Deposition of Charla Severs; 
Defendant’s Motion in Limine to 
Preclude Evidence of Other 
Crimes; Defendant’s Motion to 
Reveal the Identity of 
Informants and Reveal any 
Benefits, Deals’ Defendant’s 
Motion to Compel the 
Production of any and all 
Statements of the Defendant 
 
Transcript of the Grand Jury, 
State v. Johnson, Case No. 
98C153154, Clark County 
District Court, Nevada 
 

09/01/1998 1–2 001–251 

Transcript of Three Judge Panel 
– Penalty Phase – Day 1 
(Volume I) 
 

07/24/2000 10–11 2476–2713 

Transcript of Three Judge Panel 
– Penalty Phase – Day 2 and 
Verdict (Volume II) 
 

07/26/2000 11–12 2714–2853 
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DOCUMENT DATE VOLUME PAGE(S) 
Transcript Re:  Defendant’s 
Motions 
 

01/06/2000 2 307–413 

Verdict Forms – Three Judge 
Panel 
 

7/26/2000 12 2854–2869 
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 I hereby certify that on May 27, 2022, I electronically filed the 

foregoing Appendix with the Nevada Supreme Court by using the 

appellate electronic filing system.  The following participants in the 

case will be served by the electronic filing system:     

Alexander G. Chen 
Chief Deputy District Attorney 
Clark County District Attorney’s Office 
 
 
 
     /s/ Celina Moore      
     Celina Moore                                                    
     An employee of the Federal  
     Public Defender’s Office 
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AMENABILITY DETERMINATION FINDINGS (Cont'd) 
WHITE, John Lee, D4787 

The defendant has been described as an impulsive, impressionable, 
immature, and easily manipulated young man who would be vulnerable 
to the influences of older and more criminally sophisticated, as 
well as aggressive, individuals. 

In view of the above, there is a reasonable possibility that the 
defendant's criminal behavior would be exacerbated more by the 
other disposition alternatives available to the court. 

FINDING 

John Lee White is amenable to the treatment and training offered by 
the California Youth Authority. 

Date: December 28, 1993 
;-,.. 

For the Youth Authority: 

,,,-.... 
' ~ -
-. .J.a"~ Krai~, 

Supervising 

jar 

LCSW 
Casework Specialist I 

68
AA08360



!~ITRODUCTION 

J~hn Lee White is a sixteen year-old African-American male 
donvicted in Los Angeles County Superior Court of charges of second 
degree robbery/principal armed with a shotgun. John is an unfit 
J1tv-:-n1le. H·e has been referred to the California Youth Authority 
for a diagnostic evaluation to determine his amenability to 
training and treatment services offered by the California Youth 
Authority. 

;._ .~cording to the accompanying probation report, John and 
~o-offenders entered the Sanfed Bank and committed an 
robbel."y. 

three 
armed 

John has a prior record of arrests for armed robbery, possession of 
d weapon on school grounds, and unlawful taking of a motor vehicle. 
ff.,:, has had the benefit of probation supervision in the community 
and one previous commitment to junior probation camp. John is an 
admitted gang member (62 Brim Bloods Gang). John became a gang 
membec at age fourteen. His moniker is "Deko." John's gang 
a-ct.ivity has interfered with his ability to attend school on a 
r•gular basis. He has become increasingly dependent on his gang 
fo?:" :nos t of his social activities. According to John, the bank 
:o~becy was arranged by an older fellow gang member who supplied 
~he boys with a rented getaway vehicle and a weapon. John stated 
h-: -:ommi t ted the bank robbery even though he knew it was wrong 
'. ) -.cau3~ he did not want to get a "jacket" as a coward with the 
other gang members. Her also stated that, if he had declined to go 
~lcng with the plan to rob the bank, he. would have been punished by 
~:s f~llow gang members. 

John'3 previous performance on a grant of juvenile probation was 
c·msid~red marginal to unsatisfactory, noting that he was not 
ar ~ending school, continued to have contact with law enforcement, 
anJ was out of control at home. 

"',:,hn di;.e-s not appear to have benefited from efforts on his behalf 
~Y th~ courts and the probation department . 

.;0<'.:IAL HISTORY 

?_A~-f !'. ~.·; 3ACKGROUND 

J~hn is one of three children born to his mother. John's natural 
pu·~nts were never married and John's natural father, Michael 
~~it~n , is deceased. John stated he last saw his natural father 
~h~~ ~e was six years old. John and his two sisters (ages fourteen 
a~d 1ine) have resided with his maternal grandmother and 
grandfather for most of their lives. According to John, his mother 
1~ a cocaine addict who cannot care for herself or her children and 
·.-,ho ~a.:; a history of arrests. John's grandmother has stated that 
3;1e cannot control John at home, noting that he is difficult and 

'iiH !T!:, John Lee D4787 SRCC SOCIAL HISTORY 
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~ ~1operative and that he will not attend school. John's 
g::-i'\ndmother is aware that John is a gang member, al though she 
cannot confiym or deny that he used narcotics. (John admitted that 
:; .:. ti ::- • d marijuana on a daily basis.) John denied a history of 
abus-a or neglect in his grandparents' home. He believes his 
Jra ndmother wi 11 al 1 ow him to i:-eturn to her home when he is 
referred to parole. However, John stated that his,.grandparents are 
not visiting him during the time he is incarcerated and he doubts 
~e will have any contact with them throughout his custody time. 

?E:~R ASSi)CIATES 

loh1, has admitted to membership in the "62 Brims ( Bl cods) Gang." 
He ;1a~ been a gang member since age fourteen. John is heavily 
rlep~ndent upon his gang. His gang has become a sort of eKtended 
family. John's loyalty to his gang exceeds his obligation to obey 
the law or to abide by his grandparents' efforts to supervise or 
s~ru~ture his behavior. In the instant offense, John would rather 
ha v~ ~isked d~ath or jail than to have appeared cowardly to his 
f~llc4 ~ang members. 

COMMUNITY BACKGROUND 

F~,~ords ref 1 ect that John was born and raised in Los Angel es, 
California. His grandparents live in an inner-city neighborhood 
~ot~d fo( high r~tes of crime, gang activity, and drug trafficking. 

~C~DEM!C EDUCATION 

? ; _1J.,ation :: o:1cot"ds indicate that John last completed the ninth 
;race. John admitted to chronic truancy. He claimed to that 
rn~s~ure from rival gang members have interfered with his ability 
~.:: at tend school on a regular basis. John's grandmother has 
: ~.licated that John refused to attend school. 

?.c~dem1c testing at the Southern Reception Center and Clinic 
r~v•~ls ~hat John is reading at the 6.4 grade-level, performing 
inath at the 4. 7 grade-level, and understanding language at the 3.3 
J~ade-level, for an overall total battery for basic academic skills 
-~uivalent to a 4.9 grade-level. 

John ~enied he has ever been a special education student. 
Ap~~rentl 1 , his poor academic showing is the result of infrequent 
~~ : ;nd?.nce in a regular school program. 
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:1p CAT I ON AL EDU CAT I ON /WORK EXP ER I ENCE 

1r- ·. ·1's only .work experience has been selling candy. He has yet to. 
~t t vocational goals for himself. His response to the vocational 
i ~t e ~est and aptitude assessment reveals an interest in mechanics. 
I~ whatever program John is eventually placed, he would benefit 
from participation in work experience/vocational training and 
~rn p l oyability skills training. 

ALC0HOL/DRUG USE AND ABUSE 

J ~~n aJmit t ed to the use of mar1Juana on a daily basis. Probation 
records also indicate that John drank alcohol occasionally. John 
s~~~~d he b~lieves he was able to conceal his drug use from his 
~~a~dmother by using eye drops so she would not observe his eyes 
i.t -:> .i. n ,;; red. He denied he was under the influence of drugs or 
atc~hol when he committed the instant offense. 

::,.,;·,n w;;is initial 1 y arrested on February 20, 1992 by the Los Angel es 
Prl1~e Department on charges of armed robbery. The petition was 
s ~~ ta1n~~ on February 20, 1992 and John was ordered to the 
~,ro:.:>.atlon department's camp community placement program. According 
t.ci .;'c:1n, he spent seven months in Camp Kil pa trick. Probation 
re-:::ord;; indicate. that John performed sa~isfactorily in the camp 
,:._;,illnt1 r. - -.y placement · program. However ; once he was released back 
i;-, t o t,'. A community, John was not attending school; he continued to 
:. -;.·1~ ; .. 1!1ta.cts w: t.h law enforcement; he continued to associate with 
l~ng members; and he continued to defy his grandparents' efforts to 
,PlP r.e l vise him. 

t•n Jam ,:;1r1 4, 1993, John was arrested by the Los Angeles Police 
::~part:.m~nt ~nd charged with being in possession of a weapon on 
~u h~ol grounds. John claimed this was a case of mistaken identity 
~:, :1 tr.; t he was not in possession of a weapon. 

C·n ~pdl 10, 1993, John was arrested and charged with reckless 
~ ~t v1ng and unlawful taking of a motor vehicle. John's story is 
t :1c1· .ct : riend of his let him drive a stolen car. John denied he 
k ~ ~ ~ t~~ vehi~le was stolen. 
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Fl 1m 1: h~ records, it appears that John's criminal activity is 
i,,.::;:-1:'asing in frequency and severity. Camp community placement and 
h vMe on probation have proven ineffective in modifying his 
·1~havior. The instant offense is extremely serious. The victims 
~ere severely traumatized and it is a matter of pure luck that no 
on~ ~as injured. John does not appear to have any guilt, concern, 
or c.:.morse regarding his behavior. In fact, he claimed that, 
ai~hcugh he knew robbing banks was wrong, he did not consider it 

SELF ?ERCEPTIONS 

John lioes not regard himself as a danger to the community. He does 
not believe he is as seriously delinquent as his record would 
indicate. According to John, he did not believe participating in 
a bank robbery was a "serious" crime and, furthermore, he believed 
h~ ~nd his co-offenders would be successful in getting away. He 
t·~lated that he went along with the robbery because he did not want 
the other gang members to think he was a coward. He acknowledged 
th~t he gave no thought to the possibility that the victims might 
b~ ir,JUl."Pd ._,r traumatized or that he himself may have been injured 
dut"ing the arrest pt"ocedure. John believes that an appropriate 
d1,:;pu.'='ition in his case would be commitment to the California Youth 
Authority. He believes he would benefit from participation in a 
California Youth A~thority program of continuing education, 
:: :-,un.;~l in;,-, and work experience or vocation?l training. John 
~ -i1~i~s that what he needs mo~t to turn his life around is to be 
-:.1i.. •1i::!,~ "another chance." 

·_·_t T!~T.CAL IMPRESSIONS 

In t he ~linical interview, John Lee White was polite, cooperative, 
,md :: ~spectful. He is a thin, small young man who appears to be 
e•ri?.n :i·o1.mger r.han his stated chronological age of sixteen. John is 
-:rn inarticulate, quiet, and shy-appearing individual who 
,ii;iinon~trat~s marked immaturity. John does not impress as highly 
s~phi3ticated or hardcore in a criminal sense. P.ather, he 
in.9.~5s~s as a careless, naive, passive, and easily led young man. 
:1.;-:-d l ~'3.S to -:,ay, John's judgment is extremely poor. John's 
imm•turity , poor judgment, and dependence upon his gang have 
•: ombin~d to make him a dangerous individual in the community. He 
1ces not appear to understand or appreciate the serious nature of 
:he r harges against him. John acknowledges that he knew what he 
· : 1'3 J ~: n? W3S wrong, but that he went along anyway because he did 
not ~3n• t) disappoint his co-offenders. 
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,)din's pattern of behavior is cor;unon to many delinquent youths. 
J , i nciding with the onset of adolescence, John joined a youth gang, 
~- J3n to ditch school and defy authority, and involved himself in 
.e~~at~d vi"olations of the rights and property of other;;. 
~ ~L~tion supervision in the community and referral to the 
probation department's camp community placement program have proved 
1nPff~ctive. John appears to be content to drift aimlessly through 
lit~ in a hedonistic fashion seizing whatever opportunity comes up, 
1n ~luding criminal activity, with no thought of the consequences. 
H~ has made little to no effort to obtain job skills or to prepare 
hi·n;:-.Plf to live independently as an adult. John's immaturity and 
~eed t0r approval from older gang members have led directly to his 
1nvoivement in the instant offense . 

. J,::;hn does not appear to be an appropriate candidate for commitment 
t, 5 t3t• prison. He is, after all, only sixteen years old. There 
h-:1.1 -~ been minimal prior rehabilitative efforts. John's small 
:.: .. :t•: ure, immacurity, and passive nature would make him a vulnerable 
r.arg~t for older, more hardcore inmates in a state prison setting. 

~Lven the current Superior Court charges, California Youth 
Aut-.ho;· i ty jurisdiction over John's case would extend to age 
t:, -- n i .:· -fivt:!. John appears to be capable of materially benefiting 
fro 11 ~~lifocn1a Youth Authority programs of continuing education, 
cG ::n ;;;:.! ::.. og, and participation in work experience/vocational 
t ra1. :,ing. Cammi tment to the California Youth Aut~ori ty, as opposed 
: o u:)•.131.ng in the California Youth Authority pursuant to Section 
1-3:.s t c) WIC, would require John to appear before the Youthful 
i tf~ ~ier P3role Board on an annual basis to assess his progress in 
f.ogram and to assess his readiness for parole. Sufficient time 
~~n1<"1ins t.n the jurisdiction and confinement time available to 
eff~~t needed attitudinal and behavioral changes. 

~dt ~: December 20, 1993 

Prepared 
Joe Kraics, LCSW, By: 
Supv. Casework Specialist I 

t-1';-!t 'i'~ . ,iohn Lee 04787 SRCC 

da. /J ~ ··-~ 1 , 'tt~~.r~bdu£.L__' 
Diane Lubeck , LCSW / -
Parole Agent I 
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PSYCHIATRIC EVALUATION 
I 

REASON FOR REFERRAL 

Th1s evaluation is part of a court-ordered 90-day diagnostic study. Defendant 
was informed of my identity and the purpose of the interview. He was. 
furthermore, told that the information he provided me might be used in the 
report. and could have significant bearing on the disposition of his case. 

PRIOR PSYCHIATRIC/PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS 

No prior psychiatric evaluation was recorded in the file. 

METHOD OF EVALUATION 

One-hour clinical interview with the defendant and review of records in file, 
including the Probation Officer 1 s Report. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Family and background information are detailed in the social history (q.v.). 
Briefly, according to the defendant, he was born and raised in the Los 
Angeles area. He is the oldest of three children. He has two younger 
sisters, ages 11 and 14. · The defendant stated that his parents separated when 
he was 7 years old. He said that presently he has no contact with his mother 
or father, and does not know.where they are living. Accord-ing to the ·referral 
documents, his mother lost custody of' the minor, due to her drug usage (rock 
cocaine). 

At the time of hfs arrest, he said that he was 1 iving with his grandmother, 
grandfather, and two younger siblings. He said that his grandfather is a 
retired security guard. When asked about conflicts with his grandparents, he 
said that problems at home relate to his not going to school, and staying out 
with gang members from 24 hours up to three days. His grandmother had stated 
that she •does not have any control over him. He is difficult and 
uncooperative at home. He will not attend school." She had also stated that 
she was aware that the defendant is a gang member. 

According to the defendant, he completed the 9th grade while in camp. He said 
that he was not attending school at the time of his arrest 11 because I had too 
many enemies (gang related) •11 He said that he had been expelled from school 
in the 8th grade for truancy. He was not employed and ·has no work history. 
Medical history is unremarkable, except for bronchial asthma since early 
childhood for which he is taking Theodor, and some residual effects of a 
fractured ankle sustained when he was 9 or 10 years old. 

When asked about the use of drugs or a le oho 1, he stated that he 11 tried beer 
last year--didn't like it. Was using marijuana for 6 or 7 inonths, about 3 
times a week.• According to the information in the Fitness Report, he had told 
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, 
the Probation Officer that he began smoking marijuana when he was 15 years old 
and uses marijuana approximately 4 times a week. When asked about 
gang- related activity, he stated that he was in a •Bloods gang" for two years 
prior to his arrest, adding that he was "jumped in, 11 when he was 14 years 
old . He described it as a "very big gang." When asked about gang activities, 
he replied, "Don't know. 11 He said that his gang moniker is "Deko. 11 When 
asked what his moniker means, he also replied, "[ don't know." 

When asked about prior offenses, the minor said that he had only one prior 
offense, when he was 15 years old, for robbery, for which he went to camp for 
several months. According to his juvenile record, the minor has had three 
prior offenses. He was arrested when he was 14 years old for armed robbery, 
(vehicle theft) for which he was ordered to CCP. When he was 15 years old, he 
was again arrested for having a handgun on probation and possession of a 
weapon at school for which he was also ordered to CCP. About 3 months later 
(about 4 months prior to the instant offense), he was arrested for reek less 
drt~ing and taking a vehicle without owner•s consent. 

The current offense occurred when the defendant was 16 years old. He was 
charged with armed robbery involving the use of a shotgun. According to the 
Probation Officer's Report submitted B-19-93, the defendant and three 
accomplices entered Cen-Fed Bank . . . armed with a semi-automatic handgun and a 
sawed-off shotgun at about l :40 p.m. , and announced: "This is a robbery. 
Everyone get down! 11 When asked about the circumstances of the bank robbery, 
he replied that it was not gang· related, stating, "I robbed a · bank--don ' t want 
to talk about 1t because I want to forget about it.• 

MENTAL STATUS EXAMINATION 

The defendant 1s a 16-year-old Black male of short stature and slight build. 
He 1s about 5 feet. 6 inches tall, and weighs approximately 125 pounds. He 
has no not1ceable tattoos. He was dressed in institutional garb, neatly 
groomed, and appeared - to maintain good personal hygiene. He showed no unusual 
mannerisms or expressions . His attitude toward the interviewer was passively 
compliant and courteous. Throughout the interview, he was calm, pleasant, and 
attentive . However, he declined to discuss matters pertaining to himself, 
gang-involved activities, or the present offense. He appeared to be in no 
apparent distress. He was alert and fully oriented for time, place, and 
person . There was no evidence of memory impairment or other signs of 
organicity. His speech was clear, and verbal responses were coherent and 
relevant to the subject matter. Cognitively, he appeared to be functioning 
within the low-average intellectual range, based upon vocabulary and verbal 
responses . Thought content was negative for psychotic or del us iona l 
material. Thought processes were organized and goal-directed . He had 
sufficient insight into his present personal and legal problems. He 
demonstrated a correct understanding of the sentencing process, as well as the 
the purpo$e of the 90-day evaluation, stating that he 11 took a deal because 
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it was a good deal for 4 years, instead of a lot more time. Discrepancies 
between informat•ion elicited from the defendant and that in the referral 
documents, suggested his responses may be of questionable validity. 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

There are no s1gns of psychosis or impaired mental functioning on rnental 
status examination. 

The minor was on probation for robbery at the time of his present arrest . He 
had been released from camp about 11 months prior to the instant offense. He 
had been a member of a criminal street gang since 14 years of age. His 
juvenile record indicates a pattern of criminal behavior, starting at age 14, 
to the time of the instant offense. He had been ordered to CCP for two prior 
offenses. Performance under probation supervision was described as marginal 
to unsatisfactory, and he continued to have adverse contact with law 
enfprcement, and continued to participate in gang activity. In the present 
offense, the investigating officer stated that the minor "had not displayed 
any remorse.• According to the Probation Officer's Fitness Report 
evaluation: "Criminal behavior has continued to escalate in seriousness. 
(Defendant) does not have any respect for authority and/or adults, and 
rehabilitative efforts, CCP, and HOP have been ineffective." 

DIAGNOSIS (PER DSM-III-R CRITERIA) 

Axi~ I: l) 312 . 20 Conduct disorder, group type 
Severity: severe, with strong antisocial traits 

2) 305.20 Cannabis abuse, in incarceration remission 

Axis II: 

Axis II I: 

Developing antisocial personality disorder 

No contributing Axis III diagnosis 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

At the present time, the minor states that he is "going to stop gangbanging 
because of the trouble you get into with people you know." He states that. he 
hopes that he can continue school while incarcerated at CYA, and then continue 
with college after he is released . He said that he hopes to become a lawyer 
or a probation officer •because it's easy money." 

ln summary, although the minor's past history is inconsistent with interest in 
educational or vocational pursuits, he may, at this t ime, benefit from 
education and vocational programs at the Youth Authority, as well as avoiding 
the negative influence of older, hardcore criminals in an alternate facHity 
at this juncture. 
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Dad! Dictated: 

Date Typed: 

Dictated bfi.._ 

Reviewed by: 

5906t 

WHITE, John 

December 28, 1993 

December 28, 1993 

-4-

2Z~zr,4 ~~ ~ 
Harold H. Kates, M.D., siisychiatrist 
Oiplomate, American Board of Psychiatry & Neurology 

S aron Rose Blosl, LCSW, 
upervising Casework Specialist II 
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SUBMIT TO PERIODIC ANTt·NARCOTlC Tl!ITS/AI.COHOL Tl!ITS AS OAECTl!D BY THE PAOBATION omcEA OR CfflEA PEAC! ~ { ' 
HAVE NO BLANK CHECKS IN POSSESSION; NOT 'MUTE NlY PORTION OF ANY CHECKS: AND, NOT HM; BANK NXOMr IJP0tt.WHCH· :\: i• 
'l'OU IMV DAM CHECKS. NOT USE OR POSSESS OR f.PPl.Y FOR ANY CREOfT OR ATM CARO. • ' ·,; ___ •.• , l'l :e:.•. 

10 • NOT ASSOCIAff WITH/STAY NI/AV FROM 1 ' · • , , ~ , • 

I 1 • -COOPERATI: 'MTHPROBATION OFl'lCER IN A PLAN FOR~..,.,......------------------------------•~•• 

:! •• :~~A'::DO~~~~~:::~~~~=: AS APPACMD BY PAOMOON~R " ' •·~ ''fJ, '. 
1, 0 KEEP PROBATION OFFICER ADVISED OF YOUR RESIDENCE AT AU. TIMES. ·• ;•· • .• {,·,:~.'.' 
15 0 SURRENDER DRIVER'S LICENSE TO CLERK OF COURT 10 Be RETURNED TO DEPARNENf OF M0T0R VEHIQ.!8. '. .. J~_.!• ... , 
16 0 NOT DRIVE A MOlOR VEHICLE UNLESS UWF\A.lY LICENSED AND IN~O. J ., ~ , , • 
17 0 NOT CINN, USE OR POSSESS Atl'f DANGEROUS OR DEAOLV W£AP0N& . . '(, ~ ~ 
18 0 SUBMIT YOUR PERSON ANO ~RTY UNDER 'l'OUR CONm<X. TO SEARCH OR sem.mE /iT IAH'I TM! OF THl!,flM OR NIIJHT 111V 

ANY PROBATION OFFICER OR cmleA PEACE OFFICEJ\ WITH OR wrTHOUT A YiMRANT OR PA08A8U: CAIJ8e. • , 
19 0 OBEY AU.. UWS. 08EV AU. ORDERS. RlA.ES ANO RE0\1-ATIONS OF THE l'A08Al10N DEfMTMENf AND OF THE COURT. 
20 • U!ll: ONLY VOUR mue NAME. STATED TO BE .-.;_; •.. • 
21 0 ·· REPORT TO PROBATION OFFICER UPONML!AS--E-FJI_O_M_CU_STO_OD __ Y/wmtl----,11.,..._-_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ -_ --_ -_ -_ -_ -:_ -_ -_ -_-_-_ -: .. -.. -_-_ -_-_ -,:_ -..... _._ ____ -_ ---- · 

22 • 1F VOU LE.WE THE COUNTRY, 00 NOT REENTER THE UNITED 8TAT!8 IUEC3AL1.V. If' 'l'0U 00 RETURN. A£POAT TD THE PAOl!IATION·· 
, : OFFICERv.mtN ~·. •. ANOFRESENT~WHICHPACM!8~~A'1)E~DnnHLHAU.Y. ,-e .• . ._• 

DEF!:NOANT GIVEN TOTAL CREDIT Fourez::DAva IN CUST00V I 11'1. ~ CUST0DV. AM,~ 0000 TIMl!/\IOIC ~-: " ~ 
S!NnNCl!/COUNTS TO RUN CONSl!~/CONCURRINT\.V .... ··•~ •· 'r · ~ .. 1• q• R· , .., .. _,- ,·, •~ . , · . 
STAY OF EXECUTION OF __________________ ,,,_ _________ ORANT!D TO.,........,.....,,..........., __ --~-,;,..---

ON t.10l10N OF PEOPLE, COUNTS/ENHAHCl!Ml!NTI REMAINING ARE DISMISSED IN l'uimtl!RANCI 0, JUl11CI/NII_ CAIi! IITTUMINT ·•:, "-· . 
AORl!l!Ml!NT, • , ~\. - :•, 1J• ,. - 1 •. • /i, l , · ~ - .f r;?)t, •• ~~ •' ¾! 
COURT ADVISES DEFENDANT OF HIS APPEAL/PAROlE RIOH18. 0 NOnCE OP APPEAi. IS MC!PJED. • ."· :, . . :-· -i. ·' J ~. , .. 
'NOTICE RE CERTIFICATE OF REHABILITATION ANO PARDON" GIi/EN 10 DEFENDANT. · , ; ~- .,· •· ' 
DEFENDANT TO PAY COSTS OF PROBATION SERI/ICES IN AMOUNT OF S · /AMOUNT TO •r D!ffRUINl!D flt PROIIAT10N 
OFFICER, , , . ,-
COURT FINDS DEFENDANT DOES NOT HAVE PRESENT ABIUTV TO PAV COSTS. OF INCAACl!MnON/UCIAL ll!RYICH/PROBanoN letlW:11. , 
DEFENDANT 18 REFERRED 10 THE me.ASURERITAX COt.lECTOR FOR FINANCIAL EVALUATION, , , • . .. 
PROBATION OFFICER 19 ORDERED 10 REGISTER THE OEfENOANT WITH C.ll ANO REPORT AINNEW ARREST TD lME COURT.•·. , ,:, ·: , 
FURTHER OROER AS FOLLOWS/ ADDITIONAL CONOITIONS OF PROBATION ... 

SHERIFF 15 ORDERED TO ALLOW DEFENDANT _______________ PHONE CALLS AT DEFENDANT'S OWN EXPENSE. • 
DEFEHOANT FAILS TO APPEAR Wnlf/WITHOUT SUFFICIENT CAUSE, 
l!IAIL, IF POSTED, FORF!lffD/0.A. REYOKl!D. BENCH WARRANT OAOERED ISIUl!D/lll!IISU!O/AND Hl!LD UNffl. _________ _ 

0 NO BAIL • BAIL FlXEO AT s ___________ · 
DEFENDANT .APPE.ARINO. BENCH ORDERED RECALL£0/0UASHEO. 0 RECALL NO. 188UED. 0 A89TRACT' "-£0.' 

0 BAIL 
• OR 
0 BENCH WARRANT 

• BAIi.EXON. 0 BONO NO. ______ _ 

0 0 .R. DISCHARGED 

0 ONPROSATION 
• IN CUSTOOV OTHER t.MTTt:R • 
0 ON DIVERSION 

PAOI_Of'_ 
MINUTl:8 ENTERED 

JAN 059 1994"': .. ._ ______ _.3P&S 
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2 TRL/MOT ~UPERIOR c°'1F )F CA1LIFOR1NIA, COUNTY o~o- t\NGELES 

Date !>r-.1,rui.n· it 17 t•nJ 
HONORABLE: ft [Cl·!,\RIJ 11 1: llldiU= 

l01 

JUDGE 

Depuly Sherlll 

DEPT. 
J CITRON 
L JOHNSON 

WEB 
Deputy Clerk 

Reporter 

;ENO. 

\AGE 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

01 ~HlTt. Jf:t.J Ltr- / 

IParlios and c~~:i'::=:esent) /1 ~ / 
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTY: ( • 

Counsel for Delendan1:R LI: VINE A 1lC 
1 11 tJillCTS x ______ _ IBOX CHECKED IF ORDER APPUCABLEI 

'.lE OF PROCEEDINGS 
l'l!lAL PTC f/S KE~ u3j6561~ 08-09-1993 

0 ________________ IS SWORN AS THE ENGLISH/ ______________ INTERPRETER. 

0 OATH FILED PER SECTION 68560 GOVERNMENT CODE. 0 DEFENDANT WAIVES SEPARATE INTERPRETER 

0 - DUE TO CONFLICT OF INTEREST, PUBLIC DEFENDER RELIEVED. PURSUANT TO SECTION 987.2 PENAL COOE/31000 GOVERNMENT 
CODE ALTERNATE DEFENSE COUNSEL _________________ IS APPOINTED. 

• ON PEOPLE'S MOTION, AMENDMENT TO I AMENDED INFORMATION FILED/ DEEMED FILED/ INFORMATION AMENDED av 

.. 

INTERLINEATION / AS FOLLOWS-----------------------------------
• ARRAIGNED, PLEADS NOT GUILTY. ADMITS I DENIES/ ALLEGATIONISJ. 

0 - ON________ MOTION, CASE ____________ CONSOLIDATED INTO CASE _________ _ 

____ AS COUNTIS) THEREOF. SEE CASE FOR FURTHER PROCEEDINGS. 

0 MOTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 995 PENAL CODE GRANTED/DENIED/WITHDRAWN/IS SET /CONTINUED TO ___________ _ 

0 - THE COURT STATES IT HAS READ AND CONSIDERED THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE PRELIMINARY HEARING. 

~- MOTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 1538.5 PENAL CODE CALLED FOR HEARING O MOTION SUBMITTED PER STIPULATION 4 I BELOW. 
lf'- CAUSE IS CALLEO FOR TRIAL. 0 CAUSE SUBMITTED PER STIPULATION 41 BELOW. 'f DEFENDANT PERSONALLY AND ALL COUNSEL WAIVE TRIAL BY JURV AND BY COURT. COURT ACCEPTS WAIVERISJ. 

4 1 0 By stip.,lalion ol delendanl and 11II counsel i.- is silblnilled on Iha laslllftOfl'/ contained In lhe Ira~ ol the procHdinga had 11! lhe prellmlnary 
hearing. aubjecl to thla court's ruAngs. wilh each aide' 111servlng the rlghl lo oiler odcflflonal evidence and 1111 llloulaliont entered Into 111 Iha preliminary 
healing be deemed enlered Into in these proceedings. It Is further alipulaled that all e11hiblta received or marked for ldentillcalloll at the pntllmlnary 
hearing an, received in evidence and marked lor idonlWicalion In lheae proceedings. bearing the same r11mber u 11118d In lhe preliminary hearing, subject 
lo this courl'a ruUnga. l'l!apla's 111hft];t ____________________ (Prellml~ry Tr8Neripll admitted inlo tlllidence byrelerence ________________________________________ _ 

4" J,, Ot!fendanl advised and peraonally waives his righl lo conlrontalion ol witnesses for Iha l)Urpose ol furlher croa&•e•amlnation, and waives prllrlfeoe agalnsl 4t' selt-inc,imlnation. Oelendanl advised of possible ellecls ol ploa on anv alien/cillzenshil)/p,obalion/parola &talus. 
D 

0 - ALL SIDES REST. COUNSEL WAIVE ARGUMENT/ARGUE ANO CAUSE IS SUBMITTED. 
0 MOTION PUR~ANT TO SECTION 1538.5 PENAL CODE GRANTED/DE~ED/WITHDRAWN/CONTINUED TO ____________ _ 

0 - COURT FINDS DEFENDANT NOT GUILTY _________________________________ _ 

0 COURT FINDS DEFENDANT GUILTY AS CHARGED TO SECTIONIS) --------------------------
IN COUNTSIS) ____________________ 0 LESSER INCLUDED/RELATED OFFENSE. r- PRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE/lRIAb SE I I \IQG HELD/OPF~LENOAH,CON I INUl!C> TO AT ___ DEPT. _____ _ 

• 0 THE DEFENDANT O THE PEOPLE ANNOUNCE(SI READY FOR TRIAL 

0 - ON PEOPLE'S/DEFENDANT'S/COURT'S MOTION, TRIAL/MOTIONISI IS SET /CONTINUED TO/REMAINS/TRAILED TO _________ _ 
AT ____ A.M. IN DEPT. ______ REASON: ______________ AS _________ OF ___ _ 

- 0 FURTHER CONTIN~NCES WILL NOT BE GRANTED. 0 TRIAL DATE OF _____ ADVANCED AND VACATED. 

• - DEFENDANT PERSONALLY ANO ALL COUNSEL WAIVE TIME FOR TRIAL PLUS _______ DAYS 
0 CAUSE TRANSFERRED TO DEPT. ___ 0 FORTHWITH O ON ______ AT __ A.M. FOR ____________ _ 

0 - DEFENDANT IW1TNESS(ESI ORDERED TO RETURN ON ABOVE DATE: 

¥-

0 PROBATION ANO SENTENCE HEARING SET _______ AT ____ IN DEPARTMENT __ _ 

INCLUDING O DISPOSITION OF REMAINING COUNTIS I ___ 0 DETERMINATION OF ALLEGATIONS REMAINING 
0 DEFENDANT WAIVES TlME FOR SENTENCE O REQUESTS IMMEDIATE SENTENCE (SEE BELOW/ATTACHED SHEET) 

0 DEFENDANT REFERRED TO PROBATION DEPARTMENT O DEFENDANT WAIVES PROBATION REFERRAL 

D PURSUANT TO STIPULATION, COURT CONSIDERS PRE-PLEA REPORT. 

0 FURTHER ORD~_R J,S F_OLJfJWS: -c; ~ -:--J-, ,. ---.J.....,-M ~4'1 a,1,,1'/LL a a/V\11:;;; ~ UALM.zr , :z:o z 1.. wz , J f L 41 u tEft' 
0 THE SHERIFF IS ORDERED TO ALLOW THE DEFENDANT _________ TELEPHONE CALLS AT DEFENDANT'S OWN EX~NSE. 

0 DEFENDANT FAILS TO APPEAR WITH/WITHOUT SUFFICIENT EXCUSE. 

BAIL, IF POSTED, FORFEITED/0.R REVOKED. BENCH WARRANT ORDERED ISSUED/REISSUED/AND HELD UNTIL ----------
• NO BAIL O BAIL FIXED AT$ ____________________ _ I )WARRANT FILED 

0 DEFENDANT APPEARING. BENCH WARRANT ORDERED RECALLED/QUASHED I )RECALL NO _____ _ WRITTEN! ) ABSTRACT FILED 

:J - UPON PAYMENT OF S ______ COSTS BEFORE--------- ANO FILING OF REASSUMPTION, OAOER OF ____ _ 

FORFEITING BAIL ISIIS TO BE VACATED AND BAIL REINSTATED. 0 CERTIFICATE OF MAI.ING EXECUTED ANO FILED/NOTICE WAIVED. 
0 REASSUMPTION FILED/COSTS PAID !RECEIPT NO. _____ ) ORDER OF _____ FORFEITING BAIL VACATED. BAIL REINSTATED. 

:I - DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR RELEASE ON O.R./REDUCTION OF BAIL IS GRANTED/DENIED/SET /CONTINUED TO/ 

REASON:--------------------------------------------

0 BAIL RESET AT$ -----------------------------------------
) llEMANDED O BAIL O BAIL EXONERATED O BOND NO. ------------.............. ~ UINufes ENTERED J PC! EASED O O.R / '1,,' 0 O.R. DISCHARGED O IN CUSTODY OTHER MATTER 

PA<,F ()F Ulllff ITF nnnr:A n r1i-lltrH 111/MlRAMT .. 11ft ,, ,,, r l'\ ,t , n ·t 
2 TRL 

WlT 
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SUPERtoR',-.J! · -": OF cluFORl~tA, COUNTY OF L~t.•~ELES DEPT. Wf1,, If\. 
iOtlORABLE· /lW,1L,lvrd_ 1J UAU'-f i ,JUDGE J' ~ Oellulv Clerk 

EtlO. 

~RGE 

1V Depuly Sherill /.- RIC)Orlet 

(P111lies and counsol ed II prcsonl} 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

vs 

0 I W lul.,J 1 -f o-lvn t..Lt., 
'1., ll {!) t 6( 

J:el lor Poop1e. 

TV DISTRICT ATTY; 

Counsel lor Delendanl: 

x _______ _ 
(BOX CHECKED IF OROER APPLICABLE) 

URE OF PROCEEDINGS 
0 _______________ IS SWORN AS THE ENGUSHl _________ tNTERPReTI:R O OATH FILED PER 88580 .C. 

D 

D 
0 
D 

• 
D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

0 DUE TO CONFLICT OF INTERESTS, PUBLIC DEFENDER RELIEVED. PURSUANT TO PENAL CODI: SECTION 887.2/GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 31000 

• 
D 

D 

D 

D 

CODE ALTERNATE DEFENSE COUNSEL ______________________________ IS APFOINTED. 

CRIMINAL PROCEEDINGS AOJOURNEO/Fl&MAIN AflJBIIFUIED «RES! wn. 
DEFENDANT ORDERED DELIVERED TO DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS PURSUANT TO PENAL CODE SECTION 1203.03. 
DEFENDANT ORDERE~ DELIVERED TO CYA FOR A DIAGNOSTIC STUDY PURSUANT TO SECTION 707.2 W.I.C. ' ! 
OIJ \MA4' B MOTlp~.l'~°:!TtON ANO SENTENCE HEARINGJfl IBIHFP PR<XFFD!N0~ CONTINUED TO _1_-_5 ____ .,_,.._.'f__._ ___ _ 
AT KITtz AM. IN DEPT ~L~JJ . Jp-NON-APPEARANCE CALENDAR. 
0 OEFEtm4I·1T FERSONALLY ANO ALL COUl~SEL WAIVE TIME FOR SENTENCING. DEFENDANT ORDERED TO RETURN. 

0 SUPPLEMENTAL PROBATION REPORT/PROGRESS REPORT ORDERED RE: _________ ;_ ______________ _ 

PROBATION DENIED/PROCEEDINGS SUSPENDED/SENTENCE IMPOSED AS FOLLa.YS; 
0 IMPRISONED IN STATE PRISON FOR O 11:RM PRESCRIBED BY LNN O TOTAL OF ____ YEARS ___ MONTHS 

0 PLUS ___ VEARSIMONTHS PURSUANT TO SECTION _______ OF THE __________ CODE. 
0 PLUS AS INDICATED BELOW. 0 TO 8e HOUSED A=-T"=c""A'"'Ll=Fo=-R=:N"'l"'A""V"'o""u=TH,.,....,.AU""TH=""'o"'R""IT""V""'PU=R"'s""u""ANT"=""'To=se"'c"'n"'o"'N,.,....,.,17""3,..,.1-=.5(""C"")""w"".1.-=c.---------

D COMMITTED TO CALIFORNIA YOUTH AUTHORITY. THE TERM OF IMPAISONMENT TO WHICH THE DEFENDANT WOULD HAVE BEEN 
SENTENCED PURSUANT TO SECTION 1170 PENAL CODE IS _______ YEARS. 

0 IMPRISONED IN LOS ANGELES COUNTY JAIL FOR TERM OF _________________ AS TO COUNTIS) ____ _ 

0 PAV $ ________ FINE TO SUPERIOR COURT. PLUS PENALTY ASSESSMENT ANO SURCHARGE. 
0 PAY $ ________ RESTITUTION FINE PURSUANT 10 SECTION I3967 IA) G.C. TO THE STATE VICTIMS ReSfflllTlON FUND. 
SENTENCE IS SUSPENDED 

IMPOSITION OF SENTENCE IS SUSPENDED. PROBATION GRANTED FOR A PERIOD OF-- YEARS. 0 PROBATION TO BE WITHOUT FORMAL SUPEFMSON. 
DIVERSION GRANTED PER PENAL CODE SECTION 1000 2 FOR PERICO OF--------- VEARS/MONTHS. 

0 DEFENDANT PERSONALLY AND ALL COUNSEL Wi\lVE TIME FOR TRIAL. 
1 0 SPEND FIRST ________ DAYS/MONTHS IN COUNTY JAIL O NOT TO BE ELIGIBLE FOR COUNTY PAROLE 

2 

3 

4 

5 
6 

7 
B 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 

0 WORK FURLOUGH PROGRAM RECOMMENDED. 

0 PAV A FINE OF $ __________ PLUS PENALTY ASSESSMENT I 1484 P.C. & 78000 G.C.I THROUGH THE PROBATION OFFICER. 
0 PAV s _______ LAB FEE PURSUANT TO I 1372.5 H&S COOE ($50 FOR EACH H&S VIOLATION) THROUGH THE PROBATION OFFICER. 

0 PAV RESTITUTION TO THE VICTIM(SI PURSUANT TO 1203.04 P.C. IN AMOUNT OF $ ______ !IN AMOUNT ANO MANNER AS INSTRUCTED Fro/ 
THE PROBATION OFFICER, INCLUDING A SERVICE CHARGE PER 1203.1 PC. MINIMUM PAYMENT OF RESTITUTION TO BE $ ________ _ 

0 PAY 5 ~ RESTITUTION FINE PURSUANT TO SECTleN 13967 (Al G.C. THROUGH THE PROBATION OFFICER. 
0 STAVED WHILE DEFENDANT PAYS RESTITUTION AND IF. RESTITUTION IS PAID IN FULL. STAV SHALL BE PERMANENT. 

0 NOT DRINK OR POSSESS ANV ALCOHOi.iC BEVERAGE ANO STAY OUT OF PLACES WliERE THEY ARE THE CHIEF ITEM OF SALE. 
0 NOT USE OR POSSESS ANV NARCOTICS, DANGEROUS OR RESTRICTED DRUGS OR ASSOCIATED PARAPHERNALIA, EXCEPT WITH VAILO 

PRESCRIPTION, ANO STAY flWAV FROM PLACES WHERE USERS, BUYERS OR SELLERS CONGREGATE. 
0 NOT ASSOCIATE WITH PERSONS KNOWN 8V YOU TO BE NARCOTIC OR DRUG USERS OR SELLERS. 

D SUBMIT TO PERIODIC ANTI-NARCOTIC TESTS/ALCOIIOl. TESTS AS DIRECTED ev THE PflOBATION OFFICER OR ANY OTHER PEACE OFFICER. 
0 HAVE NO BLANK CHECKS IN POSSESSION; NOT WOITE AtlV PORTION OF ANY CHECKS; ANO, NOT HAVE BANK ACCOUNT UPON WHICH YOU MAY DRAW 

CHECKS. NOT USE on POSSESS OR APPLY FOR ANY CREDIT OR All.A CAIID. 0 NOT ASSOCIATE WITH/STAV NNAV FROM _________________________________ _ 

D COOPERATE WITH PROBATIOlt OFFICER IN A PLAN Fon ------------------------------• SUPPORT DEPENDENTS AS DIRECTED BV PROBATION OFFICER. 
0 SEEK AND MAINTAIN TRAINING, SCHOOLING OR EMPLOYMENT AS APPROVED BV PROBATION OFFICER. 

• KEEP PROBATION OFFICER ADVISED OF YOUR RESIDENCE AT ALL TIMES. 
0 SURRENDER ORIVER'S LICENSE TO CLEOK OF COURT TO BE RETURNED TO DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES. 

0 1101 DRIVE A MOTOR VEIUCLE UNLESS LAWFULLY LICENSED ANO INSURED. 
• NOT rN>/N, USE on POSSESS ANY DANGEROUS OR OEAOLV WEAPONS. 

0 SUBMIT YOUR PERSON AND PROPERTY UNDER YOUR CONTROL TO SEARCH OR SEIZURE AT ANY TIME OF THE DAV OR NIGHT BV ANY 
PROBATION OFFICER OR OTHER PEACE OFFICER WITH OR WlntOUT A WARRANT, OR PAOBA8LE CAUSE. 

• OBEY ALL LAWS. OBEY ALL ORDERS. RULES ANO REGULATIOl~S OF THE PAOBATION OEPAITTMENT ANO OF THE COURT. 
0 USE ONLY YOUR TRUE NAME, STATED TO BE---------------------------------0 REPORT TO PROBATION OFFICER UPON RELEASE FROM CUSTODY/WITHIN _______________________ _ 

0 IF VOU LEAVE THE COUNTRY. VDU SHALL NOT REENlER THE UNITED STATES ILLEGAi.LY, IF YOU 00 RETURN, REPORT TO THE PROBATION OFFICER WITHIN 
------ANO PRESENT DOCUMENTATION WHICH PROVES VOU ARE IN THE UNITED STATES LEGAU.V. 

DEFENDANT GIVEN TOTAL CREDIT FOR ____ OAVS IN CUSTODY 1----DAVS ACTUAL CUSTODY ANO ___ OAVS GOOD TIME/WORI< TIME. 
SENTENCE/COUNTS TO RUN CONSECUTIVELY TO/CONCURRENTLY WITH ________________________ _ 
STAY OF EXECUTION OF ______________________ GRANTED TO ______________ _ 

ON MOTION OF PEOPLE, COUNTS/ENHANCEMENTS REMAINING ARE DISMISSED IN FURTHERANCE OF JUSTICE. 
COURT ADVISES DEFENDANT OF HIS APPEAUPAROLE RIGHTS. 0 NOTICE OF APPEAL IS RECEIVED. 
·NOTICE RE CERTIFICATE OF REHABILITATION AND PARDON" GIVEN TO DEFENDANT. 
OEFEND4NT TO PAV COSTS OF PROBATION SERVICES IN AMOUNT OF $ ________ /AMOUNT TO BE DETERMINED BY PROBATION OFFICER 
COURT FINDS OEFENDANT DOES NOT HAVE PRESENT ABILITY TO PAV COSTS OF INCARCERATION/LEGAL SERVICES/PROBATION SERVICES RENDERED 
DEFEtlDAtlT IS REFERRED TO THE TREASURER/TAX COLLECTOR FOR FINANCII\L EVALUATION. l 
PROBATION OFFICER IS ORDERED TO REGISTER THE DEFENDANT WITH C.U. ANO REPORT ANY NEW ARREST lO THE COURT. ( : 
FURTHER ORDER AS FOLLOWS/ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF PROBATION ---------c:----------------.,.•-

:J SHERIFF IS ORDERED TO ALLOW DEFENDANT __________________ PHONE CALLS AT DEFENDANT'S aNN EXPENSE. 

0 DEFENDANT F4ILS TO APPEAR WITHtWITHOIJT SUl'FICIENT excuse. ....,~ .I\ fl ')/ 
::J BAIL. IF POSTED. FORFEIIEDIOR. REVOKED. BENCH WARRANT ORDERED ISSUED/REISSUED/AND HELD UNTIL ,'"- j...{)_r 

D 
• NO BAIL • BAIL FIXED AT $---=----------

DEFENDANT APPEARING, BENCH WARRANT ORDERED AECALLED/OUASlll!D. 0 RECALL NO. ISSUED. 0 ABSTRACT FILED. 

l m '.14NOEO 

IREl ~.\.SED 

0 BAIL 

0 OR. ,..., 
0 BAIL EXON. 

0 O.R. DISCHARGED 

D BOND NO ______ _______________ _ 

0 ON PROBATION 
n IJ-1 t"lt~ t n nv nntrn tt~TT~n 

MINU~S ENTI:RE_g 

c.r ~lff"'/S I,, ___ 
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, 
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA. I ~~e No. SAOl4380 
Plaintiff I 

v. 
I 
I 
I I N F O R M A T I O N 

Ol JOHN LEE WHITE, 
aka DEKO, and 

02 MICHAEL WALTON, 
aka LIL ROCK 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Defendant Cs) I 
------------------------' 

:·--

Ct. 
No. Charge 

l PCZll 

I N F O R M A T I O N 
SUMMARY 

Charge 
Range 
2-3-5 

Defendant 
WHITE, JOHN LEE 
WALTON, MICHAEL 

Arraignment Date: 
Department: W 

Special 
Allegation 
PCl2022(a)(ll 
PCl2022.5(a) 

Alleg. 
Effect 
+l YR 
+3-4-5· MSP 

The District Attorney of the County of Los Angeles, by this Information alleges 

that: 

COUNT l 

On or about June 8, 1993, in the County of Los Angeles, the crime of 2ND 

DEGREE ROBBERY, in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 211, a Felony, was committed 

by JOHN LEE WHITE and MICHAEL WALTON, who did willfully, unlawfully, and by 

means of force and fear take personal property from the person, possession, and 

immediate presence of Cen-Fed Bank. It is further alleged that the above 

offense is a serious felony within the meaning of Penal Code Section 

ll92.7(c)(l9). 

Page l 
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It is further alleged that in the commission and attempted commission of 

thetabove offense, the said defendant(s), MICHAEL WALTON, personally used a 

firearm(s), to wit: a shotgun, within the meaning of Penal Code sections 

l203.06(a)(l) and 12022.S(a) also causing the above offense(s) to become a 

serious felony pursuant to Penal Code section ll9Z.7(c)(8). 

It is further alleged that in the commission and attempted commission of 

the above offense a principal in said offense was armed with a firearm(s), to 

wit, a shotgun, said arming not being an element of the above offense, within 

the meaning of Penal Code Section l202Z(a)(l), 

* .. * * * :- -

THIS INFORMATION CONSISTS OF l COUNT(S). 

GIL GARCETTI 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
County Qf Los Ang~les, 
State of California 

BY: 

/ms 

-
' ..... 

.,. -
JOHN F LYNCH 
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

;. 

Filed in Superior Court, 
County of Los Angeles 

DATED: ),UG 1) I} • ·m 

Pursuant to Penal Code Section 1054.S(b), the Peop l e are hereby informally 
requesting that defense counsel provide discovery to the People as 
required by Penal Code Section 1054.3. 

Page 2 
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r•5 \J 1PERIOR ':OURT OF CALIFORPII-'' 
:OUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

PROBATION OFFICER'S REPORT .. COURT COP.Y AEP'JAT SEOUE"1CE .. o 
CEFENCANT S l'tAME1S1 , 

JOHN WHITE 
K 

A00AESS •~~Ott( PELEASEI 

u 
PROBATION NO CII NO 

X- 1 1 66 A 1 
CAYS IN JAIL THIS CASE 

ll ESTIMATED O VERIFIED 

PRESENT OFFENSE: LEGAL HISTORY 

 

COURT JUOGE 

(THURS) 

AREA OFFICE 

TYPE REPORT 

Probation and sentence 
--X- Pre•Conviction ( 13 1.3 CCP) 

Post senlence 
Diversion (Specify) 

CHARGEO--wilh the crimes of 1INCLUOE ?AIORS. ENHANC£ ... ENTS OR SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES! 

COuAT CASE NO 

PHONE NO. 

(310) 

COUNT[: 211 PC (2N> DEGREE ROBBERY) + SPECIAL. AL.LEGATia-. OF 12022(A)(1) PC. 

/ -~ -.i 

. !',,J 
-"'·' C . . '1 

\ . ( \ . '"' .... , . .. . 

CONVICTED of the crimes of 1INCLUDE PRIORS. !~MANCEMENTS OR SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES) t-J 
f' i' \ I 
'\d 

PRE-PLEA lNVESTlGATION, "(;~ 

COUNTIS! CONTINUED TO P I S FOR DISPOSITION 

MOPOSED PLEA AGREEMENT SOURCES OF INFORMATION 

DATE1SI OF OFFENSE TIMEISI 

Q (JlNENllf) 0 SENTENCED TO STATE PRISON/COUNTY JAIL ON CASE ______ _ 
1 SCE .. 111011 

IIECOIIO 
SECT10Nt 

Ill ON PROBATION Q PENDING PROBATION VIOLATION • PENDING NEW CASE 

• ON PAROLE•AEMAINING TIME 

RECOMMENDATION: 

HOLOIWARRANl 

m YES a N 

PR08ATION Q DENIAL II DIAGNOSTIC STUDY 

II ro1 z w1c 
Cl CYA 

• OTHER _________ _ 

-1-

Q COUNTY JAIL 

0 STATE PRISON 

76fl715B.Proo. 19SC lRw.1/911 

• 1203 03 PC 

I 
:_,, 
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5 

8 
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8 

,o 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

18 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

28 

27 

28 

PRESENT OFFENSE: 
(CONTINUED) 

AAResT DATE TIME 

. 

co-oe:FENOANT(SI 

MICHAEL WALTON 
MALCOLM  
MELVIN  

IIOOKO> AS 

150uAcuoir 1Nl'OIIIMAT10N 11111:..._..-1 l 
CAAREST BEPWI t«>I PRQYIDEQ W{PBDBAilW 3EfEBAAb} 

OFFEN$€ 

. 

CASE NO. 

SA014380 
(~aJRO 
(J.MNJLE QlRI') 

LOCATION OF AAIIEST AA,-t.st'll'G 
AGENCY 

-

01$110SITION 

PENDING. 

ELEMENTS ANO RELEVANT CIRCUMSTANCES OF THE OFFENSE: 

-
THE DEFENDANT ANO THREE ACCOMPLICES ENTERED 

CEN-FEO BANK ANO COMMITTED AN ARMED ROBBERY. 

ON JUNE 8TH, 1993, AT . APPROXIMATEL_Y 1 : .. O P.H • ., 

FOUR 'MALES (J , WHITE, WALTON, ANO ) ENTERED CEN-FED 

BANK. , ARMED WITH A SEMI-AUTOMATIC HANDGUN, STATED, "THIS 

IS A ROBBERY. EVERYONE GET DOWN!" J  ANO WHITE ADVANCED OVER 

THE TELLER COUNTER. 

DRAWERS. 

THEY A TT EMPTED TO OPEN THE LOCKED TELLER 

TELLER, GAVE JONES HER TELLER KEYS. 

JONES REMOVED $1,212. IN MISCELLANEOUS CURRENCY / BAIT MONEY. 

WALTON AND  REMAINED IN THE LOBBY AREA. 

WALTON MAINTAINED THEIR POSITION WITH THE USE OF A SAWED-OFF 

SHOTGUN. HE ORDERED, "EVERYONE GET DOWN ON THE FLOOR!" 

THEREAFTER, ALL FOUR SUBJECTS FLED IN A RYDER 

MOVING VAN. OFFICERS WERE PROVIDED WITH A DESCRIPTION OF THE 

VEHICLE. OFFICERS OBSERVED THE SUSPECTS' VEHICLE TRAVELING EAST­

BOUND ON THE 10 FREEWAY AT WASHINGTON BOULEVARD. OFFICERS ATTEMPTED 

-2- (WHITE) 

761'7258-P,ot,. '9$C CAev. 11911 
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2 

3 

.. 
5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

1" 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

, 

TO MAKE A VEHICLE STOP. WHITE, THE DRIVER OF THE VAN, REFUSED TO 

COMPLY. A VEHICLE PURSUIT ENSUED. WHITE STOPPED THE VAN IN THE 

VICINITY OF LA BREA ANO COLISEUM. WALTON ANO  FLED ON 

FOOT. OFFICERS BINDER AND LEWIS TOOK J  ANO WHITE INTO CUSTODY • 

OFFICERS SEARCHED THE IMMEDIATE AREA. WAL TON AND WERE 

LOCATED AND TAKEN INTO CUSTODY. DURING THE PRE-BOOKING SEARCH, 

·-OETECTIVE GRAYSON RECOVERED $1,212. FROM  PANTS POCKET. 

-3- (WHITE) 

11Clt2C • PROB. SA l,fl 
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1 ; VICTIM: 

2 

l 

.. 
5 

6 

7 

a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

fl 

14 

IS 

11 

17 

11 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

NAME 

CEN-FED BANK COUNT I • •. 
INJURY, PAOPEIITY 1.0S.S !TYPE I COST/ ETC:J 

INSUIIANC£ COVERAGE 

N 
IIESTITUTION AI.REAOV MADE 

LOSS: • YES {i] NO 

£STIMATEO LOSS 

N N 

~IED FOR VICTIM RESTITUTION ffUNO 

0 UNK O VIES O NO 

VICTIM STATEMENT: 

.... . ON AUGUST 19TH, 1993, PROBATION OFFICER SPOKE 

WITH ASSISTANT MANAGER, CEN-FEO BANK. THE 

TWO PRIMARY EMPLOYEES IMPACTED BY THE INSTANT MATTER WERE 

ANO 

FOR ONE WEEK. 

WAS UNABLE TO WORK 

COUNSELING WAS PROVIDED BY CEN-FED BANK. 

DESCRIBES THE ORDEAL AS VERY TRAUMATiC. 

AT THE TIME OF THE ROBBERY, SHE HID UNDER HER DESK. SHE WAS 

OBSERVED BY ONE OF THE SUSPECTS. AT GUNPOINT, HE ORDERED HER 

TO COME FROM UNDER HER DESK. SHE TRIED TO REMAIN CALM. YET, 

SHE WAS FRIGHTENED THAT HE WOULD BECOME AGITATED ANO SHOOT 

HER. AFTER THE SUSPECTS LEFT THE B.:\NK, SHE SOBBED 

UNCONTROLLABLY. (CONTINUED PAGE 5) 

11V I CTIH NOTIFIED PURSUANT TO SECTION 1191.3(8) PENAL CODE." 

0 VIC IMS ESTIMATE l.0SS TO Al.I. VICTIMS Vlc:TIMCSI NOTIFIED Off P•s HltARINC 

RESTITUTION D vu • NO 

OE NOANT HAVE INSUAANC:E 
TO COVEii RESTITUTION, 

D V£$ I!] NO 

-4- (WHITE) 

16P72SB-P,oD. 19SC u,..,. 11911 

INSURANCE C:OMPANV NAME/AOQIUtSS/TEL.UHONE NO. 

N/A. 

___ VICTIM LIST CONTINUU NIEXT PACE 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

11 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

, 

VICTIM STATEMENT (CON'T.): 

IT WAS EXTREMELY DIFFICULT TO TESTIFY AT THE 

PRELIMINARY HEARING. THE MERE SIGHT OF THE DEFENDANTS REKINDLED 

HER FEAR. SHE WAS OVERCOME BY EMOTION AND INITIALLY, SHE WAS 

UNABLE TO TESTIFY. 

SHE ALSO MET WITH THE THERAPIST PROVIDED BY THE 

... .SANK. FOR A WEEK AND A HALF, THE THERAPIST ASSISTED HER WITH 

MANAGING HER FEELINGS. AL THOUGH SHE WAS FUNCTION I NG, SHE WAS 
. 

VERY DEPRESSED. 5 IMPLY OR IV ING IN THE AREA WHERE THE DEFENDANTS 

WERE APPREHENDED, MAKES HER NERVOUS. 

-5- (WHITE) 
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1 I PRIOR RECORD: 

4 

5 

8 

7 

• 
9 

2-16-92 

1-4-93 

4-10-93 

.'- • 

tou•cu Of' ,,.,o•-TION Ctl•lt 

JUVENILE PROBATION RECORD (l-19-9J), 
ANO CLETS <8-1\-q\). 

JOHN LEE WHITE 

JUVENILE HISTORY: 

LAPO - 211 PC (llOBBERY: ARMED WITH DANGEROUS OR 
DEADLY WEAPON),, 10851 VC (TAKING VEHICLE WITHOUT 
OWNER'S CONSENT / VEHICLE THEFT) - DETAINED 
PETITION. 2-19-92 PETITION SUSTAINED, CAMP­
COMMUNITY PLACEMENT. 

LAPD - 12021(0) PC (HAVING HANDGUN ON PROBATION), 
C 626.l(A) PC (POSSESS WEAPON /ETC.AT SCHOOL); 
NON-DETAINED PETITION. 3-22-93, FOUND UNFIT. 

LAPD - 23103 VC (RECKLESS DRIVING), C 10851(A) VC 
(TAKING A VEHICLE V/OUT OWNER'S ' CONSENT); NON­
DETAINED PETITION - NO DISPOSITION. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

ti 

II 

17 

,. 

(THIS ARREST WAS INCLUDED TO SHOW A PATTERN OF CRIMINALITY.) 

19 

20 

21 

Z2 

23 

24 

25 

28 

27 

28 

-6- (WHITE) 
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2 

J 

4 

s 

6 

1 

a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

,, 
20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

26 

27 

21 

29 

PERSONAL HISTORY: 1 
.... "" .. Of .. a .... _ ......... 

DEFENDANT. 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE: 

No rKord, indic•tion, o, .admission of .alcohol CK controlled sutMt.ance-abuse. 

X Occas,onal social or experimental use of ALCOHOL .acknowledged. -------------------
2_ See below: lndic.ation / .admission of signifiunt sumt•nce .abuse probtem. 

Referred to Narcotic Ev•lu•tor O Yet O No _ Narcotic Evaluator's report atUChed 

Additional lnform.ation 

AT AGE 15, DEFENDANT BEGAN SMOKING MARIJUANA. 

HE SMOKES MARIJUANA APPROXIMATELY FOUR TIMES A WEEK. 
:- • 

PHYSICAL/ MENTAL/ EMOTIONAL HEALTH: 

_ No indication or d.aim of significant physic.I / mental / emotion.al hHlth problem. 

---1-.. See below: Indication / cl•im of significant physical I mental / emotional he.alth probtem. 

Additional Information 

DEFENDANT SUFFERS WITH ASTHMA. ALSO, HE HAS 

LINGER I NG AFFECTS FROM A BROKEN ANKLE THAT HE SUFFERED ABOUT 

FIVE YEARS AGO. 

-7- (WHITE) 

76Pl2511•~rob. 19SC IA..,. 8/911 
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7 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 .· 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

PERSONAL HISTORY: 
(CONTINUED) 

I"'"""' a, •••o•-T•o• co•• -• 
QEffNQANT. 

TVP'£ IIIES10£NCE LENGTMOI" 
OCCUPANCY 

RESIDES WITH/IIELATIONSHIP 

RESIDENCE 

CAME TO COUNTY/ 1"110111 

AdditlOI\II information 

.,.. . 

MAAITAL STATUS HAMIE OF SPOUSE/ PllESENT COMA81TANT 

MARRIAGE/ PARENTHOOD 
c; Jllr".J ~ / ~ ~JI no~ 

&.ENCTH OF UNION. HO. 01' CHILO II EN THIS UNION SU..-ORTED eY 

I'«>. PRIOR MARRIAGES/ COHABITATIONS HO. 01" CHILOA~ TH~ UNIONS SUPl'OIITEO • Y 

r.0. OF OT..,EA CHII.OAEN SUPflOATEO ev 

Addition1I ,nf0f'm1t1on 

FORMAL EDUCATION: 
DEFENDANT COMPLETED THE 9TH GRADE. DEFENDANT 

PURPORTS THAT HE ATTENDS THE YOUTH INTERVENTION PROGRAM. 

HOWEVER, PROBATION OFFICER WAS INFORMED (CONTINUED PAGE 9) 

-8- (WHITE) 

76P725• -Prob, 19SC I Rev. 11911 

] 
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I 

l FORMAL EDUCATION (CON'T.): 

2 THAT THE DEFENDANT HAS NEVER BEEN ENROLLED IN THIS PROGRAM. 

3 ADDITIONALLY, THE DEFENDANT'S GRANDMOTHER ACKNOWLEDGED THAT 

-4 THE DEFENDANT WAS NOT ATTENDING SCHOOL. 

5 

6 

7 .._.._,.. 

8 

9 

10 

ti 

12 

13 .. 
15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

-9-. ...(WHITE) 
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5 

8 

7 

8 

9 

,a 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

18 

17 

18 

11 

2D 

2 , 
22 

23 

4 2 

25 

28 

%7 

28 

PERSONAL HISTORY: 
(CONTINUEOl 

, 
EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

PRESENT/LAST EMPUlVER / AODIIESS / PHONE 

0 VERIFIED 0 UNV£1Ull"IE0 

Additional information 

I "'u•cuo• •••••-T'°"""" 
DEFENDANT. 

Ovu IX].., 
OCCUPATION 

IX) N/A 

DEFENDANT DOES NOT HAVE A WORK HISTORY. 

FINANCIAL STATUS I INCOME 5TA81LITV 

NI II. 

NET MONTMLV INCOM£ 

I. 

Ova ONO 

PRIMARY INCOME 50URC:£ S£C:0NOAR V INCOME SOUIIC:EIS> EST, TOTAL ASSETS UT. TOTAL LIA81LITIES 

NONE. 

MA.1011 LIA• ILITIES / at'IMATED AMOUNT (MONTMLV) 

NONE. 

AdditioNI information 

GANG ACTIVlTY NameofG1ng _ _.;Ca.P...:L:.::E::.:.A,_S~E=--=S~E.::.E-:N:.::E-.:X::..TL-.1.P..cAu;iGu,,E..,_)_ 

-10- (WHITE) 

76P7258-llrob. 19SC: ll'lev, 8/911 
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11 
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13 
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15 
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23 

.,.. . 

, 

GANG ACTIVITY (CON'T.): 

AT AGE 14, DEFENDANT BECAME A MEMBER OF 62 BRIM 

(BLOODS). HIS MONIKER IS "OEKO." 

-11- (WHITE) 

18Ct91C • PROB. SA Lfl 
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6 
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10 

11 

12 
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15 
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20 

21 

22 

23 

, 
-. 

DEFENDANT'S STATEMENT: 

IN AS MUCH AS THIS IS A PRE-PLEA REPORT, DEFENDANT 

WAS NOT INTERVIEWED REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE PRESENT OFFENSE. 

INTERESTED PARTIES: 

ON AUGUST 17TH, 1993, PROBATION OFFICER CONTACTED 

INVESTIGATING OFFICER LICATA, (213) 485-078D. DURING THE JUVENILE 

• •PROCEEDINGS, THE DEFENDANTS WERE 

THE COURT HAD TO ADMONISH THEM. 

JOKING AND PLAYING AROUND. 

THEY HAVE BEEN MORE SUBDUED 

FOR THE ADULT PROCEEDINGS. NEVERTHELESS, THEY HAVE NOT DISPLAYED 

ANY REMORSE. · THE VICTIMS HAVE BEEN EXTREMELY TRAUMATIZED. 

TWO EMPLOYEES REQUIRED COUNSEL ING. WHILE TESTJ.FY ING IN tOURT, 

ONE EMPLOYEE BEGAN TO CRY. 

THE DEFENDANT IS A GANG MEMBER. OLDER GANG MEMBERS 

RECRUIT YOUNGER GANG MEMBERS TO COMMIT CRIMES. IT IS WITH THE 

BELIEF THAT THE COURT WILL BE HORE LENIENT ON A JUVENILE. HOWEVER, 

DUE TO THE DEFENDANT'S CRIMINAL SOPHISTICATION AND THE SERIOUSNESS 

OF THE OFFENSE, THE DEFENDANT SHOULD BE ORDERED TO STATE PRISON. 

JANE EDWARDS, THE DEFENDANT'S GRANDMOTHER, WAS 

INTERVIEWED IN REGARD TO THE INSTANT MATTER. SHE DID NOT KNOW 

ANY OF THE PARTICULARS REGARDING THE OFFENSE. 

SINCE 1984, THE DEFENDANT HAS LIVED WITH HER. 

SHE DOES NOT HAVE ANY CONTROL OVER HIM. HE IS DIFFICULT AND 

UNCOOPERAT l VE AT HOME. 

-12- (WHITE) 

76Clt2G • PROB. SA IM 

HE WILL NOT ATTEND SCHOOL. ALTHOUGH 
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l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

, 

SHE IS AWARE THAT THE DEFENDANT l S A GANG MEMBER, SHE CANNOT 

CONFIRM OR DENY THAT HE USES NARCOTICS. 

CONDUCT UNDER SUPERVISION: 

ON FEBRUARY 

PLACEMENT. 

ACCORDING TO THE SUPERVISION OFFICER OF RECORD 

28TH, 1992, THE DEFENDANT RECEIVED CAMP-COMMUNITY 

IN AUGUST OF 1992, THE DEFENDANT WAS RELEASED FROM 

7 CAMP KILPATRICK. THE DEFENDANT PERFORMED SATISFACTORILY IN 
:- • 

8 CAMP • PR I OR TO THE DEFENDANT'S CONFINEMENT IN CAMP, HIS 

9 PERFORMANCE UNDER PROBATION SUPERVISION WAS MARGINAL TO UNSATIS-

lO 

tl 

· 12 

l3 

l4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

FACTORY. THE DEFENDANT WAS NOT ATTENDING SCHOOL. HE CONT[NUEO 

TO HAVE ADVERSE CONTACT WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT ANO HE WAS 

UNCONTROLLABLE AT HOME. 

THE DEFENDANT APPEARS TO BE IN VIOLATION OF 

CONDIT IONS OF PROBATION. HE WAS ORDERED TO OBEY- ALL LAWS AND 

OBEY PARENTS, PROBATION OFFICER, SCHOOL OFFICIALS ANO CAMP STAFF. 

HE WAS FURTHER ORDERED NOT TO ENGAGE IN ANY TYPE OF DELINQUENT 

BEHAVIOR. DEFENDANT WAS NOT TO ASSOCIATE WITH ANYONE DISAPPROVED 

OF BY HIS PARENT OR PROBATION OFFICER. HE WAS FURTHER ORDERED 

NOT TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY TYPE OF GANG ACTIVITY. 

EVALUATION: 

THE DEFENDANT'S CRIMINAL SOPHISTICATION HAS 

ESCALATED. ALSO, THE FREQUENCY OF CRIMINAL ACTIVITY HAS INCREASED. 

HE DOES NOT HAVE ANY RESPECT FOR AUTHORITY ANO/OR AOUL TS. 

-13- (WHITE) 

11CHIG • PROB. SA l'1tl 
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6 

7 
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9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

11 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

, 
-. 

REHABILITATIVE EFFORTS HAVE FAILED. CAMP-COMMUNITY PLACEMENT 

ANO HOME ON PROBATION HAVE PROVEN INEFFECTIVE IN MODIFYING HIS 

DEVIANT BEHAVIOR. HE IS DEFINITELY CONSIDERED A THREAT TO SOCIETY. 

THERE IS NOT ANY INDICATION THAT HE IS REMORSEFUL. FOR THE 

SAFETY ANO WELFARE OF THE COMMUNITY, PROBATION IS NOT CONSIDERED 

APPROPRIATE IN THE INSTANT MATTER. 

IF THE DEFENDANT IS FOUND GUILTY, IT APPEARS THAT 

HE IS INELIGIBLE FOR COMMITMENT TO THE CALIFORNIA YOUTH AUTHORITY. 

HOWEVER, IT IS MANDATED THAT HE BE DIAGNOSED BY THE CALIFORNIA 

YOUTH AUTHORITY PURSUANT TO SECTION 707 .2 WELFARE • INSTITUTIONS 

CODE. IF THE DEFENDANT IS FOUND I NE!- I G IBLE FOR C9HM l TMENT, Ol;JE 

TO -ttIS AGE, THE COURT MAY WISH TO CONSIDER HOUSING THE DEFENDANT 

AT THE CALIFORNIA YOUTH AUTHORITY UNDER A STATE PRISON COMMITMENT. 

SENTENCING CONSIDERATIONS: 

THE OEFENOANT IS INELIGIBLE FOR PROBATION PURSUANT 

TO SECTION 120:S(E)(2) PENAL CODE, UNLESS THE COURT DETERMINES 

THIS IS AN UNUSUAL CASE. 

-14- (WHITE) 

CIRCUMSTANCES IN AGGRAVATION: 

1. THE CRIME INVOLVED GREAT VIOLENCE, GREAT BODILY 
HARM, THREAT OF GREAT BODILY HA~M, OR OTHER 
ACTS DISCLOSING A HIGH DEGREE OF CRUELTY, 
VICIOUSNESS OR CALLOUSNESS. 

2. THE PLANNING, SOPHISTICATION OR PROFESSIONALISM 
WI TH WHICH THE CR I HE WAS CARR I ED OUT, OR OTHER 
FACTS, INDICATE PREMEDITATION. 

71C8HC • PROB, SA Ult 
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21 
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;-• 

3. TI-£ DEFENDANT'S PRIOR ADJUDICATIONS OF COMMISSION 
OF CRIMES AS A JUVENILE ARE NUMEROUS OR OF 
INCREASING SERIOUSNESS. 

4. THE DEFENDANT WAS ON PROBATION WHEN HE COMMITTED 
THE CRIME. 

S. THE DEFENDANT'S PR I OR PERFORMANCE ON PROBATION 
WAS UNSATISFACTORY. 

CIRCUMSTANCES IN MITIGATION: 

NONE. 

WITH THE PRESENCE OF ONLY AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES 

iN THIS MATTER, ANO IF THE DEFENDANT IS SENTENCED TO STATE PRISON, 

THE HIGH-BASE TERM SHOULD BE IMPOSED. 

RECOMMENOAT ION: · 

IF CONVICTED, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE DEFENDANT 

BE COMMITTED TO THE CALIFORNIA YOUTH AUTHORITY FOR DIAGNOSIS 

AND RECOMMENDATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 707.2 OF THE WELFARE AND 

-15- (WHITE) 
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INSTITUTIONS CODE. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBHITTEO, 

SARRY J. NIOORF, 
PROBATION OFFICER 

BY //4~-~ 
SHARON THOMf'SON, DEPUTY 

~- SANTA MONICA AREA OFFICE 
TELEPHONE (310) 458-5488 

READ ANO APPROVED: 

(SUBMITTED 8-19-93) 
(TYPED 8-24-93) 
ST:LJN (8) 

-. 

I HAVE READ AND CONSIDERED 
THE FOREGOING REPORT~ TI-£ 
PROBATION OFFICER. 

. Juo,e ~ 1l£ SUPERIOR COURT 

IF PR08ATtON IS GRANTED, IT IS RECOMMENDED 

THAT THE COURT DETERMINES THE DEFENDANT'S ABILITY TO PAY COST OF 

PROBATION SERVICES PURSUANT TO SECTION 1203.1(8) PENAL cooe. 
COST OF PRE-SENTENCE INVESTIGATION' PRE-SENTENCE REPORT: $401.00. 

COST OF SUPERVISION: $27.00. 

SHOULD PROBATION ee GRANTED IN THIS HATTER, 

THE CASE WILL BE ASSIGNED TO THE CENTINELA AREA OFFICE. 

-16- (WHITE) 

7tCH2C • PROB. SA lltl 

99
AA08391



'-""'"'' ~ •v• ~~•••• 
U.M( &.1\1 . f~I . llc)OlQ CCNII DAIi 

T 
HOI IIO 

' 
l 

I 

• 

' • 
, 
• 
t 

•• 
11 

•• 
.t I .. ,, 
., 
., ,. 
•• ,. 
II ,, 

x- 1515667 SA014 80 

m 

a 
a 
C 

m 
a 
C 

• a 
• 
m 
m 
C 
m 

. m 
0 
C 
a 
m 
e 
C 
el 
C 

C 

I 

!JCQM¥t:NQIP JtlM$ ANO CQNQtD9!fS Of P!Of!D9!4/JUMS Of PCVl!SfQI 

VUO flltll } 6 5 o,.~ • coue.n N,. Q 1101 10 II fl!Glkl fOI CO....ft' •Aa011 
0 WOla fUlllOUGN flOGIAII •<OUMCM>CO 

,.,.., A fllC Of l ____ f\,US fCt&Alh ASKSSMCNI 11-. •< I NOOO' Cl ftclOUGN bC NOIATION O,fCIL 
PAI' 1 ____ u,a. Ill ~r fO 111111 N&S Coot CHI foa CACM NII YOAIIOliO 1kAOuGN fttl ,banoe, O"ICI 
... ., lllttn,fQI ,o nc «nMm fUISuMI TO UeJ .. ,c.. AIIIOUIII Of,. ____ ,.~, MO IIAWI Al 
9!$11U11D IT fNl NOIATp. OlfCIL -.Ouo.G A "bCI OcUGI "• lltl I ,C ..._ •AfMCllf Ol lllfflVIOII 10 t: 
I · PAY I 'IQ 1tE IIESTIMICJt NO PO 121J.OII P.C. IN #Giff NO KtHE 
fAT I 2 0 0 • '-f,,~/ftlAil5'f W~IOI OfhCIL 

~'trt.ttU,fi~~ ~ WA'KJPJJ 'iG • ~' Jffl\Jt'\~~ ~It "°' ~ OI IOIKH ...., a..c~c M'flW& MO na, &iia;,vas •• 1MY--:i 11:i'"dJlrnllllWW • • 
IIC)I USI OI I05Ml1 MT IIUICOhCI. OoUGIIOUI oa llSTIIICtlD DIUGS OI ASSOQalU PAA.Ilk(~ ucan WITN YAU» 
NlKWfOI. UC, 1141' &W&T 110111 IUQS WH(• VSCIL MUS OI tlUIII CWAClo\11. 
1101 AIS00A!I .. , .. ,..aso,.s l'-O'#N IY l'OU ro N ...-cone 01 OIUG UUIS Ol 11W • . 

iula,.r to f(IIOO< .... ~o,c tUt11Al(OtQ. run AS ~CTID ., lkl Pt014rOII OfJCII OI Alff Otkll f(A(I Olfl( 

MA'fl IIO IV-la CMCC&I • -OSSU'°'- 11()1 .,..,.,, Allf ,oaroc Of MY (..CCII. MO. IIOT M'fl IAHI ACC°"'9f U1'0t1 Wk& 

,OU ... .., ou• (Ml(I.I "°' uK oa IIO\SUS oa AH\.1' ,o& Alff°'°'' 0. 1.N c.uo 
11101 &SSOQ.\fl MrN :UAf &WAT flOM _..:,:K:.:.;N:,.:::O;.:,;W~N;...;:G~A~N.=,G...,;..;M,=,E;.;M,_B.:.E_,R.:;S ..... ____________ _ 

(OOl(aAfl ., .. NQIAIOI ClfJ(ll • & PUii toa ___ ~C::.::O~U:..,N~S~E.:;L1,,1I_,N,l,l!G._.,.___ __________ _ 

IUPf'Qal OU'UIIOlll'1 Al o-aCTtt SY PtlOIAl'IOtl Of'1CII 

IHI. AIIO ..... , .. r~ K..00...IIIG OI IW\01' .. UIT AS AlflOYIO ., 11our1011 OHGI 

.,., NOIAfnOII Olfl(II AOvllll Of '°"' -~,ca ar M.t. IWIJ 
UllttllO(I Ol!Vtl S uctfldil JO CUI& Of (OUIT tO IC l&T\IIICD ,o oc,aan,,., Of lltOTOI Vl,uC\,&S 

IIIOI o-rvl & IIIIQTOA Wlt<ll ~IS 1.A'ftfUl.lY UCllld&O AM) ldUllO 

111()1 OWII."" 0- IIOSUU Uff D&-"GIIOUI 0- Ol~f ~ 

• 

U.,.1 TOUI f(lk)fle &IIO NC)f(HY "'90(1 tOUII CO-.flQ. TO SlMOI OI KINII 411,1,r TIMI Of IMC OAT OI IIIGMf IT 
,.,.., NOIACO. Offl(ll OI O'hlll lUG Offl(II WIIM OI w.n.our A w.uu.act Ol flOIAal (AUit 

OtlY AU. ~WI Ollf A&I. OIOllll. IIA.IS MO aGIAAIOd Of M NOIAIOI OCPAl!IICld .,_ Of IMC ~f 

UII _, _. ~ ...._PAIIO IO•----------------------•'°" 10 NOIAflOII OffCII ~ l(l&Atl flOM MlOOYIM!ka __ _.2,..'t...,..Hlillo,.u..,s ... s ... , --------­
• YOU l&A" 1'C co..m. IOU INAlL IIOf au,111 M UN1l0 lfAIII &lies.a.LI f 10V 00 111\1111. •• , TO ftC 
NOIAhOI OfftCII 'Mf• ______ MO ,-scMt DOCUMtNtAl'IQII WIO flOWICS ~ Ml a M "'9110 
ltAftl "GMI.Y 
~IIONAlCOIOno-dClf flOIATOI: ______________________ _ 

ltcQMMtNDA110N OtwH THAN D!MS ANQ CQNP!D9!ft Pf P!QIADOfl 
l!J COH Of NOIATOt Slh'GI: I PtOIAhON C GUMIIO. ff • UCOUMIIIOII tlllftlC COUit 

DCH...C OCfl"OAII" AIIJl'f 10 f&f COIT Of NOIATIOII HIMCll fVISUMf IO IIChOII 
...... IOU&. caoc. 

aJ OKI Of IIC.IIClllAIOI. I PtOIAIIOII 4 GaMflO, 1r IS ll(OMMCIICKD fkAI nc COUii DUI ...... 
DUlllOAlln &llufl' f0 PAY con Of -....CIIAfiOtl ~· 10 M(TIOII UtJ le flUl (OD( . 

,.,uuT-P.M. t1111HY.tn, 

,· 

' 

100
AA08392



0 

1 

2 

s 

4 

I 

• 
7 

• 
I 

....... .., , • ..,,.,,.,, 1 u1 1.1uu r 1, 

COtlRi COPY 

&TTllNn~!AMflUltl 

A. SCHULTZ -
_., 

OA11 

7/1/93 

H "BABY 0EKO 11 , "DKO 11 

"°". --·--
15 0926577 

OF: 

2135822212 .. 0 1 2 3 4 5 8 7 8 9 ;1 i 

l';'o 
f'-r Fu.~ ~--11-f 3 

~ JI I~! ... ~ J 
d,..J i::a1 -s~'-'t< 

SUPERIOR COURT OF TNE 8TA TE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANQl!LEI 

JUVENIE COURT 

1--­APP. 

COURT NQ._T_Jo_2_27_3 ____ _ 

JAIN: 11~2727 

PROBATION OFFICER'S REPORT 
~1 illATUII ~ WICMAIDUII: 

11 CCP 
0,.11. 

20 ~HITE JOHNNY sn. 
~ 

a, CAIN ENUICE 
IT'l•••TIIIII 

1.PJH -

UNK 
 

L.A., CA goo11 

SCHOOL DATA 
y.:.?. 
~ ·~ ~ .. -.. 

UNSAT. 
• 

NIP 560-3580 3) 

llt===---------+----------+-------+-----~---' ... _,_ 
23~===~~-----~~------r:-c=-=-..,-:---....-:-_...--,,s;...-..___, _____ ..,.. ____ -"---' 

55 24~""""~._._.w.i:;;i,u,.:;...,&.. ____- .;;...;.._;__,;.~---I~----~ 

29 X X X 

711J UO PAQI U !REV 0 .- 191 ------ --··--- - - -

101
AA08393



1 

2 

J 

4 

5 

' 
7 

• 
t 

10 

11 

12 

1l 

14 

15 

,, 
17 

18 

19 

:u 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

ALLEGATIONS CONTINUED: 

. 

REASON FOR HEARING: 

• 015POSITION IKJ FITNESS 

PRESENT OFFENSE: 

• COMPANION (I) NAMI 

• 154 SUITAIHJfY OotHD 

·=--·· ' . 
,.) 

SO\JIICIS OF tWOINA* 

li'J Rtltrrll Doc11ment Cl M,"or 

ALUGA notll CDUIIN& 

-

,. 

• V1ct1ms • W1t11eHtl 

- DISPOSITION 

... 
ELEMENTS AND RELEVANT CIRCUMSTANCES Of THE OFFENSI: 

REGARDING THE PETITION OAltD MARCH 22, 1993! 

ACCORDING TO THE LOS ANGELES POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT DATED 

. . DECEMBER 1't, 1992. ON DECEMBER t'+, 19'32 AT a.oo, OFFICERS RECEIVED 

A RADIO CALL irROM THE MAIN OFFICE AT JOHN MUIR JUNIOR HlGH SCHOOL 

TO INVESTIGATE A POSSIBLE WEAPON ON CAMPUS. IFON OFFICERS' ARRJVAL, 

THEY MET WI•H THE PRINCIPAL, A1I) tNTERVIEWfD SEVERAL 

OF THE WITNESSES. POLICE OFFJCeRS WERE TDLD BY WITNESSES AND 

SCHOOL OFFICIALS THAT A FEMALE STUDfNT WAS IN THE SCHOOL AUDITORIUM 

AT JOHN MUIR FOR CHEER LEADING PRACTICE WITH A GaouP OF OTHER 

STUDENTS. THE MINOR AND FOUR COMPANIONS EllTERED THE AUDI TOR I UM 

THROUGH A SIDE DOOR. THE MINOR ANO ms COMP~IONS BEGAN TO HARASS 

29 J -2- (WHI ii:) 

76,IH•Protl U'4•1Rev. U S2) 

·---- --- ·-
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THE STUDENTS WHO WERE PRACTICING SY ASKIN; SILLY QUEST IONS. 

MINOR'S COMPANION ASKED ONE OF THE YOUNG LADIES WHOSE RADIO WAS 

THAT THATTl1EY WERE LISTENING TO AND THE WITNESS REPLIED THAT IT 

WAS NONE OF HIS BUSINESS. THE MINOR I S COMPANION THEN GOT MAO 

ANO TOLD THE YOUNG LADY THAT HE SHOULD SHOOT HER. AT THAT POINT, 

MINOR WHITE HANDED Ht S COMPANION A SMALL CALIBER SEMI-AUTOMATIC 

7- GUN. IT SHOULD BE NOTED THAT THE GUN WAS POINTED DOWN AT THE 

8 

8 

10 

11 

12 

13 

HI 

1'7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

SIOE AND NEVER . AT THE WITNESS, HO~EVER, SHE WAS STILL AFRAID. 

THE OTHER THREE MINORS THAT weRE PRESENT DURIN& THE tNCIDfNT 

DID NOT PARTICIPATE ACTIVELY. 

AFTER. POLICE TOOK THE STATEMENTS, THEY SHOWED -
THE WITNESSES MJNOR WHITE ANO HIS COMPANION WATE'S PICTURE IN 

THE YEARBOOK OF JOHN MUIR ~UNIOR HIGH SCHOOL. 

THE MI NOR WAS ARRESTED AND BOOKED FOR 

POSSES: ION OF A GuN ON CAMPUS AND RELEASED TO HIS GUARDIAN. 

IN REGARD TO THE PETITION DATED KAY 11 1, 1993: 

ACCORDING TO THE LOS ANGELES POLICe DEPARTMENT (LAPD) REPORT 

DA Teo APRIL 10, 199 :5, OFF tCERS WERE ON VEHICLE PATROL OfUVINC. 

WESTBOUND ON DENKER. AND OBSERVED THE MINOR DRIVING EASTBOUND 

ON DENKER IN A 19990 CHEVY 81:RETTA. THE MINOR ALSO SAW THE POLICE: 

VEHICLE ANO QUICKLY TURNED INTO AN ALLEY AND ACCELERATEO HIS 

VEHICLE FROK lt5 TO 50 TOWARD THE MAJN STREET. A VEHICLE PURSUIT 

ENSUED AS OFFICERS ATTEMPTED TO CATCH THE MINOR, AT ONE POINT, 

-3- (WHITE) 

78ClttQ · PROB. SA litl 
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18 

20 

21 

12 

28 

·-·· 

THE MINOR EXITED THE CAR ANO POLICE OFFICERS HAD TO SET UP A 

PERIMETER BOUNDARY SeARCH FOR THE MINOR, AS THE PER !METER WAS 

BEING ESTABLISHED, OFFICERS OBSeRVED AN INDIVIDUAL WEARING ALL 

DARK CLOTHING EXIT THE FRONT YARD OF THE 

MINOR WAS WALKING WESTBOUtc ON THE SIDEWALK WITH HIS HANDS UP. 

OFFICERS OIRECTED THE MINOI TO THEIR VEHICLE AND DETAINED THE MINOR 

FOR INVESTIGATION, THE MINOR WAS TAKEN INTO CUSTODY WITHOUT 

INCIDENT. 

.... 

-t+- (WHITE) 
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VICTIM: 

NAME 

INJU"Y; PIIOPiRTY L.051 (TYPE /COST I ETC) 

1N5URANCE (0vtAAGt 

llUP.m OF INFOIIIAt.~ (this pag1) 

REFERRAL DOCUMENT 

SUSTAINEO •u.JGATIONS (C0UNT(S)) 

CTS. I THRU IV 

LOSS: I ESTIMATED I.OSS l llsnrunott MIIEAPY MAOe I APPLl!iO ,OIi VICTIM IIUTITIITION luND 

• YES ONO 0 UNI< 0 YES 0 NO 

VICTIM STATEMENT: (If unable to cont1«.1t.111 raon(s) in this section.) 
THIS VICTIM IS lN IEGARD TO THE PETITION DATED 

MAY 11, 1993. AT THE TIME OF DlCTATION, THE VICTIM WAS UNAVAILABLE 

FOR. STATEMENT. PROBATION OFFICER HAVE LET TWO MESSAGES ON THE 

VICTIM'S ANSWER ING MACHINE INSTRUCT INC. THE VICTIM -TO CONTACT 

THE PROBATION DEPARTMENT REGARDING THE. PRESENT MATTER. IF ANY 

INFORMATION IS RECEIVED FROM THE VICTIM PRIOR TO THE COURT 

DATE, IT WI LL BE FORWARDED TO THE COUIT. 

RESTITUTION SUMMARY 

IS THEA£ INSuRANCt TO 
COVER IIESTITUTtON: 

• YES ONO 

PAYM!N1' PLAN 

-5- (WHJTE) 
761969 · P10D 126• • IRev. U tl) 

·,· -

l TOTAL NUMliROF VIICTIUS I ESTIMATi;.') L.05510 All VICTIMS 

!NS-..RANCE COMPAM NAME; AOOAiSS I T!L!PH0Ni NO 

____ VICTIM LIIT CONTINUII NEXT PAGI 

--------·--- ---· ·---
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SENT BY !Superior Court 

PRIOR RECORD: 

AKA'S; 

AGE 1~ 

AGE 15 

:10- 1-83 :10:42AM; 21358?? 21 2~0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 i # 7 

SOUACH 0, llfOIIML/ • -- [j] JAi 

0 J11venil1 CNt _. 0 ,_, (X) ProOl&ion Atc0tdt 
D o-., ,,,... 

2/2D/92 .. LAP0/77TH • COUNT I: 2 '11 PC/12022,S 
PC (ARMED ROBBERY WlTH A HANDGUN). PETITION 
REQUESTED AND FILED 2/20/921 SUSTAJINED, 
DISPOSITION: CAMP-COMMUNITY PLACEMENT. 

1 /4/93 - LAPD - COUNT I: 6!6, 9 PC (FI REARM ON 
SCHOOL CAMPUS), COUNT I I: 12011 (D) PC (POSSESS ION 
OF A HANDGUN). PET lTION REQUESTED AND Fi LED 
3 / 3 / 93, DISPOSITION: PENDING. 

(THIS PERTAINS TO THE PRESENT MATTER.) 

-AGE 15 t+/2/93 - LAPD/77TH .. COUNT I: 1085 I vc LJ)RIVING 
WITHOUT OWNER•S C_ONSENT), COUNT I I : 23103 vc. 
PETITION REQUESTED AND FILED 5/11/9!. DISPOSITION: 
PENDING. 

(THIS PERTAINS TO THE PRESENT MATTER.) 

f -

-6~ (WHITE) 

~6,Ht i'1i;b 1l'4 · IAtv U 121 
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PERSONAL HISTORY: SOURCES OF INFORMAT'io"N (llli• 111111 

GRANDMOTHER, PROBATION RECORDS 

TYPl IISIDU1C£ LENGTH o, occu,AN(Y ~---£NT 
RESIDENCE 

APARTMENT 3 YEARS $13 A MONTH 
OCCUPANTS OF THI HOME GRANDPARENTS, MINOR, FOUR AUNTS, TWO COUSINS 

EMPLOYMliNT STATUS GROSS MONn1L Y WAGE 

,_..,: GROS$~l.YWA<U 

Milor; £MPLOY£0 O(CUPATION 
\JNEMPLOYID 

GAOSS MONTHLY WAGE 

MINOR'S PRESENT I !AST EMfllOYIII/ AOORES5 OTHIR FAMil.Y INCOMI SOLIIICIIMIOV~T 

SEE BELOW 

Additional lnform1tlon 
THE GRANDMOTHER RECEIVES $2,000 A MOtlTH IN AID 

TO FAMILIES WITH DEPENDE!NT CHILDREN (AFDC). 

THE MINOR'S MOTHER IS CURRENTLY USING (CINT. P~ 8) · 

PHYSICALJMENTAL/HIOTIOIIAL HEALTH: 

HEALTH: 0 GOOD (i IAIR • POOR 

_ Na lndlc1tion or d1i111 of s111n1t.1nc inentavemotion11 nHltn problem. 

_s .. below: lndic1tion1cl1lm of s19nlt,can1 pl'li1:cel1~1nc1111motion11 lltaltll problem. 

Additional lnformotion (Duration I Frequency/ Severity of problem) 

MINOR HAS A MILO CASE OF ASTHMA, 

SUBSTANCE AIUSE: 
_No rewrd, 1nd1tttIon.or 1dm1lli0n of 1lcoh01 or contr0111e11wbn1nce 1b1.1se. 

-

X _occ11,on11 or1•p1nm1nt1I u11of _ ...... A11o11L..aC11.1Q~H...,O-L _______________ acxn~led910 

Additional lnf0rm1tion 

...... 
~7- (WHITE) 

76lt6t•P•o~ Ull•(l1v IJ.llJ 
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.... 
, 

1 EMPLOYMENT STATUS: CONT. 

2 ROCK COCAINE AND HAS !..OST CUSTODY OF HER SON oue TO HER DRUG 

s USAGE, 

4 

a 
8 

.,_ 
8 

9 

10 

11 
·,· -12 

13 

14 

15 

18 

11 

11 

1B 

20 

It 

22 

13 

.. 9_ (WHITE) 
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PERSONAL HISTORY: 
(CONTINUED) 

GANG ACTIVITY 

Addltlon1I information 

IEHAVIOR IN SCHOOL ] 
SUSPENSION(S} 

• YES • NO 

REASON 

Additional information 

I] 

• 
YES 

NO 

• Good 

DATl(S) 

2135822212 .. 0 1 2 3 4: 6 7 8 9 :: · 1; 
• • • 4 

• 

soum CJ IHFORMAr.ot.1triis PiQt) 

MINOR, GRANDMOTHER, PROBATION RECORDS, 
SCHOOL 

rum," GIii 

6tND STREET BRIMS 

Fair iJ Poor 

L.CNGTH(S) 

·,· -

THI: MINOR STATED DUIU"5 HIS PR.OBAT ION INTERVIEW 

T,-fAT HE ATTENDED THE YOUTH INTERVENTION PA.-OGRAl'I, HOWEVER, THE 

22 PROBATION OFFICER WAS INFORMED THAT THE MINOR HAS NEVER BEEN 

23 ENROLLED IN THIS PROGRAM. ADDITlONALLT, TH: MINOR'S GRANDMOTHER. 

24 ACKNOWLEDGES THE FACT THAT THE MINOR MILL NOT ATTEND SCHOOL, 

25 

2, 
27 

29 -9- (W~!TE) 
76~Ht•Proll. UM· lllev. 12iU) 

.. . - ~. - . 
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____________ ;all),,... 

SENT ay:superior Cou-~ 213512,.~·2 .. ~ t 2 3 4 s a 7 e s :111 

l 

2 

3 

4 

6 

8 

MINOR'S STATEMENT: 

..... 
! \ 

:· i 
. ' .. 

AS PER LEGAL COUNSEL, THE PROBATION OFFICER WAS ~T 

TO INTERVIEW THE MINOR REGARDING THE FACTS OF ANY :?OLICE CONTACTS. 

THE MINOR STATED THAT HE tS INVOLVED IN THE 62ND 

STREET BRIMS GANG ANO DENIES ANY DRU, USAGE, Tr-IE MINOR STATes 

THAT HE IS PERFORMING Wfl.L AT HOME, LASTLY, "'rHE MI NOR FEELS 

7_ THAT HE SH~ULO 8E TRI~O ON THE JUVENILE LEVEL. 

8 PARENTS' S:ATEMENT: 

8 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

18 

1'7 

18 

19 

90 

21 

22 

23 

THE MINOR I S GRANDMOTHER, JANE ED'WARDS WAS 

INTl:RVIEWED IN REGARD TO THE PRESENT MATTER. SHE STATED SHE 
\' -' 

DID NOT KNOW THE PARTICULARS OF THE PRESl:'.NT OFFf:NSE, SHE STATED 

THAT SHE HAS HAO HER GRANDSON SINCE 198't AND HAS NO CONTROL 

OVER HIM. SHE STATES THAT HE IS OlfFICULT, UNCOOPERATIVf IN 

THE HOM': ANO WILL. NOT GO TO SCHOOL. SHE STATED THAT THE MINOR 

t-tAO A WARRA~T ISSUfO FOR HIS ARREST DUE TO THE FACT THAT HE 010 

NOT AETURN hOME TO GO TO COURT. 

THf MINOR I S GRANDMOTHER AClNOWLEDGeS THAT HE 

IS A GANG MEMBER BUT IS NOT SURE WHETHER HE USES DRUGS OR NOT. 

LASTLY, THE MINOR'S GRANDKOTHER STATED THAT THE 

Ml NOR IS ACT I NG LI KE AN A0UL T SO HE SHOULD BE TR I ED AS AOUL T. 

CONDUCT UNDER SUPERVISION: 

ACCORDING TO THE SUPERVISION OFFICER OF RECORD 

ON FEBRUARY 28, 1992, THE MINOR ftECEIV~!> ;.;~ .>--COi-·1UNl,'1' PLACEMENT, 

-10- (WHlTE) 

78C882C • PROB. IA 1111 
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IN AUGUST OF 1992, THe MINOR WAS RELEASED FROM CAMP KILPATRICK, 

THE MINOR PERFORMED SATISFACTORILY (N CAMP, SUBSEQlENT TO THAT 

DAY, THE MINOR'S PERFOR.MANCE UNDER PROBATlON SIIPEIVIStON HAS 

BEEN MARGINAL TO UNSATISFACTORY• IN THAT, THE Milll>R IS NOT 

ATTENDING SCHOOL. THE MINOR IS CONTINUING TO HAVE CONTACT WITH 

POLICE ANO 15 UNCONTROLLABLE IN THE HOME. 

_LASTLY, THE MINOR IN VIOLATION OF CONDITIONS 

1 1 2, 6, 15 AND 15A AS IT ReLATES TO THE CURRENT MATTER. 

BEHAVIORAL EVALUATION: 

SECTION 70 7 (C) OF THI: WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS 
V ~ 

CODE (WIC) MANDATES A CONS 1 OE RAT ION OF THE MINOR 1 5 AMENABILITY 

AS TO THE FIVE PRESCRIBED CRITERIA: 

- 1 1 - ( WH JT E ) 
78COHC · PROB.SA 1,'12 

1. CRIMINAL SOPHI ST I CM' ION: 

THE MERE FACT THAT THE MINOR WAS ARMED AT 
SCHOOL INDICATES A DEGREE OF· SOPHISTICATION 
AND GANG PARTICIPATION. THE MINOR I S 
OVERALL BEHAVIOR APPEARS TO BE INC~EAS ING 
IN SOPHISTICATION, IN THAT, THE MINOR USES 
W~APONS TO CONFRONT HIS ENEMIES EVEN A 
VERBAL CONFRONTATION, THE MINOl 1 S CR lNINAL 
ACTIVITIES APPEARS TO BE ESCALATHUi IN FRE•QUENCY 
AS WEL.L AS SERIOUSNESS. THE MINOl 1 S OVERALL 
MENTAL DEMEANOR APPEARS TO BE ntAT OF AN 
INDIVIDUAL WITH NO RESPECT FOR AUTHORITY 
AND/OR ADULTS AS IF HE WERE ACTUAU Y AN ADULT 
HIMSELF. THEREFORE, THE MINOR IS DEEMED 
UNFIT AS TO THIS CATEGORY. 

2. EXPIRATION OF COURT'S JURISDICTION: 

THE Mt NOR IS 16 YEARS OF AGF. AND, THE POS !1 I ell L ITY 
REHABILITATING THE MINOR PktO~ fun~ l:'.Xt'IR.ATI°" 

111
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OF THE JUVENILE COURT'S JURISDICTION SEEMS 
LIKELY. ALTHOUGH THE MINOR HAS BEEN PHYSICALLY 
PLACED IN CAMP, HE STILL HAS THE OPTION 
OF THE CALIFORNIA YOUTH AUTHORITY (CYA) 
AVAILABLE TO HIM, THEREFORE, THE MINOR IS 
DEEMED AIIENABLE AS TO THIS CATEGORY. 

PREVIOUS DEL I NQUENT HIS TORY: 

THE MINDI HAS HAO THREE CONTACTS WITH LAW 
ENFORCEMENT TO OATE. THOSE ARRESTS lNCLUOE 
VEHICLE CHARGES., GUN CHARGES AND_ R088flY • 
ALTHOUGH THE MINOR'S CRIMINAL HISTORY rs 
~N EXTREfl:LY ·LONG, THE NATURE OF THE _ MINOR'S 
CRIMfS All£ EQUIVALENT TO THAT OF A VERY INVOLVED 
DELINQUENT CRIMINAL HISTORY. THEREFOIE, 
THE MINOR IS DEEMED UNFIT AS TO THIS CATEGORT. 

PRfVIOUS ATTEMPTS TO REHABIL,ITATE THE MINOR: 
~ ~ 

THE MINOR HAS ,HE BENEFIT OF CAMP-COMMUNITY 
PLACEMENT AND HOME ON PRO8ATION WHICH 80TH 
HAVE PROVEN TO SE INEFFECTIVf IN REHA81LITATJNG 
THE Mlt~OR. HOWEVER, A CONSIOERA8Lf AMOUNT 
OF CONFINEMENT TIME IN CYA JS A FEASIBLE 
OPTION IN RfGA.ROS TO REHABILITATING THIS 
MINOR, THEREFCRE, THE MINOR IS AMENABLE 
AS TO THIS CATEGORY. 

CIRCUMSTANCES AND GRAVITY OF THE O.ill!!fil 

THE CIRCUIISTANCes AND GRAVITY OF THE OFFENSES 
IS THE PMAM0UNT REASON THAT THE MINOR WOll.O 
BE UNFJT FOR JURISDICTION, CARE AND TREATMENT 
OF PR06RMS AVAILABLE TO THE MINOR ANO lliE 
JUVENILE COURT SYSTEM. THE MINOR'S BEHAVIOR 
HAS SHOWN A CALLOUS DISREGARD FOR HUMAN LIP£, 
IN THAT, THE MINOR WAS IN POSSESSION OF A 
HANDGUN OfC SCHOOL PREMISES. FURTHERMOR£, 
THE MtNOR 1 S ACT IONS OF ATTEMPTING TO EVADE 
THE POLlCE ANO OR 1 V ING A STOLEN CAR COlA.D 
HAVE RESULTED IN THe FATAL INIJURY OF TNf 
MINOR, HIS COMPANIONS OR INNOCENT BYSTANDERS, 
FURTHERftORf, THE jl,!_ t NOR I S GANC Ar. T ' ·V fTY 2R04PT:D 
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HIM TO BRING A MEAPON IN A PUBLIC PLACE AND 
IT IS DOUBTFUL THAT THE MINOR WAS IN FEAR 
OF HIS LIFE, AGAIN, DEMONSTRATING THAT He 
HAS NO RESPECT FOR OTHERS OR AUTHORITY, AS 
WELL AS THE RULES AND ReGUL.ATIONS OF THE 
COURT AND THAT OF THE SCHOOL SYSTEM. THfREFORE, 
THE MINOR IS UNFIT AS TO THIS CAiEGORY. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1 

2 

3 

4 

15 

8 IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE MINOR ee FOUND UNFIT 

7- FOR CONSIDERATION PROVISIONS OF THE JUVENILE C,9URT LAW; 

8 

8 

10 

11 

12 

18 

14 

15 

18 

17 

18 

19 

JO 

21 

22 

28 

THAT THE COURT DIRECT THE PROSECUTING ATTORNEY TO FILE AN 

- 'l- (WH tTE) 

l6CltHG · PROB. SA l,12 

-----·-- --·· 

-
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SENT av:superior court :10- 1-93 i10!46AM i 2135e""2l2• 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 il1~ 

- ·--- . 

1 ACCUSATORY PLEA AGAINST THE MINOR lN COUlT OF CRIMJkAL JURISOICTIONJ 

2 THAT THE ORDER FOR OETENTtON REFLECT THAT THE Ml NOR BE RELEASED 

3 TO THE CUSTODY OF LAW ENFORCEMENT PElSONNEL FOR TRANSPORTATION 

4 TO ANO FROM AOUL T PROCEEOINGS1 THAT THE MINOR flEMAf N DETAINED 

5 IN JUVENILE HALLJ THAT THE PETITION BE DISMISSED WITHOUT PREJUDICE, 

8 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 

7_ BARRY J, NIDOR~, 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

IS 

14 

16 

18 

1'7 

18 

18 

20 

21 

22 

29 

PROBATION OFFTCER 

READ AND APPROVED: 

S~BMlTT~O: 6/24/93 
TYPED: 6/25/93 
RM:CJ (8) 

- 1 't - (WHITE) 

78CH2C · PROB. SA 1.'82 

--;---·--

-
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OFFENSE HISTORY 

Prior Convictions (Sustained Petitions} 
tr 

( 

Date Offense Disposition 

.. 02/16/92 

03/22/93 

. ·-
Armed Robbery; 
Unlawful Taking Of A 

~11otor Vehicle 
. -

Possession Of A Weapon 
On School Grounds 

MOST RECENT OP!'DSE 

Petition sustained on 
02/19/92; Camp c01t1Dunity 
placement. 

Inmate found unfit. 

John Lee White is a sixteen year-old Black male convicted in Los 
Angeles County Superior Court on charges of second degree 
robbery/principal armed with a firearm (shotgun). Conviction_ is 
the result of a guilty plea~ Confinement time for the above-listed 
offense has been established at four years. Three years of parole 
time has been assessed. John has been given credit for three 
hundred and eighteen days of time served in custody. 

A~cording to the probation/police report, the circumstances 
su.roun1tlll~e most recent offense are as follows: 

On June 8, 1993 at approximately 1:40 p.m., four Black males (John 
Lee White [the inmate] and co-offenders Michael Walton, Malcolm 

r, and Melvin ) entered the Sanfed Bank. Melvin , 
armed with a semi-automatic handr;un, stated, .,This is a robbery. 
Everyone get down!" Melvin .  and Jahn advanced over the tel 1 er 
counter. They attempted to open the 1-oeked· teller ·arawers. One of 
the tellers gave Melvin  her keys. Melvin  then removed 
$1,2~~-!n miscellaneous currenc1 from the teller drawers. 

Michael Walton and Malcolm  remained in the lobby area of 
the bank. Michael Walton maintained their position with the use of 
a sawed-off shotgun. Be ordered, "Everyone down on the floor!" 

Thereafter. all four suspects fled frCJ111 the be.nk in a Rider l'QOVing· 
· -:van. Police officers were provided with a description of the 

vehicle. Police officers then observed the suspects' vehicle 
travelin9 eastbound on the Santa Monica Freeway (10 Freewar) at 

.Washington Blvd. The police officers attempted to make a stop of 
the suspects• vehicle. John (the driver of the van) refused to 
complr with the police officers' orders to atop and a '9ehicle 

.pursuit ensued. John •topped the v1111 in the vicinitr of La Brea 
·-.avenue and Coliseum Street. Nicbael Wal ton and Malcolm  

fled from the scene on foot. The police officers then took Melvin 
 and John into custody. The pol ice officers searched the 

i-mmedi~te area. Malcolm  and Michael Walton were 
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subsequently located and taken into custody. During the 
die-booking search, detectives recovered $1.212 from Melvin Jones' 
pants pockets. 

CO-OFFENDERS 

. -Michael Wal ton 

Melvin  

... , ... 

Malcolm  

~ 

Unknown 

Unknown 

Unknown 

VICTIM OR NEXT OF KIN IMPACT STATEMENT 

Disposition 

This co-offender 
vas referred to the 
C.lifornia Youth 
Authoritr for an 
amenability 
determination 
study; however, the 
final disposition 
of his case is not 
shown. 

This co-offender 
was handled as a 
juvenile, with the 
final disposition 
of his case being 
unknown. 

This co-offender 
was handled as a 
juvenile, with the 
final dispositian 
of his case being 
unknown. 

According to the probation report, the tellers involved in the bank 
robbery were extremely traumati~ed. One of the tellers was unable 
to work for one week. Counseling was provided by the bank. The 
teller described the ordeal as very traumatic and stated that, at 

• the time of the robbery, she hid underneath her desk. She was 
observed b7 one of the suspects vho ordered her to come out from 
under her desk at qunpoint. She tried to remain calm; ret she was 
frightened that the suspect would becOlfte agitated and shoot her. 
After the suspects left the bank, she sobbed uncontrollably. At 
'the preliminary hearing. the IDtlre si9ht of the suspects rekindled 
her fear. She vas overcome by emotion and, initiallr, •he was 
unable to testify. Althou9h she has been seen in therapy, she has· 
remained depressed. Accordinq to the victim, simply drivinQ in the 
area where the suspects were apprehendee makes her nervous. 
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OFFENDER'S VERSION 

John has previously pled quilty to the above-listed offense. He 
essentially agreed vi th the detai 1 s provided by the probation 
report. Be admitted he was the driver of the getaway vehicle. 

CORRECTIONAL EXPERIENCE 

John was initially arrested on Pebruar1 20, 1992 by the Los Angeles 
Police Department on charges of armed robbery. The petition was 
sustained on .. Pebruary 20, 1992 and John was ordered to the 
probation department's camp conmuni ty placement program. According 
to John, he spent seven ·months in Camp ltilpatrick. Probation 
records indicate that John performed satisfactorily in the camp 
community placement program. Bovever, once he was released back 
into the community, John was not attending school; he continued to 
have contacts with law enforcement; he continued to associate with 
gang members; and he continued to defy his grandparents' efforts to 
supervise him. 

On January 4, 1993, John was arrested by the Los Angeles Police 
Department. and charged with being in possession of a weapon on 
school grounds. John claimed this was a case of mistaken identity 
and that he was not in possession of a weapon. 

On April 10, 1993, John was arrested and charged with reckless 
driving and unlawful taking of a motor vehicle. Joti.~•s story is 
that a friend of his let him drive a stolen car. John denied he 
knew the vehicle was stolen. 

From the · records, it appears that John's -criminal activity is 
increasing in frequency and severity. Camp community placement and 
home on probation have proven ineffective ,in modifying his 
behavior. The instant offense is extremely serious. The victims 
were severely traumatized and it is a matter of pure luck that no 
one was injured. John does not appear to have any guilt, concern, 
or remorse regarding his behavior. In fact, he claimed that, 
although he knew robbin9 banks-was wron~, he did not con.sider. it 
serious. 

OUTSTANDING WARRANTS/PENDING CHARGES 

None known. 
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INTRODUCTION 

~ohn Lee White is a sixteen year-old African-American male 
convicted in Los Angeles County Superior Court of charges of second 
degree robber7/principal armed with a shotgun. John is an unfit 
juvenile. He has been referred to the California Youth Authority 
for a diaqnostic evaluation to determine his amenability to 
training and treatment services offered by the California Youth 
Authority. 

According to the accompanying probation report, John and three 
co-offenders entered the Sanfed Bank and connitted an armed 
robbery. 

John has a prior record of arrests for armed robberr, possession of 
a weapon on school grounds, and unlawful taking of a motor vehicle. 
Be has had the benefit of probation supervision in the community 
and one previous commitment to junior probation camp. John is an 
admitted gang member (62 Brim Bloods Gang). John became a 9ang 
member at age fourteen. His monikAU" is "Deko." John's gang 
activity has interfered with his ability to attend school on a 
regular basis. He has become increasingly dependent on his gang 
for most of his social activities. According to John, the bank 
robbery was arranged by an older fellow gang member who supplied 
the boys with a rented getaway vehicle and a weapon. John stated 
he committed the bank robbery even though he knew it was wrong 
because be did not want to get a .. jacket" as a coward with the 
other gang members. Her also stated that, if he had declined to go 
along with the plan to rob the bank, he would have be~n punished by 
his fellow gang members. 

John's previous performance on a grant of juvenile probation was 
considered marginal to unsatisfactory, noting that he was not 
attending school, continued to have contact with law enforcement, 
and was out of control at home. 

John does not appear to have benefited from efforts on his behalf · 
by the courts and the probation departaent. 

SOCIAL HISTORY 

FAMILY BACJCGROUND 

John is one of three children born to his mother. John's natural 
parents were never married and John's natural father, Michael 
Walton, is deceased. John stated he last saw his natural father 
when he was six 7ears old.. John and his two sisters (ages fourteen 
and nine) have reside~v'it~ his maternal grandmother and 
grandfather for most of their lives. According to John, his mother 
is a cocaine addict who cannot care for herself or her children and 
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who has a history of arrests. John's grandmother has stated that 
~be cannot control John at !:Lome, noting that be is difficult and 
uncooperative and that he will not attend school. John's 
gra.ndmother is aware that John is a gang member, al though she 
cannot confirm or deny that he used narcotics. (John admitted that 
he used marijuana 011 a daily basis.) John denied a history of 
abuse or neglect in his grandparents• home. Be believes his 
grandmother will allow him to return to her home when he is 
ref erred to parole. However. John stated that his qrandparents are 
not visiting him durinq the time he is incarcerated and he doubts 
he will have anr contact with them throughout b.is custody time. 

PEER ASSOCIATES 

John has admitted to membership in the "62 Brims (Bloods) Gang." 
He has been a gang member since age fourteen. John is heavily 
dependent upon his gang. His gang has become a sort of extended 
family. John's loyalty to his gang exceeds his obligation to obey 
the law or to abide by his grandparents' efforts to supervise or 
structure his behavior. In the instant offense, John would rather 
have risked death or jail than to have appeared cowardly to bis 
fellow gang members. 

COMMUNITY BAe,rn'ROUND 

Records reflect that John vas born and raised in Los Angeles, 
California. His grandparents live in an inaer-city neighborhood 
noted for high rates of crime, gang activity, and drug trafficking. 

ACADEMIC EDUCATION 

Probation records indicate that John last completed the ninth 
grade. John admitted to chronic truancy. He claimed ta that 
pressure from rival gang members have interfered with his abilitr 
to attend school on a regular basis. John's grandmother has 
indicated that John refused to attend school. 

Academic testing at the Southern Reception Center and Clinic 
reveals that John is reading at the 6.4 grade-level, performing 
math at· the 4.7 grade-level, and understanding language at the 3.3 
grade-level, for an overall total battery for basic academic skills 
equivalent to a 4.9 grade-level. 

· John denied he has ever been a special education student. 
Apparently, his poor academic shoving is the result of infrequent 
attendance in a regular school program. 
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION/WORK EXPERIENCE 

( 

3dhn's only work experience ha..s been selling candy. He has yet to 
set vocational goals for himself. His response to the vocational 
interest and aptitude assessment reveals an interest in mechanics. 
In whatever program John is eventually placed, he would benefit 
from participation in work experience/vocational training and 
employability skills training. 

ALCOHOL/DRUG USE AND ABUSE 

John admitted to the use of mariJuana on a daily basis. Probation 
records also indicate that John drank alcohol occasionally. John 
stated he believes he was able to conceal his drug use from his 
grandmother by using eye drops so she would -hot observe his eyes 
being red. He denied he was under the influence of drugs or 
alcohol when he committed the instant offense. 

SELF PERCEPTIONS 

John does not regard himself as a danger to the carmnunity. Be does 
not believe he is as seriously delinquent as his record would 
indicate. According to John, he did not believe participating in 
a .bank robbery was a "serious" crime and, furthermore, he believed 
he and his ca-offenders would be successful in getting away. He 
related that he went along with the robbery because he did not want 
the other gang members to think he was a coward. He acknowledged 
that he gave no thought to the possibility that the victims might 
be injured or traumatized or that he himself may have been injured 
during the arrest procedure. John believes that an appropriate 
c:lispi>sition in his case would be commitment ta the California Youth 
~~thority. He believes he would benefit from participation in a 
California Youth Authority program of continuing education, 
counseling, and work experience or vacatianal training. John 
believes that what he needs most to turn his life around is to be 
given "another chance." 

CLINICAL IMPRESSIONS 

In the clinical interview, John Lee White was polite, cooperative, 
and respectful. He is a thin, small young man who appears to be 
even younger than his stated chronological age of sisteen. Jahn is 
an inarticulate, quiet, and shy-appearing individual who 
demonstrates marked immaturity. John does not impress as highly 
sophisticated or hardcore in a criminal sense. Rather, he 
impresses as a careless, naive, passive, and easily led ~ounq man. 
Needless to say# John's judgment is · ei::tremely poor. John's 
immaturity, poor judgment, and dependence upon his gang have 
combined to make him a dangerous individual in the community. He 
does not appear to understand or appreciate the serious nature of 

WHITE, John Lee . j(A400 SRCC SOCIAL HISTORY 

120
AA08412



( ( 

<7> 

the charges against him. John acknowledges that he knew what he 
v~s doing was wrong, but that he went along anyway because he did 
not want to disappoint his co-offenders. 

John's pattern of behavior is common to ma.ny delinquent youths. 
Coinciding with the onset of adolescence, John joined a youth gang, 
began to ditch school and defy authority, and involved himself in 
repeated violations of the rights and property of others. 
Probation supervision in the aatnmunity and referral to the 
probation department• s camp conmunit.r placement program have proved 
ineffective. John appears to be coutent to drift aimlesslr through 
life in a hedonistic fashion seizing whatever opportw:iity comes up, 
including criminal activity, with no thought of the consequences. 
He has made little to no effort to obtain job skills or to prepare 
himself to live independently as an adult. John's immaturity and 
need for approval from older gang members have led directly to his 
involvement in the instant offense. 

John does not appear to be an appropriate candidate for conmi.tment 
to state prison. He is, after all, only sizteen years old. There 
have been minimal prior rehabilitative efforts. John's small 
stature, immaturity, and passive nature would make him a vulnerable 
target for o1d~r. ~o~~ ha=dcore inmates in a state prison setting. 

Given the current Superior Court charges, California Youth 
Authority jurisdiction over John's case would extend to age 
twenty-five. John appears to be capable of materially benefiting 
from California Youth Authority programs of continuing education, 
counseling, and participation in work experience/vocational 
training. Cammi tment to the California Youth Authority, as opposed 
to housing in the California Youth Authority pursuant to Section 
1731.S(c} WIC, would require John to appear before the Youthful 
Offender Parole Board on an annual basis to assess his progress in 
program.and to assess his readiness ior parole. Sufficient time 
remains in the jurisdiction and confinement time available to 
effect needed attitudinal and behavioral changes. 

RISK ASSESSMENT 

John denies suicidal ideation ar intent. There is no indication 
that he is assaultive or aggressive toward others. John is 
extremely small-statured and quite slender. He could easily become 
a victim of larger more predatory inmates. It is also noted that 
he suffers from asthma. 

There is no history of escape from an institutional setting. John 
is quite unsopbistic•ted in a criminal sense. 
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Swing: ~ -. ·: ..,.. ·: · - · ··,7 - · :. ,... · · • Importance Ra ting 1 . · _ :~ :-~-~"·. ' ~ 

Work/Academic/Vocational ...... 
r .. 

Elementar:,/llig~ School: 
-

-~-~- · · __ :~:. lmpox:tance Rating 2 · 

., 
' -· 

...... - ; -.,.,, . ~ .-. 
. •"'- , ... ·~-~ 

- ~reatment/Ma.naqemen,t .-

: .. . -

Re;ular/General : . • • 

Custody/Security 

Moderate: Importance Rating 4 

Age/Maturity 

Late Adolescence: Importance Rating 5 

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE AVAILABLE PROGRAMS 

Priority: l Bumber: 10 Title: Nelles-Regular 

Priority: 2 Humber: 35 Title: P3so Robles 

Urgency Rating B 

Urgency Rating B 

It should be noted that John is extremely small physically and 
institutionally unsophisticated. He could easily be victimiced if 
placed with older, more mature, or physically aggressive wards. 

RECOMMENDED LONG-RAJGE PLAif 

John is espected to return to the home of his grandmother upon 
referral to parole. Re should be encouraged to continue his 
educa~ion and obtain some type of trade or vocational graining. 

Date: Harch-2. 1994 

&pprav
8
:~ b~J Prepo

8
r~~ 

'. , , r • 
Supv. Casework Specialist I 

jar/Typed: Narch ·24, 1994 
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.. 

ti&att-t ·g,g / 
Diane Lubeck. LCSW 
Parole &gent I - . 

. 
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, , PSYCHIATRIC EVALUATION 

REASON FOR REFERRAL 

This evaluation is part of a court-ordered 904'ay diagnostic study. Defendant 
was informed of ay 1dentity end the purpose of the interview. He was. 
furthemore. told that the 1nfonaat1on he provided ae • ight be used in the 
report. and could have significant bearing on the disposition of his case. 

PRIOR PSYCHIATRIC/PSYCHOLO&ICAL EVALUATIONS 

No prior psych1atrtc evaluation was recorded tn the ftle. 

METHOD OF EVALUATION 

One-hour c11n1ca1 1nterv1ew with the defendant and review of records in file. 
including the Probation Officer's Report. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Family and background 1nfonnation are detailed in the social history (q.v.). 
Briefly. according to the defendant. he was born and raised in the Los 
Angeles area. He 1s the oldest of three children. He has two younger 
sisters. ages 11 and 14. The defendant stated that his parents separated when 
he was 7 years old. He said that presently he has no contact with his 1110ther 
or father. and does not know where they are living. According to the referral 
documents. his 110ther lost custody of the minor. due to her drug usage (rock 
cocaine). 

At the time of h1s arrest. he sa1d that he was living with his grandmother. 
grandfather. and two younger siblings. He said that his grandfather ts a 
retired security guard. When asked about conflicts with his grandparents. he 
said that problems at home relate to his not going to school. and staying out 
with gang members from 24 hours up to three days. His grandmother bad stated 
that she •does not have any control over him. He is difficult and 
uncooperative at h011e. He w111 not attend school.• She had also stated that 
she was aware that the defendant is a gang Mmber. 

According to the defendant, he completed the 9th grade while tn cuip . He said 
that he was not attending school at the ti111e of h1s arrest •because I had too 
11any enl!ll1es (gang related).•. He satd that he had been expelled from school 
1n the 8th grade for truancy·. He was not employed and has no work history. 
Medical history 1s unr"'efllarkable. except for bronchia1 asthtaa since early 
childhood for which he 1s taking Theodor, and some ruidual effects of a 
fractured ankle sustained when he was 9 or 10 years old. 

When asked about the use of drugs or a lcoho 1. he stated that he •tried beer 
last year-didn't 11ke it. was using marijuana for 6 or 7 110nths. about 3 

-times a week.• According to the information 1n the,F1tness Report. he had told 
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the Probation Officer that he began smoking marijuana when he was 15 years old 
and uses marijuana approximately 4 times a week. When asked about 
gang-related activity. he stated that he was 1n a •e1oods gang• for two years 
prior to his arrest. Adding that he was •jUJll?ed in,• when he was 14 years 
old. He described it as a •very big gang.• When asked about gang act1v1t1es, 
he replied. •Don't know.• He said that his gang ac,n11ter 1s •oelto. • When 
asked what his aoniker aeans. he atso replied. •1 don't know.• 

When asked about prior offenses. the • inor said that he had only one prior 
offense. when he was 15 years old, for robbery. for which he went to cuip for 
several aonths. Accon:ltng to tl1s juvenile record. the • 1nor has had three 
prior offenses. Hews arrested when he was 14 years old for anaed robbery. 
(vehicle theft) for which he was ordered to CCP. When he was 15 years old. he 
was again arrested for having a handgun on probation and possessfon of a 
weapon at school for which he was also ordered to CCP. About 3 aonths later 
(about 4 months prior to the 1nstant offense). he was arrested for reckless 
driving and taking a vehicle without owner's consent. 

The current offense occurred when the defendant was 16 years old. He was 
charged with ar~d robbery invo 1v1ng the use of a shotgun. According to the 
Probation Officer's Report sublllitted 8-19-93, the defendant and three 
accomplices entered Cen-Fed Bank .•• anned with a semi-automatic handgun and a 
sawed-off shotgun at about 1 :40 p.111., and announced: •This is a robbery. 
Everyone get down!• When asked about the ci n:umstances of the bank robbery. 
he replied that 1t was not gang related, stating, •t robbed a bank--don't want 
total~ about 1t because I want to forget about 1t.• 

MENTAL STATUS EXAMINATION 

The defendant 1s a 16-year-old Black Male of short stature and slight build. 
He 1s about 5 feet. 6 inches tall. and weighs approxiA1o11telJ, _125 pounds. He 
has no noticeable tattoos. He was dressed 1n 1nst1tutiana 1 garb, ireat1y 
groomed, and appeared ta 11111nta1n good personal hygiene. He showed no unusual 
fllinAe-f"i~fflS ~r expressions. ff1s attitude toward the interviewer was passively 
compliant .and courteous. Throughout ~lte interview, he was calm, pleasant. and 
attentive. However. he declined to d1scuss iaatters pertaining to himself. 
gang-involved act1vit1es. or the present offense. He appeared ta be 1n no 
apparent distress. He -was alert and fully oriented far t1nte, place. and 
person. There was no evidence of aemory impairment or other signs of 
organ1c1ty. His speech was clear. end verbal responses were coherent and 
relevant to the subject matter. Cognitively. he appeared to be functioning 
within the low .... verage intellectual range, based upon vocabulary and verbal 
responses. Thought content was negative for psychotic or delusional 
aaterial. Thought pr-ocesses were organized and goal-directed. He had 
sufficient 1nstght 1nto his present personal and legal pn,blems. He 
demonstrated a correct understandtng of the sentencing process, as well as the 
the purpo!ie of the 90-day evaluat1an. stating that he •took a dul because 
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1t was a good deal for 4 years. instead of a lot a>re time. Discrepancies 
between 1nfonut1on e11c1ted from the defendant end that 1n the referral 
documents. suggested his resP,onses aay be of questionable validity. 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

There are no s1gns of psychosis or 1111>a1red mental functioning on aental 
status examination. 

The 11inor was on probation for robbery at the t1me of h1s pres•t arrest. He 
had been released fr011 canap about 11 _,nths prior to the instant offense. He 
had been a aenaber of a criminal street gang since 14 years of age. His 
juven11e record 1nd1cates a pattern of criminal behavior. starting at age 14. 
to the time of the 1nstaftt-i)ffense. He had been ordered to CCP for two prior 
offenses. Performance under probation supervisfon was described as aaarginal 
to unsatisfactory. and he continued to have adverse contact with law 
enforcement, and continued to participate 1n gang acthity. In the present 
offense. the 1nvest1gat1ng officer stated that the 11inor •had not displayed 
any remorse.• According to the Probation Officer's Fitness Report 
evaluation: •criminal behavior has continued to escalate in seriousness. 
(Defendant) does not have any respect for authority and/or adults, and 
rehabilitative efforts, CCP, and HOP have been ineffective.• 

DIAGNOSIS (PER DSM-III-R CRITERIA} 

Axis ·I: 1) 312.20 Conduct disorder. group type 
Severity: severe. with strong antisocial traits 

2) 305.20 Cannabis abuse. in incarceration remission 

Axis II: 

Axis III: 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Developing antisocial personality disorder 

No contributing Axis 111 diagnosis 

At the present t1ae. the • 1nor states that he is !fo1ng to stop gangbanging 
because of the trouble you get 1nto with people you know.• He states that he 
hopes that he can continue school while incarcerated at CYA. and then continue 
with college after he 1s released. He said that he hopes to beconie a lawyer 
or a probation officer •because 1t's easy 1110ney.• 

In SU111111ry. although the •1nor's past history 1s inconsistent with interest in 
educational or vocational pursuits. he •Y. at this time, benefit from 
education and vocational programs at the Youth Authority. as well as avoiding 
the negative 1nfluence of older. hardcore criminals in 1n alternate facility 
at this juncture. 
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December 28. 1993 

December 28. 1993 
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~/L......__ ~ / 
Dictated bk 2J1#.c..?={;z/ ,4 / 

Harold H. Kates. N.D .• S~ych1atrist 
Diplomate. -.erican Board of Psychiatry & Ne rology ~q 7 'f 

Reviewed by: 

5906t 

WHITE. John 

' ' {~(pi)ft,f;,-, 
[.,.,~ 

aron Rose Blasl. LCSW. 
uperv1s1ng Casework Specialist II 

S_!tCC PSYCHIATRIC EVAtlJATION 
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:.J""A&tl!I,.;-~• ...,,- •"'- tvu,n~-,•••----• • 

lJSTODY ISECtJIUT\' Cl..ASSmCA nos 
, u,o (11111) 

M A 4 0 0 

. Yc:ars(rouncl:il)ofcaafUICIDCDltimcormu.imwnconfincmcnt 
lime for M f's (from coun order): 
One., mrec o 
Fourcoux 1 
Sevcnormorc 3 / · (20) · 

_ Number or incidentS mvolviJac assault or weapons in non-YA 
pla=mcnts: 
.None 0 
One I 
Twoormarc l 

·- Age at r1m cumined pctition/caaviclien: 

0 _(11) 

Fifaeen or under 1 
Si:stcen o, older O ___L_p.,) 

1. Numbc:rof doc:umcrncdrunawayslescapes from homc,in,upor 
fOSICI' home. non-sccwc county nnchcs/camps: 
None 0 
One 1 
Two or more 2 - Lr-3) 

S. Number of documented escapes. conspiracies to escape from 
prior se::urc facilities ar any YA facility fmcludina: camps) 
during Ibis or pr:vious mys: 
Non: 0 
One 1 
Twoormore 3 Lr-:) 

6. Gans activity aridcnwication/as:sociauon as indicated on G:ini; 
Jnronna&ion Sheet (Fonn YA 8.430): 
Non: 0 
Yes I _l_r-s, 

7. Number of YA Level •B· DDMS true findin;s: 
None: 0 . 
One 3 
Two i,rmorc 5 ___!d_r..6) 

L Number at YA Level ·ir J>DMS cruc findings involvin, as­
sault. baucy (includin&: sexual auack). or weapons: 

"None 0 
One l . 
Twoarllleft 2 0 _(17) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

W H I T E J L --------------Offender, Lui 11,:amc. F,na 11111,&1 
f6 -19l 

JO. Off ender is a Board Cau:gory I or II: has 3 or more cscar,cs :ind/ 
or runaways er any history of arson or so olfcnscs: 

NOTE: A •yes• on ileffl 10 permanently esdudcs offender 
&om camp considcr2tion. 

No A 
Yes B 

11. Offender meets one or man: additional camp adu~imury 
aitcri:i as defined in the l&C ProJ;Dm Ca~ue: 

No A jf 
"nS-S _d_(JS) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
TOTAL Add fh-c l'Oims to SUBTOTAL B if·,cs• was indie1tcd 
on ciuu:r ilCm JO or J I and cnu:r toeal here: ? 

_Q ~(36-37) 

fl;QTE.: tr ·yes• was indicalcd on both. add only • aor.al of live 
JIOints. 

11\0JCA ,cl> PROGRAMMING 

1.imi1cd 
Modcr.uc 
Mi:dium 

0-4 
S-10 

11 - HI 

G) 
B 
C 

Cu9Q<1•·'"r:cun•y o,:rmdc If rc"·icwcr bcliC"'CS WI 101:il SC~ 

docs notaa:ur:uely match CUSlOdy/Sccurit)' Level arr,mrn;ite rnr 
offender. indic:a1c ai,propri011c level bclo"·. Wtgi CuaOdy/Sccu­
rity Lc,·cl iuppropri:uc? Docs ofl'cndcr need •cios:· CUSIOd)•/ 
Sc::unty7 If so, fully document an reverse. 

c:;tc 
• ii 

Close D 
SUBmTAL A, 
(Md ICOl'CS Cram ilcms J -1): __(}__ 2(28-:?9) •------------------

9. Farreclassif,cauon only: On: poim for evc:y two conscc:uti,..c 
IDOft1hs olTendo' has panicipued in pmpwn with no IC:ious 
im,blcms n:poned (oftenclc:rscam oncpointrorcach such month'. 
.ir..-:amp): (7 C) 

_(3().31) 
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

SUBTQTALB 
(Subuaa pointS from i1em 9 from Subloial A} - if9 is J:TC3tcr lhan 
Subtotal A. auer ·oo·: t) 

__ -2...02-33> 

~~J 
' -----------......,....., 

Sficc_ 

RC3SOII com;llctcd: 
Clinic 
Annu:il 
Tr:1nsfcr 
Parole Vioblor/ 
Rccommitmc:nts 

3 

• 

.E_.3-0~-:z ¢. 
Mu. 0.1 vT 

(40-:~} 

-· ~ 
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V 

-,, ~ 
1IARD'S NAME: _______________ _ YA ~'L~GER;. _____ _ -

/'!•3-t>,? )ATE OFBIR1H: _____ AGE: ___ DA TE OF MOST R.EC'E.''T AD'.\tlSSION:_~1,.!..._ ___ __.,_ ___ _J..___ 

-fEALTH/M_plCAL INFORMATIO~ 
JISION la'swidard HEARNG B Sw,(!:ud 'EPJC:\TIQl\f ~one 

0 Wears Glasses • Needs Gla.ues 
0 We:L"S Hearin1 Aid 
0 N~ H::uing Aid 

J iie:1hh problems o: physbl handicaps which 1n3y aff c=:t program d:::isions h:l\"C been id:nti!ic:1 
Consulwioa with medical swT is ad,.-iscd. 

• 
• 

Yes-No Need 
ForConccm 
Y:s • May A."Tc:t 
ktiavior 

Problem identified: _______________________________ _ 

Ilia·· ~ ....... 
~fc.:ii::31 section completed by: (Initial) ~ "" .I"~ 

LA~GUAGE st:RVEY I s-•--h 3"d • ~ .. g, .. •r c:--.. in1 :r,g 
1. F:m language learned: E.:1glish E! Spanish O Ot.'ier ___ • • ,,, · ., , • tr •·· 

2. Lanpge used most at home: English el" Spanish O Othe: I • ~~sed . 
3. U11CU3F used with parents: English ~ Spanish O Ot."ler I O r-ai!ed : See e~uc3.IJ0n file for r:swlS 
4. Lan;uage ase:1 most by adults at home: c.'lglish CJ Sp311tsh • Ocher ---! ~o{ tull :-valLl.lUOR .• 
• II •1 -- c1.r lhc Enalilh. adrniniJlcr t..cuaa• Ancafflllffl ScaJc io d~c :nc~ ;nofiacni:y. V-- Sa-...:n,n1 =st not ad.':UIUSl::':d 

EDUCATIOSAL BACKGROL"SD CAc r:mmcd b' \L:wa V;rjfv 11.h;n !.?-'!K~"'!; r. :-;;,:!v-:: > 
LAST SCHOOL ATT'£.'l.1>'£D: .,. ~~.\ \l.. • .,. ~ Ni."""' CITY: \...0~ ~t!es, ORADE: t c 
m~ of scsooL LAST t.mw;;n· . I HAs PREvtot.·s!.. Y sEE.'i Pt.ACED c,.; sr>ECIA!.. EoucA nos. • 
REGULAR HIGH OR • AI>l:LTOR CO~iML~'ITY • • 
JUNIOR. HIGH SCHOOL COM.nR. CO( T =oE 
COh'TINtJATION 12f TRADE OR VOCATIOSAL • <OwitTSC:-iOOL • 
$C..fQOL SCHQOt, 

HOW'LONCi SINCE LAST ATI'£'-1)£D: _ Yff-1:: mos. (JtQA't-ca_y how 1on,.~e qc ar t!aae last aaended.. ____ _ 

-.. 
WAS A! I::.."1DING SCHOOL WHE..'I ARR.ES,:.O OR VIOLATED: 0 WAS ~OT Al ,:.="-":>ISG SCHOOL: I3' 

REASON NOT ATTEND.ING; 

PASS-:D GED 

• 
ORA!>UATSD 

• 
. ,esERVATIONS- DURL'ilG TESTING 

SL~ 
VACATION 

• 

tl -;;:: w~p·s BEHAVIOR DL"R~G g;SJ?".'Q-W:f,,S , PP~O;,S!A': 

EX?::-t LEO OR 

SUS?CW° 

Qtm'OR 
I>R.On>ED OUT 

. • 

lilt ACADEMIC TESnNCi 
nm FOLLOWING BEHA VJORS WER.£0BSERVED A.'-1) SHOtr .D &£ • ,-

. CONSIDERED IN ASSESSING r,e v ALIDITY OF rn:E TEST a.ESUL Ts. ,! vocA n~NAL ,:.STING 

· C R.anc!om ffl.lRin& of dlC cadc:mic tam · O Had dil!"iculty cancr:n:aan& m IUb ' 
_ • lt.ndorn mcl::n1 o( die •oca&aanal -m1en11 1:::l Did not pay a1Zenuan {c.s. da~) · 

C Did no: mab: an el'lorl . :J ~ ccr,.;,lu.~ a~ bc:.,i- asllld 
0 Disru;Hi,rc bchaYior - Cave up euilr · • ' -- , 
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\U-~ ~nT)ll.AL ~UNUIT!U~ 
-~ "11121,,, { { 
-~ !m!e: This pers0tt ,49M not have 
correctfonal erogram. 

a physical condition wh;ch limits capacity ta participate f 

n-Thfs person.!!!!.• physical candft1on whfch 11mfts capacity ta p1rtfcfp1te 1n a correc 
'4tlpragram • 

I r,u. CIIJ /A/A_ 
DENTAL STATUS REPORT 

•1 tlQ oi OIGO• IIG ;>£"1'111. :.""'E IIIES THIS ... R: ~~111£• IF IIN'I"' 

tn'Dllllt C:OJG"..121) ( > 

\) .., 11• c:oaplet .. at uotaer 1••t1at1.• 

> Coaplete ••r•:! ~I!.. , Will '-• a •••tel ••ld apprcur:1.•t•17 

> hc,Het 

!LT. lfil•on 

•1•• 

..... ,__. 

·•. 

---... --.--...----

.. .. . . . ... . . .. . . : .. ~ 
' . 

. • 
· .,,. .... •· • Oe1e · "°" O 8 1133 I ~'it.le . W H [ r E J OH N 

t·cno:,~:-.  
 ....:wi,--."-----~-------
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·c:au•T ICIICC• .. &l 

C}.JUVENIL~ 0~~;'.;fJ:AL/ 
,-c ......... CD•,o•u•,c..•~t.tcN .. O•te 01• &.Aa(./~'t-•CAI,. MA•DtCAP 

DHo ·~YIU 1au• .. 1T .. ~,CALM-Tai{~ 

ADOa&aa OI' aCNOQI. 

n• (!,•~"~~;~7 efeC:TY, C-TACT UOAMU: tJ • 6 • ~ • 3 t C, r2,3)'l2 <o-£32= 
FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS !INCLUDE SIGNIFICANT RELilTIDNSHIP$-SIBLING$-CHIL0REN"'-EGAL GUAIIDIANISII 

lltELATION GE 

FATHER 

MOTHER 

SftOUSE 

SIBLINGS 

•trt•••~ orPt••c 

"PC. di 1 / 1_~~~) 
W i+h hr.Qw--rn 

ADD .. £SS tNUM9£,.,aT" EE T-C IT Y 4T ATE •Z 1- C0DEI T£LE-.. 0NE NUM• E" 

CO-OFFENDERS IMDST RECENT OFFENSEI 

AGE 

FOR YOUTH AUTHORITY USE ONLY 

1'~•TAifllll't ao••n~ 
NI.At11•C Cat1.ar,11T 

I •••••"'••T•• •avuu,co 

• v,u::c • .,n • oi .. 1t:.----------------------- c~:-.~: .... • ::.:=-c 
•T4fv:l 

o~~=••OTMEN"r o~g~:..~~c:'E~LT •~~;.. .. UTME~T O01AG.NOaT1C _________ _ O"E.JECT 

...... T•r•t .. 4 .. •••• 

....... • .. ~ ........ . 
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:r'A&t.....,,..~ ur •~ '"'""n,u, • u--..,. 
USTODYISECUJUn' CLASSmCA nos 
.\l.510(11,..) 

,.- --......,. ....... ._.__._ .. __ --~---- · 
' 

- -~ .. ...--.-r ___________ ,...,,. ___ ___ ,.. \ 

M A 4 0 0 
YAcrM• 

(1-5) 

Ycars(roundcfl)ofcoafmc::mc:nttimcormuimwn confinement 
lime for M •·s (from a,muricr): 
One ID dirt.le 0 
Fourto six 1 / · 
Sevenormorc 3 _(20) · 

_ Nmnbcr of incidcnlS mvolvift& assault or weapons in non-YA 
placcmenlS: 
None 0 
One J 
Twoormarc l 

;. Age at r.m IUStaincd pelit.iol\lconviction: 
0 _r-1, 

Fi!u:en or under 1 
Sixteen or older 0 _1_(22) 

I. Nwnbct'of documc:rned nmaways/e.scapcs from home.group or 
fosu:r homc.11m1-sccwc county ranches/camps: 
None 0 
One J 
Twoormore 2 • £-.r-3) 

S. Number or documented cscapc:s.-conspiracics 10 escape from 
-prior secure facilities or any YA facility (includini,: camps) 
during lhis or pn:vious mys: 
None 0 
One 1 
Twoormorc 3 __i2_(24) 

6. Gang activiey oridentification/associalion as indicated on Gan~ 
Inromwion Sheet (Fann YA 8.430): 
None 0 
Yes J _/_r-~, 

1. Number of YA Level •s· DDMS true findina;s: 
None O . 
One 3 
Two or more 5 __!L_r..6) 

I. Number of YA Level "B• DDMS &rue findings involvin,: as• 
aul&. baucry (includini sexual auack), or weapons: 

'None 0 
One J . 
TwoarlAOrC 2 

() 
_(27) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

W H I T E J L --------------orr~·, I.Ml ~r:. Fini 1ni11a1 
(h,19) 

10. Offender is a Board Category I or JI; has 3 or more cscap:s :md/ 
or runaways er any history or arson or sea olTcnscs: 

N01E: A •yes• on item JO pcnnanently escludcs offender 
from camp consideration. 

No A 
Yes B 

J 1. Offender meets one or man: additional camp ckclui.iorury 
aitcru1 as defined in lhe J&:C Progr3m C.w°'uc: 

No A i1. 
Ye!'--B ...£:i_(35) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
TOTAL Add Ch-c r,oinlS 10 SUBTOTAL B if•ycs• was indicstcd 
on either ii.Cm 10 or JI and enter toial here: ? 

__Q ~(36-37) 

~OTE.: lf ·yes• was indicated on both. add only • aotal or live 
points. 

11'\0JCA TED PROGRAMMINO 

Limited 
Modc:r:nc 
Medium 

0-4 
5 - JO 

l t -HI 

G) 
B 
C 

C119N1v'C:s:curj1y O\:cnid<: If reviewer bclic-,·c:s lh:lt tat:il ~ore 
docs nouccur:ucly match Custody/Sceurit)' Level arpmr,ri:uc: rnr 
offender, indicate appropri:11c: lc:vc:l below. Wh:u Custady/Sccu• 
rity Lc\'cl ~r,propri:nc? Docs offender need •ciosc· CuslOd,·/ 
Security'! If so, fully document on reverse. 

D 
SJJBIQTALA 
(.Md scares Crom ilcms l • 8): _/,2__ 2._(lS-29) 1------------------
9. Foneclassifac:ation only: One point for every two consecutive 

lnOll1hs olfcndcr has panicipaled in propam with no serious 
problemsrq,oru:d(offcndaseamoncpointforc:achsuchmonlh', 
ir..:amp): o o 

_(30-31) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
SUBIQTALB 
(Subtract poinrs Crom item 9 from Subtotal A} - if9 is 1:JC3lcr than 
Subtow A. enter •oo•: A 

~ .....2_02-33) 

~~ ....,_,.:; ----Af--'1•-ow-al ____ _ 

Sficc_ .2_.3.0~-:z. ¢. 
FaciJH>· M11. Day vT 

(4D-4~) 
Reason com,,lctcd: ~, 
Clinic \j_..../ 
Annual ::? 
Transfer 3 
Parole \'iol:itor/ 4 

Rccommitmcnts 

, .. .:, ... 
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( V 

.. .. ' , -~ J/ARD'SNAME: ______________ _ YA %1.·u?.mER:. _____ _ -
1!·3-°'1? lA'!E OFBIR'Ilf: _____ AGE: ___ DA 'IE OF MOST R.ECE.,, AD~fISSION:_~/_,_,!_ _______ __.,_ __ J.___ 

iEAL TH/M.Jl)ICAL INFOR~IA TIOS 
IJSION 12:rSmndard REARNG e Swid:ud '-tEPICATION ;;:one • Wears Glasses • Wears Hearing Aid • Needs Glasses O Needs Hearing A.id 

J iteahh problems or physi:al handicaps which m:1y affect program decisions ha\.,: been identified. 
Consultation wirh medical staff is advised. 

• 
• 

Yes-No Need 
ForConc:em 
Yes - May A!Tc:t 
Behavior 

Problem identified: _______________________________ _ 

~fediC3l section completed by: (Initial) ~ S 

LA~GUAGESt.:RVEY 
1. rll'Sl language learned.: En1lish Ef Spanish O O1.he:-
2. Lanpgc used men at home: English ~ Spanish O OLher ___ • Passed 
3. Language used wid'I parents: English ~ Spanish O OL'lcr ___ 0 Failed • See edw:ation file far resu1&s 
'· Lan;ua1e used mest by adults 11 hem~ E.iglish u Sp:anish O Other ___ of fl.Ill cvaliiation 
• JI uy IIIS- mhcr Ihm En1lidi. admiJliMr ~1ua1c AJm1mmt 5calc u, dcu:munc Encl!sh ptoliC1C11c:y. ~ Scn:cning 1:Sl not adminisicred 

EDUCA TIOSAL BACKGROL-SD lAs mmc4 by 11:ard V;rjfv ,a.hen e-isorr.s r. r:r;ejved > 
LAST SCHOOL ATI'E.'lii1'ED: ._, 'bo&~\ \L.. • .., ~ Ni.""=' CITY: \_.g~ ~t;.\~> GRADE: \ o 
TYPE PE SCHOOL LAST ATCE':J)ED· . ! HAS PREVJOt:SL Y BE£."'i PLACED C'-1 SPECIAL EDtJCA TION. • 
REOUI..AR HIGH OR • ADt.1.. TOR COM~,rt:~1TY • • 
JUNIOR. HIGH SCHOOL COM.t1R. CO~GE 
CONTINUATION l2f ntADE OR VOCA TIOSAL • COt.'R.T SCHOOL • 
SQiOOL SCHOQL 

HOW.LONG SINCE LAST ATI"E.'"D£D: _ yrs. 1:::. mos. (U'.an't-cay how Ion&. ~c qe or dare lasl aacnded.. ____ _ 
<L .. 

WAS Al l::.."llDUliO SCHOOL WHE.'I ARRESY-c.D OR VJOLAT£D: 0 WAS ~OT A TTE~'!>I:SG SCHOOL: 0 

REASON NOT A TIE.'lDING: 

PASS-cD OED 

• 
GRADUA1cD 

• 
SUMMER 

VACATION 

• 
EXrEU.£00R 
SUS?E~D 

.. 

QUITOR 
DROi'P£DOUT 

• 
. !BSERVATIONS• DURL'IG TESTING 
rl THEWAJ!p·s BEHAV]OR DL'RINGTESTh"G-w,,,.S t,PPR0PRio': 

OBSERVATio-.:s A,i»?LY!P; 

RI ACADE.\.!IC TESTING 
nIE FOU..OWING BEHA VJORS WEREDBSERVED ~"-'D SHOtr .0 8£ • r -·--
CONSIDERED IN ASSESSING rnE v ALIDITY OF 'ffiE TEST iESUL TS. ',! vocA TIONAL ,:STING 

C Random man:m, of lhc acadcmir: tau • HIid difflQ&lcy ccinccniniin1 an IUb _, 
0-Random met.ins of lhe •oca&icma1 •saana111 -1:J Did no1 pay lollalbDft (c.1. dayd:ununi) 
0 Did not~ an diem . J nr.qucnlly c:c,r.plai:1C.d about bc:.'ll us&ad 
0 OimJ;xivc behavior Gnt UJI euily · ·· 
r-. ""'!"'- -• •• r .. __ •- - .., .. •. - ... ' 
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s .. F-: .;:. .: • 

=- ~::.: NORwi'.'.!Lr. 
~O•J;.: -.-- ·-- .. ' ............... . 
-----------r-----------------------------------------------------------------
.oN-r~~._"7 ~~_:,.:. •~:.J";!:~: =~~-£ G::O:?t:1~ t I ~-E.~~:E~ ~ !:..~ Gr'.J_;:: 

T~::T CJRF-.E::- SC'J'i:~ 5E.!'! EQtJ:v l!L:; ,! Aol.! l ~ Sa::: Eouca:::-
-------- ----,-----

:e&::nng ·: D/5 0a fllov -~~ .'-•. · . 
vacabul ar-v . a i · 720 

: Camorehe~sion ~ 24 · · , .. •. :: 740 . 
15 

b 

~ .. , ... 
5 .q 

· ·- ---·7 .. 1' 

II 
··4:3 '' ~- -· 

· 42 11-
43 ll 

---------- - ~ ~ I d 

~r-ec:iicted* 
GED Range 

\ . . .. . . . -1 .. 
: '• t 

GED 
Sc:or-e. 
. I 

I• : T.::a1 . ~ • ,Jo:·:.-
at.'lematfC·s E/5 - 't,e NoV "93 -:._> -~- • 

. -~b.4 . ' . 
:_ ."II· Writing: 35-45 

... •. : . 

C. ~a · -~-. .., ... o· • .. J ,. omuutat.1 ::>Ii·; •• . .·.°" .. -s• --~...,:-... " .. ,· ~" •. 
"Coni:ep_~siADpl'. ·•• ·;:9:-:, ~ .r&a_:2° .. ·• 14 

· :~701 
06 !IIOV 93 

· Tot.ai .. 
~nc;_age - D/ 5 

M:::ia!'"t:.:s 
~::::;ress:.::i7", 

.. . -.. - . 
l w .. =.• 

eta ! Sat.~er-y 

7 

~e t i:.~; - ~, ~ - 0e N:~ ~l . -. : 
-----· -- ----- - . -.·i:, _ ::..- . • v::.: :-·:. ... - ~--:~,..,r~:..:. 

.. •. ~ 

7vl 
~-~= . 
=.;~ 

.,::i ....,_ 
13 

= 

-~ -.s··o 
. . . :~--4:2 

1,:. 7 ... .. 
- C' .;. . .., 

:.: 

.lo·· t I Math: . -~- . . . 
Sc:ience: 3q-49··· ··· ~ ··:zi. 11 

-~ 18 ·11 
• ~ ...... t.1 
!: r• 

Reading: 38-48. 
Soc-Stud: 37-47 

4c 1 1 F·r-e:: l::::~:i:. 
__ I ! ",Ve!":;:: 

-· ! I 

.. ... 
- .·. 
~ ..... ... .,..~ .. 

_ .. . 
........ 

. - -- . -·-... -:·1~:·- - '-=•-..:=-- ~ ! \ ! C, = -'-·-... , ! ~=--=-

. e!.:!:,; v~~:t:t.i ; e~v 
:t .·n :.~! ·y·u.: 

::e:-,-:,..~i T!"t~•.:;::--: 
:o~e~~~e~~!I; Eve~~= 
wrl~1n9 Tec:nr.1:ues 

!a'trt Corr,put.at.1cn . 
AJo wnoie Numbers 
Aod ·Dec:1mais 

t:.1 

.. , . , ._., . -
'+Ii 
bic 
517 

~/•,.~. BIB . 
.·: . ··:~/4 .. ·•· 

~o:t F~ac:t. i!:1:-is 
:uo~ract Whole 

~ '" 0/4 
Numoer:a. ···e/8 

::ul:itrac:t: uecur,ai .5 • .t·, • : 4/4 
:i...!otract: Frac:t:ions ...... . 2t"4· 
"':ult"1pl'i .Whole Numbe!"'~· ""eta· 
!:: vide irmol e toiumcers \ ;:,~· .5/8 

T== • . · - ·i. · . 

T 

+ 

T~,Jii\u-:1"' :::1"''::'.°,::: 
l~•..!!':"r:~-- -~l~~-,, 

"'!~;s;.;---~merit 

~=~me:~" 

=·":=-,;=~:-: ! .Ne: .. ::-,:.;~,:~::.. : : .: 
&e;1~n1n; wo~:s. i :: l ~= , ~ 

T F~~1oc !~ues:?.:r- .~:-u:i .~: 
I ~omma!Col0n,=em1,Q\Jot:. 
J ' Pr-ooireading. 

· + ILa.n9ua9e · E>:press1on 
~ · + · J =•f:ranouns 

• ~- I . YerDs ~ .. 
•+ . I AOJeC:tl ves-~Adverbs 

.. + .1 Sentence flec09nit1an 
.I Sentence Comb"ining 

+ I· Topic Sen~ence 
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1 INST 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

" 
FILED IN OPEN COURT 0 ,i11 

4, 4'14 11 1 I 
,lllbl Q 9 '.lQ~ 

1
20 _ 

SHIRL YB. PARRA UIRRE, CLERK 

BY CUotl 
DISTRICT COURT 

CLARKCOUNTY,NEVADA 

CAROLE D'ALOIA 

8 THESTATEOFNEVADA, 

9 

10 -vs-

11 DONTE JOHNSON, 

12 

13 

14 

Plaintiff, 

Defendant. 

Case No. 
Dept. No. 
Docket 

C153154 
V 
H 

15 INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY (INSTRUCTION NO. I) 

16 MEMBERSOFTHEJURY: 

17 It is now my duty as judge to instruct you in the law that applies to this case. It is your 

18 duty as jurors to follow these instructions and to apply the rules of law to the facts as you find 

19 them from the evidence. 

20 You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law stated in these 

21 instructions. Regardless of any opinion you may have as to what the law ought to be, it would 

22 be a violation of your oath to base a verdict upon any other view of the law than that given in 

23 the instructions of the Court. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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2 

• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. ~ 

If, in these instructions, any rule, direction or idea is repeated or stated in different ways, 

3 no emphasis thereon is intended by me and none may be inferred by you. For that reason, you 

4 are not to single out any certain sentence or any individual point or instruction and ignore the 

5 others, but you are to consider all the instructions as a whole and regard each in the light of all 

6 the others. 

7 The order in which the instructions are given has no significance as to their relative 

8 importance. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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INSTRUCTION NO . .:._;> __ _ 1 

2 An Indictment is but a formal method of accusing a person of a crime and is not of itself 

3 any evidence of his guilt. 

4 In this case, it is charged in an Indictment that on or about the 14th day of August, 1998, 

5 the Defendant committed the offenses as follows: 

6 COUNT I -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM 

7 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

8 then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter, while in possession of a firearm, with 

9 intent to commit larceny and/or robbery and/or murder, that certain building occupied by 

10 MATHEW MOWEN and TRACEY GORRINGE and JEFFREY BIDDLE, located at 4825 

11 Terra Linda Avenue, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada; the Defendant aiding or abetting 

12 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and 

13 encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 

14 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

15 SMITH; the said Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

16 SIK.IA LAFAYETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

17 SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or 

18 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding MATHEW 

19 MOWEN and TRACEY GORRINGE and JEFFREY BIDDLE and PETER TALAMENTEZ and 

20 placing them on the floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

21 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said 

22 MATHEW MOWEN and TRACEY GORRINGE and JEFFREY BIDDLE and PETER 

23 TALAMENTEZ with a firearm. 

24 COUNT II - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY AND/OR KIDNAPPING AND/OR 
MURDER 

25 

26 did then and there meet with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG, SIK.IA LAFAYETTE 

27 SMITH and/or another unknown individual, and between themselves, and each of them with 

28 the other, wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously conspire to commit a crime, to wit: robbery 
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1 and/or kidnaping and/or murder, and in furtherance of said conspiracy, Defendant did commit 

2 the acts as alleged in Counts III thru XIV of this indictment, together with TERRELL COCHISE 

3 YOUNG and/or SIIGA LAFAYETTE SMITH, which acts are incorporated herein by this 

4 reference as though fully set forth. 

5 COUNT III - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

6 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

7 then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously, take personal property, to wit: lawful money 

8 of the United States, from the person of JEFFREY BIDDLE, or in his presence or company, by 

9 means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of 

10 the said JEFFREY BIDDLE, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a firearm, during 

11 the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG 

12 and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and by entering into a 

13 course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with 

14 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH; the said Defendant 

15 entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

16 SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

1 7 SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/ or TERRELL COCHISE 

18 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said JEFFREY BIDDLE and placing 

19 him on the floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

20 SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH taking lawful money of the United States from the person of 

21 JEFFREY BIDDLE and/or other persons in his presence or company; then Defendant and/or 

22 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the 

23 body of the said JEFFREY BIDDLE with a firearm. 

24 COUNT IV - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

25 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

26 then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously, take personal property, to wit: lawful money 

27 of the United States, from the person of TRACEY GORRINGE, or in his presence or company, 

28 by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will 
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1 of the said TRACEY GORRINGE, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a firearm, 

2 during the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL COCHISE 

3 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and by entering 

4 into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with 

5 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH; the said Defendant 

6 entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

7 SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAP A YETTE 

8 SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

9 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said TRACEY GORRINGE and 

10 placing him on the floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG 

11 and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH taking lawful money of the United States from the person 

12 of TRACEY GORRINGE and/or other persons in his presence or company; then Defendant 

13 and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into 

14 the body of the said TRACEY GORRINGE with a firearm. 

15 COUNT V - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

16 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH 

17 then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously, take personal property, to wit: lawful money 

18 of the United States, from the person of MATHEW MOWEN, or in his presence or company, 

19 by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will 

20 of the said MATHEW MOWEN, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a firearm, 

21 during the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL COCHISE 

22 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and by entering 

23 into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with 

24 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH; the said Defendant 

25 entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

26 SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE 

27 SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

28 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said MATHEW MOWEN and 

AA08435



• • 
1 placing him on the floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG 

2 and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH taking lawful money of the United States from the person 

3 of MATHEW MOWEN and/or other persons in his presence or company; then Defendant and/or 

4 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the 

5 body of the said MATHEW MOWEN with a firearm. 

6 COUNT VI - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

7 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH 

8 then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously, take personal property, to wit: lawful money 

9 of the United States, from the person of PETER TALAMENTEZ, or in his presence or company, 

10 by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will 

11 of the said PETER TALAMENTEZ, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a firearm, 

12 during the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL COCHISE 

13 YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and by entering 

14 into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with 

15 TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH; the said Defendant 

16 entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE 

17 SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE 

18 SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

19 YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said PETER TALAMENTEZ and 

20 placing him on the floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG 

21 and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH taking lawful money of the United States from the person 

22 of PETER TALAMENTEZ and/or other persons in his presence or company; then Defendant 

23 and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into 

24 the body of the said PETER TALAMENTEZ with a firearm. 

25 COUNT VII - FIRST DEGREE I<IDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

26 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH 

27 wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority oflaw, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, 

28 decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away JEFFREY BIDDLE, a human being, with the 
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1 intent to hold or detain the said JEFFREY BIDDLE, against his will, and without his consent, 

2 for the purpose of committing robbery and/or murder, said Defendant and/or TERRELL 

3 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH using a deadly weapon, to wit: a 

4 firearm during the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL 

5 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and 

6 by entering into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda 

7 Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH; the said 

8 Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

9 LAFAYETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

10 LAFAYETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL 

11 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said JEFFREY BIDDLE 

12 and placing him on the floor of the residence for the purpose of committing robbery and/or 

13 murder; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

14 SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said JEFFREY BIDDLE with a firearm. 

15 COUNT VIII - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

16 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

17 wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, 

18 decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away MATHEW MOWEN, a human being, with the 

19 intent to hold or detain the said MATHEW MOWEN, against his will, and without his consent, 

20 for the purpose of committing robbery and/or murder, said Defendant and/or TERRELL 

21 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH using a deadly weapon, to wit: a 

22 firearm during the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL 

23 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and 

24 by entering into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda 

25 Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH; the said 

26 Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

27 LAFAYETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

28 LAFAYETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL 
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1 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said MATHEW MOWEN 

2 and placing him on the floor of the residence for the purpose of committing robbery and/or 

3 murder; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

4 SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said MATHEW MOWEN with a firearm. 

5 COUNT IX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

6 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

7 wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority oflaw, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, 

8 decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away TRACEY GORRINGE, a human being, with the 

9 intent to hold or detain the said TRACEY GORRINGE, against his will, and without his consent, 

10 for the purpose of committing robbery and/or murder, said Defendant and/or TERRELL 

11 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH using a deadly weapon, to wit: a 

12 firearm during the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL 

13 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and 

14 by entering into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda 

15 Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH; the said 

16 Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

17 LAFAYETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

18 LAFAYETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL 

19 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH binding the said TRACEY 

20 GORRINGE and placing him on the floor of the residence for the purpose of committing 

21 robbery and/or murder; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

22 LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said TRACEY GORRINGE with a 

23 firearm. 

24 COUNT X - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 

25 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

26 wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority oflaw, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, 

27 decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away PETER TALAMENTEZ, a human being, with the 

28 intent to hold or detain the said PETER TALAMENTEZ, against his will, and without his 
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1 consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or murder, said Defendant and/or TERRELL 

2 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH using a deadly weapon, to wit: a 

3 firearm during the commission of said crime; the Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL 

4 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and encouragement and 

5 by entering into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda 

6 Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH; the said 

7 Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA 

8 LAFAYETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA 

9 LAFAYETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL 

10 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said PETER 

11 TALAMENTEZ and placing him on the floor of the residence for the purpose of committing 

12 robbery and/or murder; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA 

13 LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said PETER TALAMENTEZ with 

14 a firearm. 

15 COUNT XI - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER) 

16 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

17 then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with premeditation and 

18 deliberation, and with malice aforethought, kill JEFFREY BIDDLE, a human being, by shooting 

19 at and into the body of said JEFFREY BIDDLE, with a deadly weapon, to wit: a firearm, the said 

20 Defendants being responsible under the following theories of criminal liability, to wit: 1) 

21 Premeditation and Deliberation; 2) Felony Murder, Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

22 YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH committing the murder in the perpetration or 

23 attempted perpetration ofkidnaping and/or robbery; 3) Aiding or Abetting, the Defendant aiding 

24 or abetting TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH by counsel and 

25 encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby the said Defendant arrived at 

26 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE 

27 SMITH; the said Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

28 SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 
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1 SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm; Defendant and/or TERRELL 

2 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH binding the victim and placing him 

3 on the floor of the residence; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

4 LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said JEFFREY BIDDLE with a 

5 firearm; 4) Conspiracy, by the said Defendant acting pursuant to a conspiracy to commit robbery 

6 and/or kidnaping and/or murder with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

7 LAP A YETTE SMITH, whereby the said Defendant entered the residence with TERRELL 

8 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL 

9 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm or 

10 firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

11 SMITH binding the said JEFFREY BIDDLE and placing him on the floor of the residence; then 

12 Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH shooting 

13 at and into the body of the said JEFFREY BIDDLE with the firearm or firearms. 

14 COUNT XII - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER) 

15 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH, 

16 then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with premeditation and 

17 deliberation, and with malice aforethought, kill TRACEY GORRINGE, a human being, by 

18 shooting at and into the body of said TRACEY GORRINGE, with a deadly weapon, to wit: a 

19 firearm, the said Defendant being responsible under the following theories of criminal liability, 

20 to wit: 1) Premeditation and Deliberation; 2) Felony Murder, Defendant and/or TERRELL 

21 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH committing the murder in the 

22 perpetration or attempted perpetration of robbery and/or kidnaping; 3) Aiding or Abetting, the 

23 Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

24 SMITH by counsel and encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby the 

25 said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

26 SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH; the said Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL 

27 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL 

28 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm; 

AA08440



• • 
1 Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding 

2 the victim and placing him on the floor of the residence; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

3 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said 

4 TRACEY GORRINGE with a firearm; 4) Conspiracy, by the said Defendant acting pursuant to 

5 a conspiracy to commit robbery and/or kidnaping and/or murder with TERRELL COCHISE 

6 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, whereby the said Defendant entered the 

7 residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH while 

8 Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH were 

9 in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

10 SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said TRACEY GORRINGE and placing him on the 

11 floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

12 LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said TRACEY GORRINGE with the 

13 firearm or firearms. 

14 COUNT XIII - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER) 

15 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, 

16 then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with premeditation and 

17 deliberation, and with malice aforethought, kill MATHEW MOWEN, a human being, by 

18 shooting at and into the body of said MATHEW MOWEN, with a deadly weapon, to wit: a 

19 firearm, the said Defendant being responsible under the following theories of criminal liability, 

20 to wit: 1) Premeditation and Deliberation; 2) Felony Murder, Defendant and/or TERRELL 

21 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH committing the murder in the 

22 perpetration or attempted perpetration ofkidnaping and/or robbery; 3) Aiding or Abetting, the 

23 Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

24 SMITH by counsel and encouragement and by entering into a course of.conduct whereby the 

25 said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

26 SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH; the said Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL 

27 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL 

28 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm; 
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• • 
1 Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding 

2 the victim and placing him on the floor of the residence; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

3 YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said 

4 MATHEW MOWEN with a firearm; 4) Conspiracy, by the said Defendant acting pursuant to 

5 a conspiracy to commit robbery and/or kidnaping and/or murder with TERRELL COCHISE 

6 YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH, whereby the said Defendant entered the 

7 residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or Sil<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH while 

8 Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH were 

9 in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

10 SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH binding the said MATHEW MOWEN and placing him on the 

11 floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

12 LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said MATHEW MOWEN with the 

13 firearm or firearms. 

14 COUNT XIV - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER) 

15 did, together with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH, 

16 then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with premeditation and 

17 deliberation, and with malice aforethought, kill PETER TALAMENTEZ, a human being, by 

18 shooting at and into the body of said PETER TALAMENTEZ, with a deadly weapon, to wit: a 

19 firearm, the said Defendant being responsible under the following theories of criminal liability, 

20 to wit: 1) Premeditation and Deliberation; 2) Felony Murder, Defendant and/or TERRELL 

21 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH committing the murder in the 

22 perpetration or attempted perpetration of robbery and/or kidnaping; 3) Aiding or Abetting, the 

23 Defendant aiding or abetting TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE 

24 SMITH by counsel and encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby the 

25 said Defendant arrived at 4825 Terra Linda Avenue with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

26 SIKIA LAP A YETTE SMITH; the said Defendant entering the residence with TERRELL 

27 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH while Defendant and/or TERRELL 

28 COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAPA YETTE SMITH were in possession of a firearm; 
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• • 
1 Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SII<IA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding 

2 the victim and placing him on the floor of the residence; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE 

3 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said PETER 

4 TALAMENTEZ with a firearm; 4) Conspiracy, by the said Defendant acting pursuant to a 

5 conspiracy to commit robbery and/or kidnaping and/or murder with TERRELL COCHISE 

6 YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH, whereby the said Defendant entered the 

7 residence with TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH while 

8 Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH were 

9 in possession of a firearm or firearms; Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or 

10 SIKIA LAFAYETTE SMITH binding the said PETER TALAMENTEZ and placing him on the 

11 floor of the residence; then Defendant and/or TERRELL COCHISE YOUNG and/or SIKIA 

12 LAFAYETTE SMITH shooting at and into the body of the said PETER TALAMENTEZ with 

13 the firearm or firearms. 

14 It is the duty of the jury to apply the rules of law contained in these instructions to the 

15 facts of the case and determine whether or not the Defendant is guilty of one or more of the 

16 offenses charged. 

17 Each charge and the evidence pertaining to it should be considered separately. The fact 

18 that you may find the defendant guilty or not guilty as to one of the offenses charged should not 

19 control your verdict as to any other offense charged. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. __c-_j___ 

To constitute the crime charged, there must exist a union or joint operation of an act 

3 forbidden by law and an intent to do the act. 

4 The intent with which an act is done is shown by the facts and circumstances surrounding 

5 the case. 

6 Do not confuse intent with motive. Motive is what prompts a person to act. Intent refers 

7 only to the state of mind with which the act is done. 

8 Motive is not an element of the crime charged and the State is not required to prove a 

9 motive on the part of the Defendant in order to convict. However, you may consider evidence 

10 of motive or lack of motive as a circumstance in the case. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 5' ~---

The Defendant is presumed innocent unless the contrary is proved. This presumption 

3 places upon the State the burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt every material element 

4 of the crime charged and that the Defendant is the person who committed the offense. 

5 A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. It is not mere possible doubt but is such a 

6 doubt as would govern or control a person in the more weighty affairs of life. If the minds of 

7 the jurors, after the entire comparison and consideration of all the evidence, are in such a 

8 condition that they can say they feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge, there is not 

9 a reasonable doubt. Doubt to be reasonable must be actual, not mere possibility or speculation. 

10 If you have a reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the Defendant, he is entitled to a verdict 

11 of not guilty. 
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• • 
1 INSTRUCTION No.L 
2 It is a constitutional right of a defendant in a criminal trial that he may not be 

3 compelled to testify. Thus the decision as to whether he should testify is left to the defendant 

4 on the advice and counsel of his attorney. You must not draw any inference of guilt from the 

5 fact that he does not testify, nor should this fact be discussed by you or enter into your 

6 deliberations in any way. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 5 b 

If the evidence in this case is subject to two constructions of interpretation, each of 

which appears to you to be reasonable, and one of which points t(lthe guilt of the defendant, 

and the other to innocence, it is your duty, to adopt the interpretation which will admit of the 

defendant's innocence, and reject that which points to guilt. 

You will notice the rule applies only when both of the two possible opposing 

conclusions appear to you to be reasonable. If, on the other hand, one of the possible 

conclusions should appear to you to be reasonable and the other to be unreasonable, it would 

be your duty to adhere to the reasonable deduction and to reject the unreasonable, bearing in 

mind, however, even if the reasonable deduction points to defendant's guilt, the entire proof 

must be beyond a reasonable doubt to support a verdict of guilty. 
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2 

• • 
INSTRUCTION NO . ...:,&'---­

You are here to determine the guilt or innocence of the Defendant from the evidence in 

3 the case. You are not called upon to return a verdict as to the guilt or innocence of any other 

4 person. So, if the evidence in the case convinces you beyond a reasonable doubt of the guilt of 

5 the Defendant, you should so find, even though you may believe one or more persons are also 

6 guilty. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. / _/,__ __ _ 

The evidence which you are to consider in this case consists of the testimony of the 

3 witnesses, the exhibits, and any facts admitted or agreed to by counsel. 

4 There are two types of evidence; direct and circumstantial. Direct evidence is the 

5 testimony of a person who claims to have personal knowledge of the commission of the crime 

6 which has been charged, such as an eyewitness. Circumstantial evidence is the proof of a chain 

7 of facts and circumstances which tend to show whether the Defendant is guilty or not guilty. 

8 The law makes no distinction between the weight to be given either direct or circumstantial 

9 evidence. Therefore, all of the evidence in the case, including the circumstantial evidence, 

10 should be considered by you in arriving at your verdict. 

11 Statements, arguments and opinions of counsel are not evidence in the case. However, 

12 if the attorneys stipulate to the existence of a fact, you must accept the stipulation as evidence 

13 and regard that fact as proved. 

14 You must not speculate to be true any insinuations suggested by a question asked a 

15 witness. A question is not evidence and may be considered only as it supplies meaning to the 

16 answer. 

17 You must disregard any evidence to which an objection was sustained by the court and 

18 any evidence ordered stricken by the court. 

19 Anything you may have seen or heard outside the courtroom is not evidence and must also 

20 be disregarded. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. L 

Every person who, either by day or by night, enters any house, apartment or other building 

3 with the intent to commit larceny, assault or battery, or any felony, therein is guilty of 

4 "Burglary." 

5 Larceny is defined as the stealing, taking and carrying away of personal goods or property 

6 of another with specific intent to permanently deprive the owner thereof. 

7 Assault is defined as an unlawful attempt, coupled with a present ability to commit a 

8 violent injury on a person. 

9 

10 

Battery is any willful and unlawful use of force or violence upon a person. 

The person who unlawfully enters into the aforementioned may reasonably be inferred 

11 to have entered with the intent to commit larceny, assault or battery , or any felony, unless the 

12 unlawful entry is explained by evidence satisfactory to the jury to have be.en made without 

13 criminal intent. 
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• • 
1 INSTRUCTION NO. _1 __ _ 
2 Every person who, in the commission of a burglary, commits any other crime, may be 

3 prosecuted for each crime separately. 
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• • 
INSTRucT10N No. _I ;:_o _ 

To prove an entry in establishing the crime of Burglary, the prosecution need only show 

3 an entry without the consent of the possessor of the house, room or apartment. Force or a 

4 "breaking", as such, is not a necessary element of the crime. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. LI -,,<-.,<...---

A conspiracy is an agreement or mutual understanding between two or more persons to 

3 commit a crime. To be guilty of conspiracy, a defendant must intend to commit, or to aid in the 

4 commission of, the specific crime agreed to. The crime is the agreement to do something 

5 unlawful; it does not matter whether it was successful or not. 
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• • 
1 INSTRUCTION NO. /z--.-
2 Where two or more individuals join together in a common design to commit any unlawful 

3 act, each is criminally responsible for the acts of his confederates committed in furtherance of 

4 the common design. In contemplation of law, the act of one is the act of all. Every conspirator 

5 is legally responsible for an act of a co-conspirator that follows as one of the probable and 

6 natural consequences of the object of the conspiracy even ifit was not intended as part of the 

7 original plan and even if he was not present at the time of the commission of such act. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. -'-'I 3cc___ 

Where the purpose of the conspiracy is to commit a dangerous felony, each member runs 

3 the risk of having the venture end in homicide, even ifhe has forbidden the others to make use 

4 of deadly force. Hence, each is guilty of murder if one of them commits homicide in the 

5 perpetration of an agreed-upon robbery or attempted perpetration of said offense. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

AA08455
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. / tj 

I 

It is not necessary in proving a conspiracy to show a meeting of the alleged conspirators 

3 or the making of an express or formal agreement. The formation and existence of a conspiracy 

4 may be inferred from all circumstances tending to show the common intent and may be proved 

5 in the same way as any other fact may be proved, either by direct testimony of the fact or by 

6 circumstantial evidence, or by both direct and circumstantial evidence. 
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• • -
INSTRUCTION NO. ,__/=5 __ 

Whenever there is slight evidence that a conspiracy existed, and that the defendant was 

3 one of the members of the conspiracy, then the statements and the acts by any member of the 

4 conspiracy may be considered by the jury as evidence in the case as to the defendant. This is 

5 true even though the statements and acts may have occurred in the absence and without the 

6 knowledge of the defendant, provided such statements and acts were knowingly made and done 

7 during the continuance of such conspiracy, and in furtherance of some object or purpose of the 

8 conspiracy. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. ~l~b __ 

Once a person joins a conspiracy, that person remains a member until he withdraws from 

3 it. A person can withdraw from a conspiracy by taking some positive action which disavowed 

4 or defeated the purpose of the conspiracy. It is not enough if the evidence shows that the 

5 defendant merely ceased his own activities in furtherance of the conspiracy. 
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• • 
1 INSTRUCTION NO. / 7 
2 Where two or more persons are accused of committing a crime together, their guilt may 

3 be established without proof that each personally did every act constituting the offense charged. 

4 All persons concerned in the commission of a crime who either. directly or actively 

5 commit the act constituting the offense or who knowingly and with criminal intent aid and abet 

6 in its commission or, whether present or not, who advise and encourage its commission, are 

7 regarded by the law as principals in the crime thus committed and are equally guilty thereof. 

8 To aid and abet is to assist or support the efforts of another in the commission of a crime. 

9 A person aids and abets the commission of a crime if he knowingly and with criminal 

10 intent aids, promotes, encourages or instigates by act or advice, or by act and advice, the 

11 commission of such crime. 

12 The state is not required to prove precisely which defendant actually committed the crime 

13 and which defendant aided and abetted. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. L 

The presence of one at the commission of a crime of another is evidence which can be 

3 considered in determining whether or not he is guilty of aiding or abetting, as well as the 

4 defendant's presence, companionship, and conduct before, during and after the participation in 

5 the criminal act. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. / o/ 

/ 

Mere presence at the scene of the crime and knowledge that a crime is being committed 

3 are not sufficient to establish that the defendant aided and abetted the crime, unless you find 

4 beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant is a participant and not merely a knowing 

5 spectator. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO . .,.2"-'6"'---_ 

Evidence that a person was in the company or associated with one or more other persons 

3 alleged or proven to have been members of a conspiracy is not, in itself, sufficient to prove that 

4 such person was a member of the alleged conspiracy. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO . .,_2~..:;1-I __ 

Robbery is the unlawful talcing of personal property from the person of another, or in his 

3 presence, against his will, by means of force or violence or fear of injury, immediate or future, 

4 to his person or property. Such force or fear must be used to obtain or retain possession of the 

5 property, or to prevent or overcome resistance to the talcing, in either of which cases the degree 

6 of force is immaterial. 

7 The value of property or money taken is not an element of the crime of Robbery, and it 

8 is only necessary that the State prove the taking of some property or money. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 2 z._ 1 

2 If you find the defendant guilty of robbery, you must also determine whether or not a 

3 deadly weapon was used in the commission of this crime. 
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2 

• • 
INSTRUCTION N02-J ~~--

A deadly weapon is any instrument which, if used in the ordinary manner contemplated 

3 by its design and construction, will or is likely to cause substantial bodily harm or death; or any 

4 weapon or device, instrument, material or substance which, under the circumstances in which 

5 it is used, attempted to be used or threatened to be used, is readily capable of causing substantial 

6 bodily harm or death. 

7 You are instructed that a firearm is a deadly weapon. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 2., l/ 

If more than one person commits a robbery, and one of them uses a deadly weapon in the 

3 commission of that robbery, each may be convicted of Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon, 

4 even though he did not personally himself use the weapon. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. L:5 

If you find beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant committed Robbery With the 

3 Use of a Deadly Weapon, then you are instructed that the verdict of Robbery With the Use of 

4 a Deadly Weapon is the appropriate verdict. 

5 If, however, you find that a deadly weapon was not used in the commission of the 

6 Robbery, but you do find that a Robbery was committed, then you are instructed that the verdict 

7 of Robbery Without the Use of a Deadly Weapon is the appropriate verdict. 

8 You are instructed that you cannot return a verdict of both Robbery With the Use of a 

9 Deadly Weapon and Robbery Without the Use of a Deadly Weapon. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 7.. b 

Kidnapping is of two degrees-First Degree Kidnapping and Second Degree Kidnapping. 

3 Second Degree Kidnapping is a lesser included offense of First Degree Kidnapping. 

4 Every person who willfully seizes, confines, inveigles, entices, decoys, abducts, conceals, 

5 kidnaps or carries away any person by any means whatsoever with the intent to hold or detain, 

6 or who holds or detains, the person for: 

7 1) ransom, or reward; or 

8 2) the purpose of committing sexual assault, extortion or robbery upon or from the 

9 person; or 

10 3) the purpose of killing the person or inflicting substantial bodily harm upon him; or 

11 4) to exact from relatives, friends, or any other person any money or valuable thing for 

12 the return or disposition of the kidnaped person is guilty of Kidnapping in the First Degree. 

13 Every person who wilfully and without authority of law seizes, inveigles, takes, carries 

14 away or kidnaps another person with the intent to keep the person secretly imprisoned within the 

15 state, or for the purpose of conveying the person out of the state without authority of law, or in 

16 any manner held to service or detained against his will, is guilty of kidnapping in the second 

17 degree. 

18 It is the fact, not the distance of forcible movement of the victim that constitutes 

19 kidnapping. However, a charge of kidnapping and an associated offense will lie only where 

20 movement of the victim is over and above that required to complete the associated crime 

21 charged. 

22 When associated with a charge of robbery, kidnapping does not occur if the movement 

23 is incidental to the robbery and does not increase the risk of harm over and above that necessarily 

24 present in the commission of such offense. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 2 7 

The crime of Kidnapping in the First Degree, as charged in this case, is a specific intent 

3 crime. A specific intent, as the term implies, means more than the general intent to commit the 

4 act. To establish specific intent the state must prove that the defendant knowingly did the act 

5 which the law forbids, purposely intending to violate that law. 

6 An act is "knowingly" done if done voluntarily and intentionally, and not because of 

7 mistake or accident or other innocent reason. 

8 The intention or purpose for which the victim was held against his will is a question of 

9 fact to be determined by your consideration of the evidence. The intention may be inferred from 

10 the defendant's conduct or the conduct of the defendant's co-conspirators and all other 

11 circumstances. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. ;;)g, 

In order to find the defendant guilty ofKidnaping, the evidence ofkidnaping must 

include either: 

(1) an element of movement; or 

(2) physical restraint; or 

(3) restraint which increases the risk of harm to the victim or has an independant 

purpose and significance. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION Nu.2lJ 6 

If the movement of the victim appears to have been incidental to the robbery and 

without an increase in danger to them; if their detention was only for the short period of time 

necessary to consummate the robbery, no kidnaping will have occurred. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO~ '2-9 

If you find the defendant guilty of Kidnapping, you must also determine whether he is 

3 guilty of First or Second Degree and whether or not a deadly weapon was used in the 

4 commission of this crime. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO.~~'/) __ 

You are instructed that you cannot return a verdict of both First Degree Kidnapping with 

3 the use of a Deadly Weapon and First Degree Kidnapping without the use of a Deadly Weapon. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. _J_k.,_ 

In this case the defendant is accused in an Indictment alleging an open charge of murder. 

3 This charge includes and encompasses murder of the first degree, murder of the second degree, 

4 and voluntary manslaughter. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. ~ 

Murder of the first degree is murder which is perpetrated by means of any kind of willful, 

3 deliberate, and premeditated killing. All three elements--willfulness, deliberation, and 

4 premeditation--must be proven beyond a reasonable doubt before an accused can be convicted 

5 of first-degree murder. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. Jy:: 1 

2 Willfulness is the intent to kill. There need be no appreciable space of time between 

3 formation of the intent to kill and the act of killing. 
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• • 
1 INSTRUCTION NO.~?';/ 

2 Deliberation is the process of determining upon a course of action to kill as a result of 

3 thought, including weighing the reasons for and against the action and considering the 

4 consequences of the action. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. l(J'/ J5 

A deliberate determination may be arrived at in a short period of time. But in all cases the 

3 determination must not be formed in passion, or if formed in passion, it must be carried out after 

4 there has been time for the passion to subside and deliberation to occur. A mere unconsidered 

5 and rash impulse is not deliberate, even though it includes the intent to kill. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 3-"'-""Lz.___ 

Premeditation is a design, a determination to kill, distinctly formed in the mind by the 

time of the killing. 
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• • 
1 INSTRUCTION NO. _.fc..,,:7 __ 

2 Premeditation need not be for a day, an hour, or even a minute. It may be as instantaneous 

3 as successive thoughts of the mind. For if the jury believes from the evidence that the act 

4 constituting the killing has been preceded by and has been the result of premeditation, no matter 

5 how rapidly the act follows the premeditation, it is premeditated. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO~-f'""'t-­

The law does not undertake to measure in units of time the length of the period during 

3 which the thought must be pondered before it can ripen into an intent to kill which is truly 

4 deliberate and premeditated. The time will vary with different individuals and under varying 

5 circumstances. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. ~3_1,___ 

The true test is not the duration of time, but rather the extent of the reflection. A cold, 

3 calculated judgment and decision may be arrived at in a short period of time, but a mere 

4 unconsidered and rash impulse, even though it includes an intent to kill, is not deliberation and 

5 premeditation as will fix an unlawful killing as murder of the first degree. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 1/0 

There is a kind of murder which carries with it conclusive evidence of premeditation and 

3 malice aforethought. This class of murder is murder committed in the perpetration, or attempted 

4 perpetration, of robbery and/or kidnapping. Therefore, a killing which is committed in the 

5 perpetration, or attempted perpetration, of robbery and/or kidnapping is deemed to be murder 

6 of the first degree, whether the killing was intentional or unintentional or accidental. This is 

7 called the Felony-Murder rule. 
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• • 
1 

2 

INSTRUCTION NO. Y/ 
Under the Felony Murder rule, in determining whether the killing was committed during 

3 the perpetration or attempted perpetration of a robbery and/or kidnapping a test of causation is 

4 applied. 

5 Such causation requires that the killing be linked to or part of the series of incidents so 

6 as to be one continuous transaction. 

7 The robbery begins the moment the defendant(s) by force or violence or fear of injury 

8 places the victim(s) under his fearful domination in an effort to obtain money or property of the 

9 victim(s). The robbery continues so long as the victim(s) is subjected to the force or violence 

10 or fear of injury originally applied. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION No. 7il/ 

All verdicts returned in this case must be unanimous. In considering the offense of 

3 Murder of the First Degree, however, you need not be unanimous in finding that the murder was 

4 premeditated and deliberate, or that it was perpetrated in the course and furtherance of the 

5 perpetration of or attempted perpetration of robbery and/or kidnapping with or without a deadly 

6 weapon. It is sufficient that each of you finds, beyond a reasonable doubt, that the murder, under 

7 either theory, was murder of the first degree. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. f;/3 

A Murder which is not Murder in the First Degree is Murder of the Second Degree. 

3 The distinguishing feature between first and second degree murder is the presence or 

4 absence of premeditation and deliberation. If the unlawful killing is done with malice, but 

5 without deliberation and premeditation, that is, without the wilful, deliberate and premeditated 

6 intent to take life which is an essential element of First Degree Murder, then the offense is 

7 Murder of the Second Degree. 

8 In practical application this means that the unlawful killing of a human being with malice 

9 aforethought, but without a deliberately formed and premeditated intent to kill, is Murder of the 

10 Second Degree. 

11 If you believe from the evidence beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant is guilty 

12 of Murder, and there is in your minds a reasonable doubt as to which of the two degrees he is 

13 guilty, he must be convicted of the lesser offense which is Murder of the Second Degree. 

14 Should you find that the defendant did not commit Murder of either the First or Second 

15 degree but believe beyond a reasonable doubt that he is responsible for the homicide, you must 

16 determine if that killing was manslaughter. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 1/ i 

Voluntary Manslaughter is the unlawful killing of a human being, without malice 

3 aforethought and without deliberation or premeditation. It is a killing upon a sudden quarrel or 

4 heat of passion, caused by a provocation sufficient to make the passion irresistible. 

5 The provocation required for Voluntary Manslaughter must either consist of a serious and 

6 highly provoking injury inflicted upon the person killing, sufficient to excite an irresistible 

7 passion in a reasonable person, or an attempt by the person killed to commit a serious personal 

8 injury on the person killing. 

9 For the sudden, violent impulse of passion to be irresistible resulting in a killing, which 

10 is Voluntary Manslaughter, there must not have been an interval between the assault or 

11 provocation and the killing sufficient for the voice of reason and humanity to be heard; for, if 

12 there should appear to have been sufficient time for a cool head to prevail and the voice of 

13 reason to be heard, the killing shall be attributed to deliberate revenge and determined by you 

14 to be murder. The law assigns no fixed period of time for such an interval but leaves its 

15 determination to the jury under the facts and circumstances of the case. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. !Ls-­

The heat of passion which will reduce a homicide to Voluntary Manslaughter must be 

3 such an irresistible passion as naturally would be aroused in the mind of an ordinarily reasonable 

4 person in the same circumstances. A defendant is not permitted to set up his own standard of 

5 conduct and to justify or excuse himself because his passions were aroused unless the 

6 circumstances in which he was placed and the facts that confronted him were such as also would 

7 have aroused the irresistible passion of the ordinarily reasonable man if likewise situated. The 

8 basic inquiry is whether or not, at the time of the killing, the reason of the accused was obscured 

9 or disturbed by passion to such an extent as would cause the ordinarily reasonable person of 

10 average disposition to act rashly and without deliberation and reflection and from such passion 

11 rather than from judgment. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO . ....,_1./.....,L<----­

If you find the defendant guilty of Murder or Manslaughter you must also determine 

3 whether or not a deadly weapon was used in the commission of that crime. 
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• • 
1 INSTRUCTION NO . ...,,,l/c....,7L..-_ 
2 If you find beyond a reasonable doubt that a defendant committed Murder of the First 

3 Degree with the Use of a Deadly Weapon, then you are instructed that the verdict of Murder of 

4 the First Degree with the Use of a Deadly Weapon is the appropriate verdict. 

5 If, however, you find that a deadly weapon was not used in the commission of the 

6 Murder, but you do find that a murder was committed, then you are instructed that the verdict 

7 of Murder of the First Degree without the Use ofa Deadly Weapon is the appropriate verdict. 

8 You are instructed that you cannot return a verdict of both Murder of the First Degree 

9 with the Use of a Deadly Weapon and Murder of the First Degree without the Use of a Deadly 

10 Weapon. 

11 The same instruction applies to Murder of the Second Degree and Manslaughter. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 4 Y 

The credibility or believability of a witness should be determined by his manner upon the 

3 stand, his relationship to the parties, his fears, motives, interests or feelings, his opportunity to 

4 have observed the matter to which he testified, the reasonableness of his statements and the 

5 strength or weakness of his recollections. 

6 If you believe that a witness has lied about any material fact in the case, you may 

7 disregard the entire testimony of that witness or any portion of his testimony which is not proved 

8 by other evidence. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. 9_,__1'--­

A witness who has special knowledge, skill, experience, training or education in a 

3 particular science, profession or occupation is an expert witness. An expert witness may give 

4 his opinion as to any matter in which he is skilled. 

5 You should consider such expert opinion and weigh the reasons, if any, given for it. You 

6 are not bound, however, by such an opinion. Give it the weight to which you deem it entitled, 

7 whether that be great or slight, and you may reject it, if, in your judgment, the reasons given for 

8 it are unsound. 
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• • 
C:), INSTRUCTION NO. -.L,..,,./L."---

Although you are to consider only the evidence in the case in reaching a verdict, you must 

3 bring to the consideration of the evidence your everyday common sense and judgment as 

4 reasonable men and women. Thus, you are not limited solely to what you see and hear as the 

5 witnesses testify. You may draw reasonable inferences from the evidence which you feel are 

6 justified in the light of common experience, keeping in mind that such inferences should not be 

7 based on speculation or guess. 

8 A verdict may never be influenced by sympathy, prejudice or public opinion. Your 

9 decision should be the product of sincere judgment and sound discretion in accordance with 

10 these rules oflaw. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. SJ 

In your deliberation you may not discuss or consider the subject of punishment. Your 

3 duty now is confined to the determination of whether the Defendant is guilty or not guilty. 
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• • 
INSTRUCTION NO. _>7.---" 

When you retire to consider your verdict, you must select one of your number to act as 

3 foreperson who will preside over your deliberation and will be your spokesperson here in court. 

4 During your deliberation, you will have all the exhibits which were admitted into 

5 evidence, these written instructions and forms of verdict which have been prepared for your 

6 convenience. 

7 Your verdict must be unanimous. As soon as you have agreed upon a verdict, have it 

8 signed and dated by your foreperson and then return with it to this room. 
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2 

, 
INSTRUCTION NO. ,SJ 

If, during your deliberation, you should desire to be further informed on any point of law 

3 or hear again portions of the testimony, you must reduce your request to writing signed by the 

4 foreperson. The officer will then return you to court where the information sought will be given 

5 you in the presence of, and after notice to, the district attorney and the Defendant and his/her 

6 counsel. 

7 Playbacks of testimony are time-consuming and are not encouraged unless you deem it 

8 a necessity. Should you require a playback, you must carefully describe the testimony to be 

9 played back so that the court recorder can arrange her notes. Remember, the court is not at 

10 liberty to supplement the evidence. 
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• • ' ' 

1 VER 

2 

3 DISTRICT COURT FILED IN OPEN COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA JUN o ~ 2000 tt.. td't) l'IY) 

4 -
5 THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

SHIR YB. PARRAGUIRRE, CLERK 

6 

7 -vs-

8 DONTE JOHNSON, 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Plaintiff, 

Defendant. 

VERDICT 

BY /J . ' 
CAROLE D'ALOIA 

Case No. 
Dept. No. 
Docket 

C153154 
V 
H 

DEPUTY 

14 We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

15 follows: 

16 COUNT I - Burglary While in Possession of a Firearm 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

~ Guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a Firearm 

• Guilty of Burglary 

• Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

23 follows: 

24 COUNT II - Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or Kidnapping and/or Murder 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

~ Guilty of Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or Kidnapping and/or Murder 

• Not Guilty 

AA08498



• • 
1 We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

2 follows: 

3 COUNT III - Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

ref Guilty of Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Robbery 

• Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

10 follows: 

11 COUNT IV- Robbery With Use ofa Deadly Weapon 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

ril' Guilty of Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Robbery 

• Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

18 follows: 

19 COUNT Y - Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

r/ Guilty of Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Robbery 

• Not Guilty 
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• 
1 We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

2 follows: 

3 COUNT VI - Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

rs/ Guilty of Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

o Guilty of Robbery 

• Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

10 follows: 

11 COUNT VII - First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Jeffrey Biddle) 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

rs/ Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping 

• Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping 

o Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

20 follows: 

21 COUNT VIII- First Degree Kidnapping With Use ofa Deadly Weapon (Mathew Mowen) 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

ref Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping 

• Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping 

o Not Guilty 
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• 
1 We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

2 follows: 

3 COUNT IX - First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Tracey Gorringe) 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

IV Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping 

D Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping with Use ofa Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping 

• Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

12 follows: 

13 COUNT X - First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Peter Talamentez) 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

ff! Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of First Degree Kidnapping 

• Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Second Degree Kidnapping 

• Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

22 follows: 

23 COUNT XI - Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Jeffrey Biddle) 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

~ Guilty of Murder of the First Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the First Degree 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree 

AA08501



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

• • 
• Guilty of Voluntary Manslaughter With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Voluntary Manslaughter 

o Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

6 follows: 

7 COUNT XII - Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Tracey Gorringe) 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

ir/ Guilty of Murder of the First Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the First Degree 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree 

• Guilty of Voluntary Manslaughter With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Voluntary Manslaughter 

D Not Guilty 

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

18 follows: 

19 COUNT XIII - Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Mathew Mowen) 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

r5' Guilty of Murder of the First Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the First Degree 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree 

• Guilty of Voluntary Manslaughter With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Voluntary Manslaughter 

o Not Guilty 
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• • 
1 We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant DONTE JOHNSON, as 

2 follows: 

3 COUNT XIV - Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Peter Talamentez) 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(please check the appropriate box, select only one) 

r/ Guilty of Murder of the First Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the First Degree 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree 

• Guilty of Voluntary. Manslaughter With Use of a Deadly Weapon 

• Guilty of Voluntary Manslaughter 

• Not Guilty 

DATED this Cf day of .YutJif, 2000. 
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1 

2 

3 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

4 THE STATE OF NEV ADA, ) 

5 Plaintiff, C153154 
V 

6 vs. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 
Dept. No. 
Docket H 

7 DONTE JOHNSON, 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Defondant. ) ______________ ) 
SPECIAL 
VERDICT 

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, DONTE JOHNSON, 

Guilty of COUNT XID- MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE, designate that one or more jurors 
12 I 

have found that the mitigating circumstance or circumstances checked and/or written below have been i 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

established. 

✓ The murder was committed while the Defendant was under the influence ~f extreme 

mental or emotional disturbance. 

_ The Defendant was an accomplice in a murder committed by another person and his 

participation in the murder was relatively minor. 

_ The Defendant acted under duress or under the dominion of another person. 

✓ The youth of the Defendant at the time of the crime. 

✓ Any other mitigating circumstances ttJ ;~s /i -f-.;. Y.-b.s. f' lJ s ~ c: ,,! <i 

,e ,11 ~cJ i:-1 b e,t SJ2. • d 1n if C l.XA, 

lC >4-,~s.s ft Aul t1 b.«.~ l~ ~1~ ct,'\,,J cCcs.e.. lLe'l~~ 

(i b4-vid rn, ,/JU~ 4j ~~-& 
./ 

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this /_:; day of June, 2000. 
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NISD 
DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #002781 
GARY L. GUYMON 
Chief Deputy District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #003726 
200 South Third Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211 
(702) 455-4711 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

FILED 
lfoa I u 2 54 l'H ·u4 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

THE STATE OF NEV ADA, 

Plaintiff, 

-vs-

DONTE JOHNSON, 
#1586283 

Defendant. 

) 
) 

Case No. 

Dept No. 

Cl53154 

V 

AMENDED NOTICE OF EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF 

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES 

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, through DAVID ROGER, Clark County District 

Attorney, by and through GARY L. GUYMON, Chief Deputy District Attorney, pursuant to 

Supreme Court Rule 250, NRS 175.552 and NRS 200.033, and declares its intention to 

present the following evidence in support of aggravating circumstance at a penalty hearing: 

1. The statements of TERRELL YOUNG that were given on September 2, 1998, 

to Detectives J. Buczek, T. Thowsen, R. Chandler and K. Hardy of the Las Vegas 

Metropolitan Police Department. TERRELL YOUNG'S statements, which will be offered 

through the testimony of the Detectives, will establish that the murders were committed by 

Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly created a great risk 

of death to more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) 

and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several 
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1 other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally 

2 be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. The statements will also establish that 

3 Donte Johnson was the individual who fired the shots that killed Matthew Mowen, Jeffrey 

4 Biddle, Tracey Gorringe, and Peter Talamantez. Additionally, the statements will offered to 

5 establish Donte Johnson's involvement in a shooting that occurred at the Super 8 Motel 

6 located at 5288 Boulder Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or about August 11, 1998. The 

7 Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 

8 980811-0995. The statements will also be offered to establish Donte Johnson's involvement 

9 in a homicide in which Darnell Lamont Johnson was murdered at the Thunderbird Hotel in 

10 Las Vegas, Nevada on or about the 4th day of August, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan 

11 Police Department event number associated with the homicide is 980805-1240. 

12 The statements of TERRELL YOUNG have been provided to defense counsel in 

13 discovery. 

14 2. The statements of SIKIA SMITH that were given on August 26, 1998 and 

15 September 8, 1998, to Detectives James Buczek and Thomas Thowsen of the Las Vegas 

16 Metropolitan Police Department. SIKIA SMITH'S statements, which will be offered 

17 through the testimony of Detectives Buczek and Thowsen, will establish that the murders 

18 were committed by Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly 

19 created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber 

20 pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in 

21 the midst of several other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) 

22 which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. The statements 

23 will also establish that Donte Johnson was the individual who fired the shots that killed 

24 Matthew Mowen, Jeffrey Biddle, Tracey Gorringe, and Peter Talamantez. Additionally, 

25 the statements will offered to establish Donte Johnson's involvement in a shooting that 

26 occurred at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 Boulder Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or 

27 about August 11, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number 

28 associated with the case is 980811-0995. 
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1 The statements of SIKIA SMITH have been provided to defense counsel in discovery. 

2 3. The State may rely on the testimony of Sikia Smith and/or Terrell Young. 

3 This testimony will establish that the murders were committed by Donte Johnson and/or 

4 Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than 

5 one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or 

6 course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other persons who were 

7 present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally be hazardous to the 

8 lives of more than one person. 

9 The statements given by Sikia Smith and Terrell Young have been provided to 

1 0 defense counsel in discovery. 

11 4. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst Shawn Fletcher who recovered certain 

12 items of evidence from the residence at 4825 Terra Linda, including, but not limited to, four 

13 (4) .380 caliber cartridge cases and bullet fragments. CSA Fletcher's testimony will 

14 establish that the murders were committed in a manner that created a great risk of death to 

15 more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or 

16 shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other 

17 persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally be 

18 hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

19 Any report(s) generated by CSA Fletcher has been provided to defense counsel in 

20 discovery. 

21 5. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst Sheree Norman, who attended the 

22 autopsies of the four ( 4) victims in this case and recovered bullet fragments from the 

23 victims' bodies. CSA Norman's testimony will establish that the murders were committed in 

24 a manner that created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon 

25 (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person 

26 or persons in the midst of several other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 

27 Terra Linda) which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

28 Any report(s) generated by CSA Norman has been provided to defense counsel in 
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1 discovery. 

2 6. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst David Hom, who will describe the 

3 residence at 4825 Terra Linda and the location of the victims. CSA Horn's testimony will 

4 establish that the murders were committed in a manner that created a great risk of death to 

5 more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or 

6 shotgun( s)) or course of action ( shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other 

7 persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally be 

8 hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

9 Any report(s) generated by CSA Horn has been provided to defense counsel in 

10 discovery. 

11 7. The victim impact testimony of the parents and/or siblings of Tracey Gorringe, 

12 Mathew Mowen, Peter Talamentez and Jeffrey Biddle. 

13 8. The testimony of Detective James Buczek, Detective Thomas Thowsen, Charla 

14 Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan Johnson, Tod Armstrong, Lashawya Wright, Sikia Smith, and 

15 Terrell Young who, collectively, will testify that Donte Johnson went to 4825 Terra Linda 

16 with Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith with the intention of stealing drugs and/or money 

17 and/or personal property from the occupants of the residence. 

18 Reports and/ or statements of these witnesses have been provided to defense counsel 

19 in discovery. 

20 9. The testimony of Charla Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan Johnson, Tod Armstrong, 

21 Lashwya Wright, Sikia Smith, and Terrell Young who, collectively, will testify that the 

22 victims were murdered, at least in part, because some or all of the victims recognized Sikia 

23 Smith and/or Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young. 

24 Statements of these witnesses have been provided to defense counsel in discovery. 

25 10. The State anticipates relying on the verdict(s) and/or verdict forms that were 

26 returned by the jury in the instant case to establish that the Defendant has, in the immediate 

27 proceeding, been convicted of more than one offense of murder in the first or second degree. 

28 11. The juvenile records of DONTE JOHNSON. 
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1 A copy of DONTE JOHNSON's juvenile criminal history has been provided to 

2 defense counsel in discovery; however, in light of confidentiality concerns, a copy has not 

3 been attached to his Notice. Rather, the State of Nevada requests an in camera inspection of 

4 such records to determine their admissibility. 

5 12. Evidence regarding Las Vegas Justice Court case number 98F02775X in which 

6 Donte Johnson is charged with one count of Possession of a Controlled Substance With 

7 Intent to Sell. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with 

8 the case is 980225-2093. 

9 Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

! O referenced event have been provided to defense counsel. 

11 13. Evidence of a shooting that occurred at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 

12 Boulder Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or about August 11, 1998. The Las Vegas 

13 Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 980811-0995. The 

14 participants in the shooting included TERRELL YOUNG, DONTE JOHNSON and SIKIA 

15 SMITH. The evidence will be introduced through the testimony of witnesses listed in the 

16 discovery associated with event number 980811-0995. 

17 Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

18 referenced event have been provided to defense counsel. 

19 14. Evidence regarding a homicide in which Darnell Lamont Johnson was 

20 murdered at the Thunderbird Hotel in Las Vegas, Nevada on or about the 4th day of August, 

21 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the 

22 homicide is 980805-1240. The evidence will be introduced through the testimony of 

23 witnesses listed in the discovery associated with event number 980805-1240. 

24 Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

25 referenced event have been provided to defense counsel. 

26 15. Testimony and records of Corrections Officers/Jail Personnel/Prison Personnel 

27 from the Clark County Detention Center and Nevada State Prison pertaining to Donte 

28 Johnson's conduct while incarcerated at the Clark County Detention Center. 
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1 Copies of any and all records obtained to date from the Clark County Detention 

2 Center have been provided to defense counsel. The records indicate the names of the 

3 Corrections Officers/Jail Personnel the State intends to call as witnesses at the penalty 

4 hearing. 

5 16. Testimony of Dante Tromba (or designee), a Gang Intelligence Officer 

6 employed by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, who will provide testimony 

7 concerning the activities and purposes of the "Six Deuce Brims" gang. The State will also 

8 introduce evidence to establish that Donte Johnson is a member of the "Six Deuce Brims" 

9 gang. 

10 17. Evidence regarding Las Vegas Justice Court case number 98F06789X in which 

11 Donte Johnson is charged with one count of Attempted Murder With Use of a Deadly 

12 Weapon and one count of Battery With Substantial Bodily Harm. The Las Vegas 

13 Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 980504-0265. The 

14 victim in the case is Derrick Simpson. 

15 Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

16 referenced event have bee4 rovided to defense counsel. 

17 DATED this / 7 -day of March, 2004. 

18 Respectfully submitted, 
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DAVID ROGER 
Clark County Distric torney 
NevarlJ:rf~-"r #00278 
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CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION 

I hereby certify that service of Amended Notice Of Evidence In Support Of 

Aggravating Cricumstance, was made this Jf-lL, day of March, 2004, by facsimile 
I 

transmission to: 

SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER'S OFFICE 
FAX #455-6273 

Secretary for the District Attorney's 
Office 
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NISD 

TRANSMISSION OK 

TX/RX NO 
CONNECTION TEL 
CONNECTION ID 
ST. TIME 
USAGE T 
PGS. SENT 
RESULT 

DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District Attorney 
Nevada Bar '#002781 
OARYL. GUYMON 
ChlefD~uty District Attorney 
Nevada Bar '#003726 
200 South Third Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211 
(702) 455-4711 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
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03/18 07:04 
02'19 

7 
OK 

4556273 

g 
DISTJ.llCT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

9 

10 TI-IE STATE OF NEVADA, 

11 

12 -vs-

Plaintiff, 

13 DONTE JOHNSON, 
#1586283 

14 

15 Defendant. 

) 

Case No. 

Dept No. 

C153154 

V 

16 AMENDED NOTICE OF EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF 

17 AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES 

@001 

18 COMES NOW, the State ofNevada, through DAVID ROGER, Clark County District 

19 Attorney, by and through GARY L. GUYMON, Chief Deputy District Attorney, pursuant to 

20 Supreme Court Rule 250, NRS 175.552 and NRS 200.033, and declares its intention to 

21 present the following evidence in support of aggravating circumstance at a penalty hearing: 
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NlSD 
DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #002781 
GARY L. GUYMON 
Chief Deputy District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #003726 
200 South Third Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211 
(702) 455-4711 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
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DISTRICT COURT 
CLARKCOUNTY,NEVADA 

THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

Plaintiff, 

-vs-

DONTE JOHNSON, 
#1586283 

Defendant. 

) 

Case No. 

Dept No. 

C153154 

V 

SECOND AMENDED NOTICE OF EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF 

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES 

IS 

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, through DA YID ROGER, Clark County District 

Attorney, by and through GARY L. GUYMON, Chief Deputy District Attorney, pursuant to 

Supreme Court Rule 250, NRS 175.552 and NRS 200.033, and declares its intention to 

present the following evidence in support of aggravating circumstance at a penalty hearing: 

1. The statements of TERRELL YOUNG that were given on September 2, 1998, 

to Detectives J, Buczek, T. Thowsen, R. Chandler and K. Hardy of the Las Vegas 

Metropolitan Police Department. TERRELL YOUNG'S statements, which will be offered 

through the testimony of the Detectives, will establish that the murders were committed by 

Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly created a great risk 

of death to more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) 

and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several 
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1 other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally 

2 be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. The statements will also establish that 

3 Donte Johnson was the individual who fired the shots that killed Matthew Mowen, Jeffrey 

4 Biddle, Tracey Gorringe, and Peter Talamantez. Additionally, the statements will offered to 

5 establish Donte Johnson's involvement in a shooting that occurred at the Super 8 Motel 

6 located at 5288 Boulder Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or about August 11, 1998. The 

7 Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 

8 980811-0995. The statements will also be offered to establish Donte Johnson's involvement 

9 in a homicide in which Darnell Lamont Johnson was murdered at the Thunderbird Hotel in 

10 Las Vegas, Nevada on or about the 4th day of August, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan 

11 Police Department event number associated with the homicide is 980805-1240. 

12 The statements of TERRELL YOUNG have been provided to defense counsel in 

13 discovery. 

14 2. The statements of SIKIA SMITH that were given on August 26, 1998 and 

15 September 8, 1998, to Detectives James Buczek and Thomas Thowsen of the Las Vegas 

16 Metropolitan Police Department. SIKIA SMITH'S statements, which will be offered 

17 through the testimony of Detectives Buczek and Thowsen, will establish that the murders 

18 were committed by Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly 

19 created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber 

20 pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in 

21 the midst of several other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) 

22 which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. The statements 

23 will also establish that Donte Johnson was the individual who fired the shots that killed 

24 Matthew Mowen, Jeffrey Biddle, Tracey Gorringe, and Peter Talamantez. Additionally, 

25 the statements will be offered to establish Donte Johnson's involvement in a shooting that 

26 occurred at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 Boulder Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or 

27 about August 11, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number 

28 associated with the case is 980811-0995. 
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• • 
l The statements of SIKIA SMITH have been provided to defense counsel in discovery. 

2 3. The State may rely on the testimony of Sikia Smith and/or Terrell Young. 

3 This testimony will establish that the murders were committed by Donte Johnson and/or 

4 Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than 

5 one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or 

6 course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other persons who were 

7 present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally be hazardous to the 

8 lives of more than one person. 

9 The statements given by Sikia Smith and Terrell Young have been provided to 

l 0 defense counsel in discovery. 

11 4. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst Shawn Fletcher who recovered certain 

12 items of evidence from the residence at 4825 Terra Linda, including, but not limited to, four 

13 (4) .380 caliber cartridge cases and bullet fragments. CSA Fletcher's testimony will 

14 establish that the murders were committed in a manner that created a great risk of death to 

15 more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or 

16 shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other 

17 persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally be 

18 hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

19 Any report(s) generated by CSA Fletcher has been provided to defense counsel in 

20 discovery. 

21 5. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst Sheree Norman, who attended the 

22 autopsies of the four (4) victims in this case and recovered bullet fragments from the 

23 victims' bodies. CSA Norman's testimony will establish that the murders were committed in 

24 a manner that created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon 

25 (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person 

26 or persons in the midst of several other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 

27 Terra Linda) which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

28 Any report(s) generated by CSA Norman has been provided to defense counsel in 
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1 discovery. 

2 6. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst David Horn, who will describe the 

3 residence at 4825 Terra Linda and the location of the victims. CSA Horn's testimony will 

4 establish that the murders were committed in a manner that created a great risk of death to 

5 more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or 

6 shotgun( s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other 

7 persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally be 

8 hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

9 Any report(s) generated by CSA Horn has been provided to defense counsel in 

10 discovery. 

11 7. The victim impact testimony of the parents and/or siblings of Tracey Gorringe, 

12 Mathew Mowen, Peter Talamentez and Jeffrey Biddle. 

13 8. The testimony of Detective James Buczek, Detective Thomas Thowsen, Charla 

14 Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan Johnson, Tod Armstrong, Lashawya Wright, Sikia Smith, and 

15 Terrell Young who, collectively, will testify that Donte Johnson went to 4825 Terra Linda 

16 with Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith with the intention of stealing drugs and/or money 

17 and/or personal property from the occupants of the residence. 

18 Reports and/or statements of these witnesses have been provided to defense counsel 

19 in discovery. 

20 9. The testimony of Charla Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan Johnson, Tod Armstrong, 

21 Lashwya Wright, Sikia Smith, and Terrell Young who, collectively, will testify that the 

22 victims were murdered, at least in part, because some or all of the victims recognized Sikia 

23 Smith and/or Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young. 

24 Statements of these witnesses have been provided to defense counsel in discovery. 

25 10. The State anticipates relying on the verdict(s) and/or verdict forms that were 

26 returned by the jury in the instant case to establish that the Defendant has, in the immediate 

27 proceeding, been convicted of more than one offense of murder in the first or second degree. 

28 11. The juvenile records of DONTE JOHNSON. 
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1 

2 A copy of DONTE JOHNSON's juvenile criminal history has been provided to 

3 defense counsel in discovery; however, in light of confidentiality concerns, a copy has not 

4 been attached to this Notice. Rather, the State of Nevada previously requested an in camera 

5 inspection of such records to determine their admissibility. This evidence includes juvenile 

6 convictions involving a bank robbery with use of a deadly weapon and carrying a concealed 

7 weapon on campus, and the riminal penalties that defendant received. 

8 12. Evidence regarding Las Vegas Justice Court case number 98F02775X in which 

9 Donte Johnson is charged with one count of Possession of a Controlled Substance With 

10 Intent to Sell. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with 

11 the case is 980225-2093. 

12 Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

13 referenced event have been provided to defense counsel. 

14 13. Evidence of a shooting that occurred at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 

15 Boulder Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or about August 11, 1998. The Las Vegas 

16 Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 980811-0995. The 

17 participants in the shooting included TERRELL YOUNG, DONTE JOHNSON and SIKIA 

18 SMITH. The evidence will be introduced through the testimony of witnesses listed in the 

19 discovery associated with event number 980811-0995. 

20 Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

21 referenced event have been provided to defense counsel. 

22 14. Evidence regarding a homicide in which Darnell Lamont Johnson was 

23 murdered at the Thunderbird Hotel in Las Vegas, Nevada on or about the 4th day of August, 

24 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the 

25 homicide is 980805-1240. The evidence will be introduced through the testimony of 

26 witnesses listed in the discovery associated with event number 980805-1240. 

27 Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

28 referenced event have been provided to defense counsel. 
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1 15. Testimony and records of Corrections Officers/Jail Personnel/Prison Personnel 

2 from the Clark County Detention Center and Nevada State Prison pertaining to Donte 

3 Johnson's conduct while incarcerated at the Clark County Detention Center and within the 

4 Nevada Department of Corrections. This evidence will include, but is not limited to an 

5 incident that occurred on February 24, 2001, wherin defendant along with another inmate 

6 threw OSCAR !RIA over a railing with the Clark County Detention Center. 

7 Copies of any and all records obtained to date from the Clark County Detention 

8 Center have been provided to defense counsel. The records indicate the names of the 

9 Corrections Officers/Jail Personnel the State intends to call as witnesses at the penalty 

10 hearing. 

11 16. Testimony of Dante Tromba (or designee), a Gang Intelligence Officer 

12 employed by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department and/or gang intelligence officer 

13 employed with the Los Angeles Police Department, who will provide testimony concerning 

14 the activities and purposes of the "Six Deuce Brims" gang. The State will also introduce 

15 evidence to establish that Donte Johnson is a member of the "Six Deuce Brims" gang . 
. 

16 17. Evidence regarding Las Vegas Justice Court case number 98F06789X in which 

17 Donte Johnson was charged with one count of Attempted Murder With Use of a Deadly 

18 Weapon and one count of Battery With Substantial Bodily Harm. The Las Vegas 

19 Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 980504-0265. The 

20 victim in the case is Derrick Simpson, who has died as a result of the injuries he sustained. 

21 Donte Johsnon plead guilty to Battery With Use Of A Deadly Weapon in Case No. 

22 98F06789X. 

23 18. Letters and/or correspondence of Donte Johnson to Sikia Smith, Terrell Young 

24 and Charla Severs. 

25 Copies of the letters have been provided to defense counsel. 

26 Ill 

27 /// 

28 /// 
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l Copies of any and all witness statements and reports associated with the above-

2 referenced event have been provided to defense counsel. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
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13 

14 

15 

16 
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DATED this & day of April, 2004. 

Respectfully submitted, 

DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District 
Neva ar #002781 

CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION 

I hereby certify that service of Amended Notice Of Evidence In Support Of 

Aggravating Circumstance, was made this pt:::i day of April, 2004, by facsimile 

transmission to: 

SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER'S OFFICE 
FAX #455-6273 

S=>l~,71! ~& Alillrney's 
Office 
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10 THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

11 

12 -vs-

Plaintiff, 

13 DONTE JOHNSON, 
#1586283 

14 

15 Defendant. 

) 

Case No. 

Dept No. 

C153154 

V 

~001 

16 SECOND AMENDED NOTICE OF EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF 

17 AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES 

18 COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, through DAVID ROGER, Clark County District 

19 Attorney, by and through GARY L. GUYMON, Chief Deputy District Attorney, pursuant to 

20 Supreme Court Rule 250, NRS 175.552 and NRS 200.033, and declares its intention to 

21 present the following evidence in support of aggravating circumstance at a penalty hearing: 
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3 BRET 0. WHIPPLE 
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THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

DONTE JOHNSON, 

Defendant. 
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) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CASE NO. C153154 

DEPT. NO. VIII 

DATE OF HEARING: 
TIME OF HEARING: 

DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO THE STATE'S SECOND AMENDED 
NOTICE OF EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES 

19 

19 

20 

21 

22 

COMES NOW, the Defendant, DONTE JOHNSON, by and through his attorneys, 

ALZORA B. JACKSON, Deputy Special Public Defender and BRET 0. WHIPPLE, Deputy 

Special Public Defender and hereby submits the following Response and Opposition to 

State's Second Amended Notice of Evidence in Support of Aggravating Circumstances. 
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1 For the sake of simplicity the Defendant's opposition papers will follow the same 

2 format numerically as that used by the State in its Second Amended Notice. 

3 This Response and Opposition is made and based upon the attached Points and 

4 Authorities, all papers on file herein, and on oral argument, if any, at the time of the 

5 hearing of said notice. 

6 DATED thisJ{l_ day of April, 2004. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 1 . 

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

The statements of TERRELL YOUNG that were given on September 2, 1998, 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

14 to Detectives J. Buczek, T. Thowsen, R. Chandler and K. hardy of the Las Vegas 

Metropolitan Police Department. TERRELL YOUNG'S statements, which will be offered 

through the testimony of the Detectives, will establish that the murders were committed 

by Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly created a 

great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol 

and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the 

midst of several other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) 

which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. The 

statements will also establish that Donte Johnson was the individual who fired the shots 

that killed Matthew Mowen, Jeffrey Biddle, Tracey Gorringe and Peter Talamantez. 

Additionally, the statements will be offered to establish Donte Johnson's involvement in 

a shooting that occurred at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 Boulder Highway, Las 

Vegas, Nevada on or about August 11, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 

Department event number associated with the case is 980811-0995. The statements 

will also be offered to establish Donte Johnson's involvement in a homicide in which 

2 
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Darnell Lamont Johnson was murdered at the Thunderbird Hotel in Las Vegas, Nevada 

on or about the 4th day of August, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department 

event number associated with the homicide is 980805-1240. 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson objects to any statements of his Co-Defendant Terrell 

Young coming into these proceedings. The basis of Defendant's objection is that it has 

long been the law in the State of Nevada that absence some hearsay exception, admitting 

a non-testifying Co-Defendant's confession against another Co-Defendant generally 

violates the Sixth Amendment right to confrontation. Bruton v. United States, 391 U.S. 

123, 137 ( 1 968). The Bruton rule has been applied to the penalty phase of a capital case 

as well. See, Lord v. State, 107 Nev. 28; 806 P.2d 548 (1991). In holding Bruton 

standards to the penalty phase in capital proceedings, our Supreme Court stated: 

The need for cross examination to test the fundamental reliability of co­
defendants often suspect statements is not less great in the penalty phase 
than in the guilt phase. In accord with the California Supreme Court, we 
conclude that the right of cross-examination and the need for accuracy are 
as important, indeed more important, in the penalty phase than in the guilt 
phase. We recognize that at least one court has suggested that Bruton does 
not apply in the penalty phase, but this position is not persuasive. 

Id, at pg. 44. 

2. The statement of SIKIA SMITH that were given on August 26, 1998 and 

September 8, 1998, to Detectives James Buczek and Thomas Thowsen of the Las Vegas 

Metropolitan Police Department. SIKIA SMITH'S statements, which will be offered 

through the testimony of Detectives Buczek and Thowsen, will establish that the murders 

were committed by Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who 

knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon 

(.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person 

or persons in the midst of several other persons who were present in the residence at 

4825 Terra Linda which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one 

person. The statements will also establish that Donte Johnson was the individual who 

fired the shots that killed Matthew Mowen, Jeffrey Biddle, Tracey Gorringe and Peter 

3 
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1 Talamantez. Additionally, the statements will be offered to establish Donte Johnson's 

2 involvement in a shooting that occurred at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 Boulder 

3 Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or about August 11, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan 

4 Police Department event number associated with the case is 980811-0995. 

5 

6 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson objects to the introduction of these statements for the 

7 exact same reasons set forth in number 1 and they shall be incorporated herein as though 

8 fully set forth. 

9 3. The State may rely on the testimony of Sikia Smith and/or Terrell Young. 

10 This testimony will establish that the murders were committed by Donte Johnson and/or 

11 Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, who knowingly created a great risk of death to more 

12 than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or 

13 shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other 

14 persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally 

15 be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

16 

17 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Item No. 3 as expressed by the State is somewhat ambiguous. In line 1 of number 

18 3 it refers to "the testimony" of Sikia Smith and/or Terrell Young. However, the last 

19 paragraph of number 3 refers to statements by Sikia Smith and Terrell Young. To the 

20 extent that the State is referring to the statements of these two Co-Defendants, again, 

21 refer to Defendant's response in item number 1 and it is incorporated herein as though 

22 fully set forth. 

23 To the extent that the State intends to use prior sworn testimony of these two Co-

24 Defendants from any previous proceedings, counsel would object to the use of such 

25 testimony on the same basis as set forth in number 1 above. To the extent that any such 

26 testimony exists, it would not have been subject to the cross-examination of Donte 

27 Johnson's attorneys and would have the same confrontation clause issues and Bruton 

28 issues as the statements and therefore inadmissible. 

4 
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1 4. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst Shawn Fletcher who recovered 

2 certain items of evidence from the residence at 4825 Terra Linda, including, but not 

3 limited to, four (4) .380 caliber cartridge cases and bullet fragments. CSA Fletcher's 

4 testimony will establish that the murders were committed in a manner that created a 

5 great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol 

6 and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the 

7 midst of several other persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) 

8 which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

9 DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

10 Defense realizes that the State certainly is allowed to put on testimony of Crime 

11 Scene Analyst Shawn Fletcher regarding the evidence that was recovered from the 

12 residence at 4825 Terra Linda including caliber cases and bullet fragments. However, the 

13 State's intention to use this testimony to establish that the murders were committed in 

14 a manner that created a great risk of death to more than one person, one of the statutory 

15 aggravators is improper. As indicated by attached Exhibit "1 ", in the State's amended 

16 Notice of Intent to Seek Death Penalty they have not alleged that the murder was 

17 committed by a person who normally created a great risk of death to more than one 

18 person by means of a weapon, etc. Therefore, this type of testimony by Crime Scene 

19 Fletcher would be irrelevant and extremely prejudicial. It is interesting to note that this 

20 particular aggravator which is number 3 under NRS 200.033 which sets forth the 

21 circumstances which would aggravate First Degree Murder, in the previous penalty 

22 hearing before the jury was stricken by Judge Sobel. Judge Sobel found that all the 

23 evidence in this case was that the victims were killed by bullets at close range coming 

24 out of the gun. "I think to speculate that there was risk of death to co-defendants is 

25 awfully tenuous . Number 3 will be stricken and the others will stand." (See attached 

26 Exhibit "2 ", transcript from penalty phase Day One before Donte Johnson jury trial, page 

27 27). Additionally, Judge Sobel found that aggravator number 3 should also be stricken 

28 because it was duplicitive of aggravator number 12 which is that the Defendant has, in 

5 
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1 the immediate proceedings been convicted of more than one offense of murder in the 

2 First or Second Degree. Therefore, under all of the applicable law relating to relevance 

3 and the balancing of probative versus prejudicial testimony in a penalty phase, Crime 

4 Scene Analyst Shawn Fletcher should not be allowed to speculate and provide testimony 

5 that goes to an aggravator that has not been alleged. See, Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 

6 952, 860 P.2d 1710 (1993). Moreover, under the Doctrine of stare decisis, this Court 

7 should abide the formal ruling by Judge Sobel. According to Black's Law Dictionary, 

8 under the Doctrine of stare decisis a deliberate or solemn decision of Court made after 

9 argument on the question of law fairly arising in the case, and necessary to its 

10 determination, is an authority, or binding precedent in this same Court or in other Courts 

11 of equal or lower rank in subsequent cases where the very point is again in controversy. 

12 (Black's Law Dictionary 4th Edition West Publishing Company (1951 )). 

13 5. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst Sheree Norman, who attended the 

14 autopsies of the four (4) victims in this case and recovered bullet fragments from the 

15 victims' bodies. CSA Norman's testimony will establish that the murders were committed 

16 in a manner that created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a 

17 weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or shotgun(s) or course of action (shooting 

18 a person or persons in the midst of several other persons who were present in the 

19 residence at 4815 Terra Linda) which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more 

20 than one person. 

21 

22 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

The Defendant Donte Johnson objects to any testimony coming in from Crime 

23 Scene Analyst Norman which seeks to establish that the murders were committed in a 

24 manner that created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a 

25 weapon. The reasons for the Defendant's objection are set forth in number 4 above and 

26 are incorporated by reference herein just as though fully set forth herein. 

27 6. The testimony of Crime Scene Analyst David Horn, who will describe the 

28 residence at 4825 Terra Linda and the location of the victims. CSA Horn's testimony will 
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1 establish that the murders were committed in a manner that created a great risk of death 

2 to more than one person by means of a weapon (.380 caliber pistol and/or rifle(s) and/or 

3 shotgun(s)) or course of action (shooting a person or persons in the midst of several other 

4 persons who were present in the residence at 4825 Terra Linda) which would normally 

5 be hazardous to the lives of more than one person. 

6 DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

7 See response to number 4 which is incorporated by reference as though fully set 

8 forth herein. 

9 7. The victim impact testimony of the parents and/or siblings of Tracey 

10 Gorringe, Matthew Mowen, Peter Talamantez and Jeffrey Biddle. 

11 

12 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson objects to victim impact testimony of an excessive 

13 nature. The State is certainly allowed to present to the jury each victim's uniqueness as 

14 an individual human being. Further, they are allowed to elicit brief testimony regarding 

15 the impact of the victim's death on the family. Payne v. Tennessee, 501 U.S. 808;111 

16 S.Ct. 2597; 115 L.Ed. 2d 720; (1991 ). 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

"Victim impact testimony is permitted at a capital penalty proceeding under 
NRS 175.552(3) and under federal due process standards, but it must be 
excluded if it renders the proceeding fundamentally unfair. The United 
States Supreme Court has stated that victim impact evidence during a 
capital penalty hearing is relevant to show each victims uniqueness as an 
individual human being. Admissibility of testimony during the penalty phase 
of a capital trial is a question within the district court's discretion, and this 
court reviews only for abuse of discretion. 

Floyd v. State, 118 Nev. Adv.Rptr. pg. 17; 42 P.3d 249, 261 (2002) 

It has long been the law in the United States of America in cases where a 

Defendant is fighting for his very life, that a death penalty should be based on reason 

rather than caprice or emotion. See, Gardner v. Florida, 430 U.S. 349; 97 S.Ct. 1197; 

51 L.Ed 2d 393 (1977). 

In the instant case, admittedly you have four young men who have been the victim 

of a terrible homicide. Nevertheless, there has to be some limit on a long parade of family 
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members including parents, siblings, etc. before this jury otherwise the Defendant will be 

denied a fair hearing. Judge Sobel addressed this very issue back in June of 2000. 

Judge Sobel limited the victim impact testimony to one (1) parent per victim. (See 

transcript pg. 15). The Judge in that proceeding pointed out that whichever parent did 

not testify at the penalty hearing would of course have a chance to address the Court at 

the formal sentencing. Therefore, he limited the victim impact to one (1) parent for each 

of the victims. Additionally, in an effort to balance the fairness in the proceedings, the 

Judge in that case also provided some guidelines as far as the length of time that each 

parent were to testify as well as what type of visual aids the State would be using. The 

agreed upon amount of time previously was fifteen (15) minutes and it appears from the 

record that the State was limited to one (1) or two (2) photographs of each of the 

victims. Under the Federal Constitution Sixth, Eighth, Fifth and Fourteenth Amendment 

and anything else that has to do with due process and a fair trial, any more than this 

would violate Donte Johnson's rights. See, Payne, supra and Floyd. supra. 

8. The testimony of Detective James Buczek, Detective Thomas Thowsen, 

Charla Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan Johnson, Tod Armstrong, Lashawya Wright, Sikia Smith, 

and Terrell Young who, collectively, will testify that Donte Johnson went to 4825 Terra 

Linda with Terrell Young and/or Sikia smith with the intention of stealing drugs and/or 

money and/or personal property from the occupants of the residence. 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Regarding the testimony of Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith, Defendant Donte 

Johnson reaffirms the same arguments as set forth in number one. As to the testimony 

of Detective James Buczek, Detective Thomas Thowsen, Charla Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan 

Johnson, Tod Armstrong and Lashaway Wright the Defendant objects to any testimony 

coming in that is not directly authorized by statute and/or case law. 

9. The testimony of Charla Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan Johnson, Tod Armstrong, 

Lashawya Wright, Sikia Smith, and Terrell Young, who, collectively, will testify that the 

victims were murdered, at least in part, because some or all of the victims recognized 
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1 Sikia Smith and/or Donte Johnson and/or Terrell Young. 

2 DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

3 As to the testimony of Co-Defendants Sikia Smith and Terrell Young, Defendant 

4 Donte Johnson reasserts the argument set forth in number one as set forth herein. As 

5 to the testimony of Charla Severs, Ace Hart, Bryan Johnson, Tod Armstrong, and 

6 Lashaway Wright, the Defendant objects to any testimony that is not directly authorized 

7 by Nevada Revised Statute or Nevada case law. 

8 10. The State anticipates relying on the verdict(s) and/or verdict forms that were 

9 returned by the jury in the instant case to establish that the Defendant has, in the 

10 immediate proceeding, been convicted of more than one offense of murder in the first or 

11 second degree. 

12 DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

13 Defendant Donte Johnson will submit this matter to the Court based upon the 

14 record. 

15 

16 

17 

11. The juvenile records of DONTE JOHNSON. 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson objects to the admission of his juvenile records as being 

18 inadmissible for any purposes pursuant to NRS Chapter 62 eq. seq. 

19 12. Evidence regarding Las Vegas Justice Court case number 98FO2775X in 

20 which Donte Johnson is charged with one count of Possession of a Controlled Substance 

21 With Intent to Sell. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number 

22 associated with the case is 980225-2093. 

23 

24 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson objects to the introduction of this evidence on the basis 

25 of number one, relevance, and number two it is far too dubious and tenuous for 

26 admission. 

27 According to Blackstone, the Defendant was arrested for this offense on or about 

28 February 25, 1998. Apparently a complaint was filed on April 10, 1998. Thereafter, on 
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August 7, 2000, the action was dismissed on the Court's motion. A trial court should 

not admit evidence which in impalpable or highly suspect in a penalty phase. Young v. 

State, 103 Nev. 233,237, 737 P.2d 512,515 (1987). Also, the trial judge may not 

admit evident that is dubious or tenuous. Allen v. State, 99 Nev. 485, 488, 665 P.2d 

238, 240 (1983). There must be a showing by the State before this type of evidence 

is allowed in that Donte Johnson in fact committed this offense. Thereafter, there must 

be a showing that its probative value is not outweighed by prejudice. See, D' Agostino 

v. State, 107 Nev. 1001; 823 P.2d 283 (1991 ). Putting aside the fact that this evidence 

is irrelevant, the State cannot clear these two hurdles in getting this evidence admitted. 

Therefore, this evidence should not be allowed. 

13. Evidence of a shooting that occurred at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 

Boulder Highway, Las Vegas, Nevada on or about August 11, 1998. The Las Vegas 

Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 980811-0995. 

The participants in the shooting included TERRELL YOUNG, DONTE JOHNSON, and SIKIA 

SMITH. The evidence will be introduced through the testimony of witnesses listed in the 

discovery associated with event number 980811-0995. 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant's Donte Johnson objects to the admission of any evidence regarding a 

shooting that allegedly occurred at the Super 8 Motel. Donte Johnson was never charged 

with this offense or prosecuted for it. The spurious nature of the allegations themselves 

are not supported by the type of credible evidence that would allow their admission. 

Under NRS 175.552, evidence which may or may not ordinarily be admissible under the 

rule of evidence may be admitted in the penalty phase of a capital trial as long as the 

questioned evidence is not supported solely by impalpable or highly suspect evidence. 

This includes alleged crimes for which the Defendant has not been convicted. However, 

this evidence is not admitted to establish the existence of any aggravating circumstance 

but rather as "other matter" which the Court deems relevant to sentence. The 

determination of whether to admit or exclude such evidence is left to the sound discretion 

10 

AA08538



SPECIAL PUBLIC 
DEFENDER 

Cl-ARK COUNTY 
NEVADA 

• • 
1 of the trial Court. Hornick v. State, 108 Nev. 127, 138, 825 P.2d 600 (1992). 

2 14. Evidence regarding a homicide in which Darnell Lamont Johnson was 

3 murdered at the Thunderbird Hotel in Las Vegas, Nevada on or about the 4th day of 

4 August, 1998. The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department event number associated 

5 with the homicide is 980805-1240. The evidence will be introduced through the 

6 testimony of witnesses listed in the discovery associated with event number 980805-

7 1240. 

8 DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

9 Defendant Donte Johnson objects to the admission of this evidence. This is a 

10 homicide allegedly occurring on or about August 5, 1998. Donte Johnson has never been 

11 formally charged with this offense despite his having been in custody since on or about 

12 August 17, 1998. One also has to appreciate and be reminded that in the instant case 

13 before this Court, Donte Johnson has been convicted of the murder of four (4) young 

14 men. Given the foregoing, this Court has to be very careful with whatever else under the 

15 "other matter" evidence it allows in pursuant to its sound discretion. One has to be 

16 reminded that: 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

"death is a different kind of punishment from any other which may be 
imposed in this country". Gregg v. Georgia, 428 U.S. 153, 181-188; 
Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. at 286-291. 

From the point of view of the Defendant it is different in both its severity 
and finality. From the point of view of society, the action of the sovereign 
in taking the life of one of its citizens also differs dramatically from any 
other legitimate state action. It is of vital importance to the Defendant and 
to the community that any decision to impose the death sentence, be, and 
appear to be, based on reason rather than caprice or emotion. Gardner v. 
Florida, 430 U.S. 349, 357-358; 97 S.Ct. 1197; 51 L.Ed.2d 393; (1977). 

It is because of these considerations that this Honorable Court has to determine 

24 whether or not introducing an unrelated, uncharged homicide into this case is a violation 

25 of Defendant's right to a fair trial. 

26 The Court must be very careful in deciding to admit an uncharged, unrelated 

27 homicide in this already highly emotionally charged case. As noted in D' Agostino v. 

28 State, 107 Nev. 1001;823 P.2d 283 (1991), the Court stated as follows: 
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In death cases the proof of other crimes is intended not to show the guilt of 
the accused but, rather to display the character of the convict and to show 
culpability and just desserts on the party of the homicidal convict. Past 
criminal activity is one of the most critical factors in the process of 
assessing punishment for whatever purpose punishment might be inflicted. 
Past misconduct relates to the criminal's blame worthiness for the charged 
homicide and relates, as well to whether the jury deems it necessary for 
public safety to impose a revocable, permanent quarantine upon the 
murderer. The point is that past homicidal conduct of the subject of a death 
penalty hearing goes to the very heart of the jury's decision making process. 
Property admitted evidence of past criminal conduct is even more damaging 
in apparent penalty hearing than it is in a guilt determining proceeding 
because the past conduct goes to the substance of whether the murder 
should or should not be punished by death .... while past murders are 
relevant, even vital to the penalty hearing when properly called to the jury's 
attention, unreliability (sic) demonstrated past killings are harmful in the 
extreme and simply cannot be overlooked by a reviewing court. 

Based on the foregoing considerations we now hold that testimony in a 
penalty hearing related to supposed admissions by the convict as to past 
homicidal criminal conduct may not be heard by the jury unless the trial 
judge first determines that the details of the admissions supply a sufficient 
indetia of reliability or there is some credible evidence other than the 
admission itself to justify the conclusion that the convict committed the 
crimes which are the subject of the admission. Id, at pg.1004 

In the instant case, it is submitted that the proffered evidence does not meet the 

standard as set forth in D' Auqostino. In any event, Mr. Johnson would assert his right 

for the Judge to first determine that the proffered evidence has some indicia of reliability 

before admitting this very damaging testimony. 

15. Testimony and records of Corrections Officers/Jail Personnel/Prison 

Personnel from the Clark County Detention Center and Nevada State Prison pertaining to 

Donte Johnson's conduct while incarcerated at the Clark County Detention Center and 

within the Nevada Department of Corrections. This evidence will include, but is not 

limited to an incident that occurred on February 24, 2001, where defendant along with 

another inmate threw OSCAR IRIA over a railing within the Clark County Detention 

Center. 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson would submit to the Court's discretion whether or not 

to admit testimony and records of Correction Officers and jail personnel from the Clark 
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1 County Detention Center and the Nevada State Prison in general. However, Donte 

2 Johnson takes very strong exception and objects to any evidence that would reference 

3 in any manner an incident that occurred on February 24, 2001, wherein Defendant along 

4 with another inmate allegedly threw Oscar Irias over a railing at the Clark County 

5 Detention Center. The basis of this objection is that first of all it is extremely prejudicial 

6 and lacks any probative value. The record herein will reflect that Donte Johnson did not 

7 have any responsibility for this act. 

8 As a matter of fact, on July 18, 2001, another inmate who was charged along 

9 with Donte Johnson, aka John White plead guilty to both counts in Case No. C174692. 

10 The other inmate, Reginald Johnson, entered into a plea agreement on the express 

11 condition that the case be dismissed with prejudice against his Co-Defendant White. See, 

12 attached Exhibit "3", a copy of the District Court minutes from that matter). 

13 Moreover, this case was worked up extensively for trial by the then defense 

14 attorney Gloria Navarro. Although the matter was bound over from preliminary hearing 

15 there was ample evidence to believe that a not guilty plea would have been obtained 

16 against both defendants if the matter had proceeded to trial. The defense investigation 

17 of this case revealed that the victim, Oscar Irias, was in custody on charges of First 

18 Degree Kidnapping and Sexual Assault on a Minor under the age of Fourteen, both of 

19 which carry penalties of a life sentence in the Nevada State Prison. Even though Mr. Irias 

20 did not want to press charges, the State offered to assist him if he pursued prosecution 

21 of this matter. As a matter of fact, Oscar Irias was the recipient of a very favorable plea 

22 agreement which allowed him to plead to coercion, a crime which carries a penalty of one 

23 to six years with the possibility of probation. 

24 More importantly, based upon the investigation of the defense attorney in this 

25 matter, it was determined that the corrections officers who were testifying in this 

26 incident could not have possibly witnessed the events that they claim. As a matter of 

27 fact, counsel is in possession of a video tape which would show that the officers vantage 

28 point was obstructed in this regard. 
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1 Essentially, what Mr. Johnson has suggested to the Court is that this incident is 

2 so crucial and critical to whether or not he lives or dies in this penalty phase because it 

3 is the only incident involving violence he has suffered since being arrested in 1998. This 

4 incident standing alone,if lodged falsely against Mr. Johnson could be sufficient to 

5 convince a penalty phase jury that he cannot be safely housed and that he must be put 

6 to death. Therefore, this issue must be litigated before this Court makes such a 

7 determination. See, Gardner v. Florida, supra; D' Agostino v. State, supra; and Parker v. 

8 State, 109 Nev. 383; 849 P.2d 1062 (1993). Attached hereto as Exhibit "5" is a Waiver 

9 of Conflict submitted by Mr. Reginald Johnson. In that Waiver of Conflict, Mr. Johnson 

10 acknowledges that his former attorney Gloria Navarro is now employed with the office 

11 which represents Donte Johnson, aka John White. He further acknowledges that Ms. 

12 Navarro has information which would be helpful in representing Mr. Johnson in these 

13 proceedings. More importantly, Mr. Johnson agrees that if the State seeks to introduce 

14 any testimony against Mr. Donte Johnson involving the alleged attempt murder upon 

15 Oscar Irias, that he would be called as a witness to testify on behalf of Mr. Johnson that 

16 he did not participate in this incident. 

17 This is critical to Mr. Johnson's case. Therefore, a decision as to the reliability and 

18 credibility of this evidence has to be made in advance of these proceedings and outside 

19 the presence of a jury. Given the immense amount of evidence the defense has to show 

20 that Donte Johnson was not involved, the only determination this Court could make is 

21 that this evidence is impalpable and very highly suspect and therefore, has no place in 

22 this penalty phase. ]..Q at pg. 390. 

23 16. Testimony of Dante Tromba (or designee), a Gang Intelligence Officer 

24 employed by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department and/or gang intelligence 

25 officer employed with the Los Angeles Police Department, who will provide testimony 

26 concerning the activities and purposes of the "Six Deuce Brims" gang. The State will 

27 also introduce evidence to establish that Donte Johnson is a member of the "Six Deuce 

28 Brims" gang. 
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DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson objects to any testimony of a so-called gang intelligence 

3 officer employed by the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department regarding the activities 

4 of the "Six Deuce Brims". There is absolutely no evidence in the discovery provided to 

5 counsel since August of 1998 which would suggest that Donte Johnson was operating 

6 as a "Six Deuce Brims" gang member here in Clark County, Nevada. Moreover, all of the 

7 evidence in this case was overwhelming to show that Donte Johnson was recruited and 

8 an active member of the "Six Deuce Brims" in Los Angeles, California only. Therefore, 

9 this evidence as to this Metro office would be irrelevant and extremely prejudicial and 

10 therefore should be excluded. 

11 17. Evidence regarding Las Vegas Justice Court case number 98FO6789X in 

12 which Donte Johnson was charged with one count of Attempted Murder With Use of a 

13 Deadly Weapon and one count of Battery With Substantial Bodily Harm. The Las Vegas 

14 Metropolitan Police Department event number associated with the case is 980504-0265. 

15 The victim in the case is Derrick Simpson, who has died as a result of the injuries he 

16 sustained. Donte Johnson plead guilty to Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon in Case 

17 No. 98FO6789X. 

18 

19 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Defendant Donte Johnson plead guilty pursuant to Alford to a reduced charge of 

20 Battery with use of a Deadly Weapon in reference to the injuries sustained by Derrick 

21 Simpson. Derrick Simpson was alive and testified at Donte Johnson's previous penalty 

22 hearings. As a matter of fact, the State has been granted permission in its Notice of 

23 Motion and Motion to Admit Former Testimony to use the preliminary hearing testimony 

24 of Derrick Simpson which was videotaped and where the prior penalty phase transcribed 

25 testimony of Derrick Simpson. The record will reflect that the defense attorney did not 

26 object to the use of this former sworn testimony inasmuch as the witness is clearly 

27 unavailable. 

28 There can, however, be no mention whatsoever of the fact that Derrick Simpson 
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1 has since died. First of all, there has been no showing whatsoever that Derrick Simpson 

2 died as a result of any actions on the part of Donte Johnson. The record in this case will 

3 reflect that Derrick Simpson was a practicing crack head in his 4O's at the time when he 

4 was allegedly shot by Donte Johnson. There has been no showing whatsoever that Mr. 

5 Simpson did not die of circumstances surrounding his lifestyle. Another very good reason 

6 why this jury should not be informed about Derrick Simpson's death is that the State 

7 itself could not have prosecuted Donte Johnson for the murder of Derrick Simpson. 

8 Derrick Simpson was allegedly shot by Donte Johnson on or about May 4, 1998. While 

9 counsel does not know the exact date of Mr. Simpson's demise, he clearly was alive and 

10 well in June of 2000. Under the state of the law as it existed at the time of this crime, 

11 Donte Johnson could not have been prosecuted for the death of Derrick Simpson because 

12 death did not occur within a year and a day of the shooting which was the law at that 

13 time. (See attached Exhibits "7" attached hereto, the Criminal Complaint charging Donte 

14 Johnson with the Attempt Murder of Derrick Simpson and Exhibit ("8") NRS 200.100). 

15 The law in this area does not necessarily require a conviction or a prosecutable 

16 offense in order for the Court to allow the admission of this type of evidence under the 

17 "other matter" which the Court deems relevant to sentence. See, Hornick, supra. 

18 Nevertheless, the determination of whether to admit or exclude such evidence is left to 

19 the Court's sound discretion. We would submit that in a situation like this where Donte 

20 Johnson's third penalty hearing which is being held four (4) years after the first, should 

21 not prejudice him in any way. The record herein will reflect that Donte Johnson moved 

22 for and did his best to obtain a second jury penalty hearing back in June of 2000 after 

23 the first jury trial was declared a mistrial. It would therefore violate procedural due 

24 process as well as fundamental fairness to punish Donte Johnson for the delay in these 

25 proceedings by allowing this jury to know that Derrick Simpson has since expired. 

26 Therefore, this information must be kept away from this jury to avoid tainting it with any 

27 unfair and prejudicial information. 

28 
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1 18. Letters and/or correspondence of Donte Johnson to Sikia Smith, Terrell 

2 Young and Charla Severs. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 
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24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE 

Once again, Defendant Donte Johnson objects to the introduction of any of these 

letters. This issue was addressed thoroughly by Judge Sobel in the first penalty phase 

at page 16. The Court indicated that it found the letters to be "consistently profane, 

almost rap type letters between Mr. Johnson and his Co-Defendant. They're filled with 

profanity. They are filled with racial epithets. They show, it seems, a fairly intelligent, 

cocky young man who is still enjoying his life in jail, who may be doesn't particularly even 

care if he gets the death penalty. Seems that the more I thought about it, it might very 

well affect the proper consideration of the jury in terms of what they should be focusing 

on .... I read them as nothing more than profanity laden communications between these 

co-conspirators, something that you couldn't take out all the references to nigger and all 

the profanity and I just don't particularly see any probative value that could outweigh the 

possible prejudice." (Transcript pgs. 16-17). Therefore, the previous Court ruled that the 

letters could not come in inasmuch as they would interfere with a reasoned and rational 

decision to impose the death sentence rather than one based upon caprice and emotion. 

See, Gardner, supra. ~ 

DATED this~D day of April, 2004. 

ALZ 
Dep y Special Fl blic Defender 
Nevada Bar No. 2255 
333 South Third Street, 2nd Floor 
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2316 
(702) 455-6265 
Attorney for Defendant 
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RECEIPT OF COPY 

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO THE STATE'S 

SECOND AMENDED NOTICE OF EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF AGGRAVATING 

CIRCUMSTANCES is hereby acknowledged this 9Dday of April, 2004. 

DAVID ROGER 
District Attorney 
200 S. Third Street 
Las Vegas, NV 89155 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
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• 
NISD 
DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District Attorney 
Nevada Bar 11002781 
GARY L. GUYMON 
Chief Deputy District Attorney 
Nevada Bar 1#003726 
200 South Third Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89l55-221 l 
(702) 455-4711 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

• 

THE STATE OF NEV ADA, 

Plaintiff, 

-vs-

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

) 

CASE NO: 

14] 001 

Cl53154 

DEPTNO: V 
11 DONTE JOHNSON, 

#1586283 
12 

13 Defendant. 

14 AMENDED NOTICE OFINTENTTOSEEKDEATHPENALTY 

15 COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, through DAVID ROGER, Clark County District 

16 Attorney, by and through GARY L. GUYMON, Chief Deputy District Attorney, pursuant to 

17 NRS 175.552 and NRS 200.033 and declares its intention to seek the death penalty at a 

18 penalty hearing, Furthermore, the State of Nevada discloses that it will present evidence of 

19 the following aggravating circumstances: 

20 4. The murder was committed while the person was engaged, alone or with others, in the 

21 commission of or an attempt to commit or flight after committing or attempting to commit, 

22 any robbery, arson in the first degree, burglary, invasion of the home or kidnapping in the 

23 first degree, and the person charged: 

24 (a) Killed or attempted to kill the person murdered; 

25 5. The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape 

26 from custody. 

27 12. The defendant has, in the immediate proceeding, been convicted of more than one 

28 
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1 offense of murder in the first or second degree. For the purposes of this subsection, a person 

2 shall be deemed to have been convicted of a murder at the time the jury verdict of guilt is 

3 rendered or upon pronounce!,?ent of guilt by a judge or judges sitting without a jury. 

4 DATED this /l,t, day of March, 2004. 

5 Respectfully submitted, 
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BY 

ChiefD!i,uty Dis1l'ict Attorney 
Nevada l3ar ¥/003726 

CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION 

I hereby certify that service of Amended Notice Of Intent To Seek Death Penalty, was 

made this / ~day of March, 2004, by facsimile transmission to: 

GLG/ddm 

SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER'S OFFICE 
FAX #455-6273 

Ii~~:~ District Attorney's 
Office 
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FILED IN OPEN COURT -

Jllbl ~QQ. 20 
DISTRICT comSHIRLEY B. +aRllAGUIRRE, CLER 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVAD_A~~':":"-:-:;:-;-:~ttii--ru:Pim 
* * * * * BY. DEPU Y CAROLE O'ALOIA 

STATE OF NEVADA 

Plaintiff 

vs. 

DONTE JOHNSON, 
aka John Lee White 

Defendant 

CASE NO. C153154 

DEPT. V 
DOCKET "H" 

Transcript of 
Proceedings 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JEFFREY D. SOBEL, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

JURY TRIAL - PENALTY PHASE - DAY 1 - A.M. SESSION 
TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2000 

APPEARANCES: 

FOR THE PLAINTIFF: 

FOR THE DEFENDANT: 

COURT REPORTER: 

SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY 
District Court 

VOLUME I 

GARY L. GUYMON 
Chief Deputy District Attorney 
ROBERT J. DASKAS 
Deputy District Attorney 

DAYVID J. FIGLER 
Deputy Special Public Defender 
JOSEPHS. SCISCENTO 

TRANSCRIPTION BY: 

NORTHWEST TRANSCRIPTS, INC. 
Las Vegas Division 
P.O. Box 35257 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89133-5257 
(702) 658-9626 

Proceedings recorded by electronic sound recording, transcript 
produced by transcription service. 
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2000 

(Jury is not present) 

THE COURT: ..... to make a record. 

4 Relative to the penalty phase, first of all, the 

5 motion to sever the -- or bifurcate the penalty hearing has 

6 been renewed, in the sense that it is referred to in the one-

7 page summary of points and authority that Mr. Figler tendered 

8 by fax over the weekend, is denied. I don't think it's in 

9 accord with current Nevada case law. 

10 As I see it, we're dealing with four categories of 

11 evidence in this penalty phase. For the record, we briefly 

12 discussed it with all counsel Friday afternoon after the guilt 

13 phase was over and over the weekend Mr. Figler favored us with 

14 that fax and, in addition, presented us with a Supreme Court 

15 case yesterday about 3:00 in the afternoon from the State of 

16 Washington, Bartholomew. The four areas, as I see it, are, 

17 first of all, evidence of prior crimes. I have indicated 

18 tentatively that th'e possession of stolen vehicle arrest; 

19 which to me has no relevance and is prejudicial in terms of 

20 the jury's assessment of whether or not Mr. Donte Johnson 

21 should receive the death penalty, life with or life without, 

22 is going to be excluded. 

23 The major bone of contention, I would take it, 

24 relative to the prior crimes, is referred to on the witness 

25 list penalty phase as the murder of Darnell Johnson. It is 
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1 the contention of the State that the decedent, Darnell 

2 Johnson, was strangled to death. They, or Mr. Figler, in 

3 arguing against the introduction of it, tendered an autopsy 

4 report where the manner of death was not certain, but was 

5 deemed to be probably homicidal and probably due to 

6 strangulation. 

7 The State has indicated, in my recollection, that 

8 relative to Darnell Johnson's murder two of the same witnesses 

9 who testified as to admissions at trial, Charla Severs, the 

10 girlfriend of Mr. Johnson, and the friend of Mr. Johnson, or 

11 at least acquaintance, Bryan Johnson, would testify as to 

12 details confessed -- or alleged details confessed by Mr. 

13 Johnson, including strangulation. 

14 Is that about the state of the offer relative to the 

15 details pursuant to D'Agostino, Mr. Guymon? 

16 MR. GUYMON: Yes, Your Honor, with a couple of extra 

17 additional details and that is that both Charla Severs and 

18 Bryan Johnson will indicate that that strangulation happened 

19 at the Thunderbird Hotel. We will -- We've already introduced 

20 into evidence keys of the Thunderbird Hotel where Charla 

21 Severs has already told this jury that Donte Johnson was 

22 staying, so we believe the location is 

23 THE COURT: And those keys, of course, evidence of 

24 the guilt phase showed were buried in the backyard with the 

25 pager and the evidence was, at least the State's evidence, 
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1 that Donte Johnson, inferentially, was the one that had buried 

2 them there. 

3 MR. GUYMON: That is correct. And so we believe 

4 that the keys are also important in the case because they 

5 corroborate it. 

6 THE COURT: And what is Detective Chandler gonna 

7 testify to? 

8 MR. GUYMON: Detective Chandler will corroborate, if 

9 you will, the confessions of Donte Johnson through Charla 

10 Severs and Bryan Johnson because Roy Chandler, Detective 

11 Chandler, will indicate that he, in fact, was in charge of the 

12 investigation of Darnell Johnson, that Roy Chandler called 

13 over to the Thunderbird Hotel at the start of his 

14 investigation of the Snoop homicide and that he found Snoop's, 

15 who I refer to as Darnell Johnson, body wrapped up in a sheet, 

16 consistent with what Charla Severs will tell us and consistent 

17 with what Bryan Johnson will tell us, that Roy Chandler made a 

18 discovery consistent with the confessions of Donte Johnson of 

19 Darnell Johnson's body very near the speedway, which is where 

20 the defendant indicated he took Darnell Johnson and disposed 

21 of the body. 

22 Roy Chandler will, in short, tell the jury of his 

23 investigation and in fact establish that Darnell Johnson was, 

24 in fact, strangled, pursuant to his investigation, and 

25 disposed of. 
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1 THE COURT: Okay. Now I take it, as to this, you 

2 say, in this one-page summary of Nevada law primarily, or 

3 maybe it's exclusively Nevada law that you faxed over the 

4 weekend, Dayvid, that the defendant intends to raise, on 

5 constitutional grounds, that all character evidence submitted 

6 by the State violates his right to a fair trial. I guess, 

7 then, all of the criminal activity that is being alleged by 

8 the State you feel falls under violations to a fair trial, 

9 including his conviction for bank robbery and things such as 

10 that? 

11 MR. FIGLER: Your Honor, none of the proffered, 1, 

12 2, now there's one thing that's left, 4, 5, items go to any of 

13 the aggravate six, go to any of the aggravators. I think we 

14 could all agree on that, that this is merely character 

15 evidence. As such, yes, that would be our position. 

16 At some point I also want to further discuss the 

17 details regarding the D'Agostino determination with regard to 

18 the other murder, alleged murder. 

19 THE COURT: Okay. And, of course, D'Agostino I 

20 think is instructive in several ways. The court there says 

21 that past homicidal conduct goes to the very heart of the 

22 jury's decision-making process, at page 1004 of our Nevada 

23 Reporters, and further observes that past murders are 

24 relevant, even vital. Now, of course, the facts of D'Agostino 

25 were a cell mate, not a lover, comes in and says that Mr. 
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1 D'Agostino cut a woman's throat and threw her off a cruise 

2 ship. The details in corroboration that were obviously 

3 missing in D'Agostino do not appear, to the Court, to be 

4 missing here. 

5 Now the headnotes loosely say that there· has to be a 

6 hearing prior to the admission of it. As I read the opinion 

7 itself, there needs to be a prior determination, not 

8 necessarily a hearing, on the details of the admission, here 

9 the strangulation, the autopsy report, the confirmation of 

10 Detective Chandler as to it and credible -- or credible 

11 evidence as to the admissions. I certainly heard Charla and 

12 Bryan at the trial and find that to be credible evide~ce. 

13 You have some additional procedural request with 

14 reference to that? 

15 MR. FIGLER: Yes, Your Honor. Underlying all of the 

16 determination of character evidence, which is treated 

17 differently in death cases than evidence which would be 

18 offered in support of the aggravating evidence, is a 

19 determination of reliability, a weighing of prejudice, a 

20 heightened weighing of prejudice under Nevada rules, but, 

21 additionally, Your Honor, what we're suggesting -- And I think 

22 that the Bartholomew case really does a good job of explaining 

23 the tension between bringing in this type of character 

24 evidence that doesn't go toward any of the aggravators with 

25 regard to the type of concerns that the United State's 
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1 Constitution and the various state constitutions require the 

2 Court to engage in before this type of extraordinarily 

3 prejudicial information is presented to the jury when it 

4 doesn't support any of the aggravators. In other words, 

5 THE COURT: Now clearly our Court doesn'·t follow the 

6 Bartholomew standard. 

7 MR. FIGLER: Well, you know, no one has had the 

8 foresight, at least none of the Nevada cases, have taken it to 

9 the next level, as the Supreme Court of Washington has, in an 

10 actual challenge of the statute which allows all evidence to 

11 come in, including hearsay, or at least gives the discretion 

12 to the Court to allow otherwise inadmissible evidence to come 

13 into the court. No one has analyzed that in terms of that 

14 particular provision being in comport with not only the United 

15 State's Constitution, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments, but 

16 any particular state constitution. 

17 Now just like Washington, 

18 THE COURT: They've had 16 years to adopt the 

19 reasoning of this case. And I've read all the cases you 

20 cited, and many others, and it's clear to me that the Supreme 

21 Court of the State of Nevada is never going to take the 

22 position that uncharged or unconvicted -- clearly they're 

23 going to let those in, assuming that the evidence is not 

24 impalpable or speculative and --

25 MR. FIGLER: Or dubious or tenuous or unreliable. 
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1 THE COURT: What is dubious or tenuous about the 

2 word of his girlfriend? 

3 MR. FIGLER: Well, Your Honor, I think it's the 

4 dubiousness and tentativeness -- tenuousness of an 

5 individual's proclamation, because we can't get into the 

6 mindset of exactly what is going through their mind when 

7 they're saying that. What we do have though is the hard data, 

8 which is the autopsy report, and I would submit to Your Honor 

9 that this autopsy report needs to be made part of the record. 

10 THE COURT: Fine. 

11 MR. FIGLER: Because if Your Honor's going to allow 

12 this evidence to come in, this character evidence, I think you 

13 need to be aware of the fact that, not unlike the Binion case, 

14 the Coroner initially found no strangulation, no homicide 

15 whatsoever. Only after this alleged statement came to the 

16 attention of the Coroner did he go and reexamine the body 

17 trying to find evidence of strangulation and, quite honestly, 

18 he said, "Well, there was some reaction to maybe some iron 

19 near his neck, but I can't say that this is strangulation at 

20 all. I can't say that this occurred from strangulation or 

21 occurred from other causes." 

22 Quite frankly, this individual had 4,274 nanograms 

23 per milliliter of cocaine in his body when he died, which is 

24 clearly, according to our expert, enough to cause an overdose, 

25 but when they had this information the Coroner goes back in --
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1 THE COURT: But now would that speak to the cause of 

2 death or 

3 MR. FIGLER: That's correct, Your Honor. 

4 

5 

6 

THE COURT: -- the fact that he was strangled? 

MR. FIGLER: Both. 

THE COURT: I mean, maybe Mr. Johnson did not cause 

7 the death, even though he thought he did, because he was 

8 strangling him. 

9 MR. FIGLER: Well, Your Honor, then he didn't cause 

10 another death and it's a prior crime and it's tenuous. 

11 THE COURT: Well, in that - -

12 MR. FIGLER: Or Mr. Johnson might have been there - -

·13 THE COURT: Well, I think the act of strangling him, 

14 whether or not it resulted in his death, would be significant 

15 to the jury. 

16 MR. FIGLER: But it's gonna be presented as a result 

17 in his death when the Coroner can't even say that. 

18 THE COURT: But that's something you could cross-

19 examine or call the Coroner for. 

20 MR. FIGLER: Well, that's what falls into the 

21 category of dubious and tenuous, is that if they're allowed to 

22 argue that Donte Johnson caused another person's death, when 

23 the Coroner in the State of Nevada said that he can't say that 

24 this person was even killed, is of the character -- of this 

25 type of character evidence. 

I-9 

AA08559



• • 
1 Now if we're in a different case, you know, who 

2 knows, but when you're in a death penalty case, when you have 

3 the obligation to not only make these determinations of 

4 reliability of the evidence that's gonna be presented as 

5 character evidence against an individual, but you ·also have 

6 the obligation to apply a higher degree of scrutiny with 

7 regard to the prejudice of character evidence in a particular 

B case, then you really run at risk of violating not only the 

9 United State's Constitution, but the Nevada Constitution. 

10 And as I was gonna say before, as the State of 

11 Washington, Nevada has traditionally given more constitutional 

12 rights, within its own constitution, than the federal 

13 government and I think that everyone would agree with that 

14 interpretation of Nevada constitutional law. No one has 

15 brought it to the attention yet. 

16 THE COURT: It depends on the time and the 

17 composition of the courts. 

18 MR. FIGLER: No one has brought it to the attention 

19 yet, that this particular provision, this type of evidence 

20 which is coming in, is a violation of not only the Federal 

21 Constitution, but the Nevada State Constitution with regard to 

22 our version of a fair trial, our version in the Nevada State 

23 Constitution of due process and our idea of cruel and unusual 

24 punishment with regard to this type of evidence coming into 

25 the case. 
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1 And that, quite frankly, applies to all of the 

2 evidence that's been presented, but more so with the type of 

3 uncharged -- And this has gone uncharged for over two years. 

4 And quite frankly, Your Honor, I don't think that an offer of 

5 proof could be made under D'Agostino that this case could make 

6 it pass probable cause at a hearing, because they haven't 

7 proved that a crime has occurred. 

8 THE COURT: Oh, there's no doubt in my mind it could 

9 make it pass probably cause, Mr. Figler. 

10 MR. FIGLER: Well, I think we need to bring in the 

11 Coroner, Judge, and we need to cross-examine him. 

12 THE COURT: What I'm saying is - -

13 MR. FIGLER: I think that we need to bring in 

14 THE COURT: if you do a lot of preliminary 

15 hearings, and I don't know whether the Special Defender does 

16 lot of preliminary hearings, there's no doubt in my mind you 

17 could get this over to District Court. 

a 

18 MR. FIGLER: Well, you know, Judge, I've never had a 

19 preliminary --

20 

21 

THE COURT: You do have this marked as an exhibit. 

MR. FIGLER: Thank you, Judge, and the toxicology 

22 report as well. 

23 I've never had a preliminary hearing where the 

24 Coroner said that he doesn't know if there was a homicide and 

25 that went forward as a homicide. 
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1 testimony, if there's gonna be some other supplemental 

2 evidentiary introductions through these witnesses. What I 

3 would like to do is for Your Honor to --

4 

5 there? 

6 

THE COURT: What do you -- What do you have in mind 

MR. FIGLER: Well, you know, I've seen cases where 

7 the State has brought in those big screens again and run 

8 things in slow motion with pictures of the individual -- some 

9 other things. It's not a quid pro quo. There are certain 

10 restrictions on the prosecutors in these death penalty cases 

11 that don't exist on the defendant and that is the wisdom of 

12 Furman and its progeny, that that's the way that it has to be. 

13 In this particular case, I don't know what they're 

14 gonna bring in, if there's, you know, a photo montage or 

15 exposition or something like that. I think that that might 

16 very well run afoul of Payne in talking about a brief glimpse. 

17 We have four victims here, understood. They want to bring in 

18 five witnesses, which might be one too many. I don't know how 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

long these witnesses are gonna go and what they're gonna 

attempt to do, but I would ask that the Court keep those 

guidelines and restrictions in mind. 

And I would prefer not to have to object again to 

it, but, again, I don't know what they're gonna be presenting. 

THE COURT: You know, of course, Gardner, in 

25 addition to the brief glimpse that Payne authorizes, after a 
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1 tortured history of litigation over the victim impact 

2 statements, Gardner, also from the U.S. Supreme Court, says 

3 that a death penalty should appear to be based on reason 

4 rather than either caprice or emotion. 

5 You, Mr. Guymon and Mr. Daskas, have a henefit that 

6 the Court doesn't, and Mr. Figler and Sciscento don't, of 

7 having seen these witnesses before. You had indicated, when 

8 the Court was just reviewing these things informally Friday 

9 afternoon, that these individuals, the parents, I take it, of 

10 the four dead boys, have been through it before and you've had 

11 some discussions with them that might address the concerns Mr. 

12 Figler just articulated. 

13 MR. DASKAS: Judge, we've been through this, as you 

14 know, twice before. Each time we've admonished the relatives 

15 to address the Court, that their testimony is limited to the 

16 victim's character, the nature and impact of the crime 

17 committed and the loss of the victim to the victim's family 

18 and society, they've all complied with that admonition, Judge. 

19 It's not our intention to put on a photo montage, as 

20 Mr. Figler addressed. 

21 THE COURT: Well, he had two concerns, at least, 

22 that I heard. One was length. 

23 MR. DASKAS: Right. 

24 Judge, they have been limited to those areas I just 

25 mentioned. I can't tell you how long they were each on the 
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1 stand. It was probably no more than 15 minutes per family 

2 member and we don't expect it to last longer in this courtroom 

3 than it did in the other two trials. 

4 THE COURT: And the other thing that he said he had 

5 a concern about was props. Are there any that are being used 

6 by these folks? 

7 MR. DASKAS: Only photographs that they might want 

8 to show the jury, with the Court's permission, but there is no 

9 monitor, computer monitor, or television montage, simply 

10 photographs they wish to show the jury of their sons in life 

11 and I think they're entitled to do that. 

12 THE COURT: All right, I had tentatively indicated, 

13 if the defense objected, and they do, to having more than one 

14 parent per child. Payne, as I said, is the first U.S. Supreme 

15 Court case at least that reverses a long string of cases that 

16 didn't allow for victim impact statements in front of a jury, 

17 because it was thought that who died wasn't the important 

18 concern in a death penalty decision, and Payne overruled it, 

19 but it did, in the terms that Mr. Figler says, a brief 

20 glimpse. 

21 To have two parents -- I'm going to, of course, hear 

22 the sentencing, regardless of the jury's decision, on 

23 everything else and whichever Mowen decides not to testify 

24 today, under the Court's ruling, of course, will have an 

25 opportunity to speak at a later time, but I will limit it to 

I-15 

AA08564



• • 
1 four parents, one for each of the dead boys. 

2 Next is the letters. The letters, to me, as a 

3 group, and there's a whole bunch of them, could, depending on 

4 where the defense is coming from, be viewed as perhaps helpful 

5 to the defense in some instances. What's the defense's 

6 position relative to the letters as a group? 

7 MR. SCISCENTO: Yeah, we object to the letters. I 

8 reviewed the letters that Mr. Guymon says he's going to · 

9 present and I don't see anything that goes with the 

10 aggravation or prior harm to the community. I'd ask that Mr. 

11 Guymon at least make an offer of proof as to what section he's 

12 gonna focus on and maybe there's a difference between the 

13 language and understanding -- what's in the letters and our 

14 understanding of the language. 

15 THE COURT: Yeah, I read the letters Saturday, 

16 before I had again reviewed all of the law in the matter, and 

17 I must say that before I read the law I probably would have 

18 been inclined to allow the letters in and when reading the law 

19 I increasingly became doubtful about it. The letters, as a 

20 group, strike me as the -- almost consistently profane, almost 

21 rap-type letters between Mr. Johnson and his co-defendant. 

22 They're filled with profanity. They are filled with racial 

23 epithets. They show, it seems, a fairly intelligent, cocky 

24 young man who is still enjoying his life in jail, who maybe 

25 doesn't particularly even care if he gets the death penalty, 
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• • 
things that the more I thought about it might very well affect 

the proper consideration of the jury in terms of what they 

should be focusing on. 

I believe there was some discussion up in the 

office, in the presence of all counsel, last Friday that these 

were indicative of his leadership of the others. I know that 

some of them are signed General Deco, but some of them, or one 

of them, is also signed Dick Tracy. I read these as nothing 

more .than profanity-laden communications between three co­

conspirators, something that you couldn't take out all the 

references to "nigger" and all the profanity, and I just don't 

particularly see any probative value that could outweigh the 

possible prejudice. 

Mr. Guymon, are they, as a group, something that you 

want in or any particular ones where you would disagree with 

my ruling and want to point something out to me? 

MR. GUYMON: Judge, with all due respect, I do 

disagree with your ruling. I understand your concerns, 

however, the letters clearly speak to one of the mitigators 

under 200.035, Subsection 5, and that is the defendant acted 

under the duress or under the dominion of another person. 

I can tell you that I have now interviewed Agent 

Clark, who is the parole officer of the defendant's, and he 

indicated to me that he had told the defense, because they 

were keenly interested in whether or not Donte Johnson was a 
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1 follower or a leader, for starters, Judge, I offer the letters 

2 because the letters clearly -- And, by the way, it was Agent 

3 Clark's opinion that Donte Johnson is a follower and not a 

4 leader. 

5 THE COURT: And, by the way, is that tes.timony 

6 that's going to come out, as far as you expect, during your 

7 phase? 

8 MR. SCISCENTO: I'm not sure. I did speak with 

9 Officer Clark. I don't know if that's the position that we're 

10 gonna be taking. I don't think it is. I don't think that's 

11 the mitigated that we're looking at. 

12 THE COURT: By the way, I did not have a chance, and 

13 it occurred to me over the weekend, and I never had time to 

14 look at it, in the death penalty hearings we've had in the 

15 last ten years there was never an issue of rebuttal. Is 

16 there, in your mind, a right to the State to have rebuttal 

17 after? 

18 MR. GUYMON: Yes, Your Honor. 

19 THE COURT: Okay, so if -- And do you disagree.with 

20 this, Mr. Figler or Mr. Sciscento? Does the State have the 

21 right to rebut things that you put forth in your case, because 

22 that can make some difference to how I would rule, obviously, 

23 because they are asserting that this would be relative to 

24 certain mitigators, which you may never even get to. 

25 MR. SCISCENTO: Well, that's the problem that we 
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1 have, Your Honor. I mean, in some cases they do have rebuttal 

2 and in some they don't. 

3 MR. FIGLER: But not in Nevada. 

4 THE COURT: So you don't -- you don't challenge the 

5 fact that they have a right to rebuttal, fair rebuttal, of 

6 what you put on? 

7 MR. FIGLER: I don't know that the statutes provide 

8 for that in the State of Nevada with regard to a death penalty 

9 hearing. I think that if there was --

10 THE COURT: That's the thing I did not look at. Do 

11 we have a statute I mean, we have an order of trial that 

12 specifically sets these things forth. 

13 MR. FIGLER: But I think that the --

14 THE COURT: Does anybody know if we have an order of 

15 penalty hearing that also sets this up? 

16 MR. GUYMON: Judge, I can have some research done in 

17 about an hour, while I'm still here I'll have someone do it 

18 for me, but it's always been my belief that in fact we can --

19 THE COURT: Okay, well, let's assume, for the sake 

20 of your argument, that you have a right to rebuttal and put it 

21 in that context, because it strikes me that if they go certain 

22 places, and it did over the weekend, these letters might have 

23 more relevance than I see them as having now. Let's take it 

24 in the context that you may have the right to use them in 

25 rebuttal. 
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1 THE COURT: Okay. And he refers, in one of the 

2 letters, to don't worry about the three boys, that must --

3 being Bryan Johnson, Armstrong and the other guy, he's taken 

4 care of them. Well, obviously, he hadn't. I mean, there's a 

5 lot of young man boasting here that I don't think 'is important 

6 to a jury's determination of whether he lives or dies. 

7 Go ahead. 

8 MR. GUYMON: Okay. I think they address violence 

9 and I think violence clearly is a character trait that this 

10 jury can know about. I think, number two, --

11 THE COURT: Oh, I think they know about it by 

12 rulings that I've already made. They're gonna hear about an 

13 allegation of murder, attempted murder, a bank robbery, plus 

14 they've got four murders in the original case. 

15 MR. GUYMON: Okay. I think they also talk to 

16 leadership, which I've already addressed. It is clear that he 

17 is giving instructions to Terrell Young and to Sikia Smith as 

18 to what he wants them to do. I think that's clearly what a 

19 leader does. 

20 More importantly, he indicates that --

21 THE COURT: Yeah, but I don't see why it's relevant, 

22 absent their making this a bone of contention, to whether he 

23 lives or dies, that he's a leader or a follower. 

24 MR. GUYMON: He also talks about living or dying and 

25 indicates that he doesn't care because he is now a legend. 
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1 THE COURT: Right. 

2 MR. GUYMON: I think clearly the fact that he's a 

3 legend, "whether breathing or dead," and that's a direct 

4 quote, is something this jury should know, because it is his 

5 legendary status that he boasts of because of what· he did. I 

6 think that is a -- something that this jury should be entitled 

7 to know. 

8 THE COURT: I think that's absolutely, extremely 

9 prejudicial with having very little probative effect on 

10 whether he should live or die. 

11 MR. GUYMON: And, lastly, the letters talk about the 

12 death of Snoop wherein he talks about taking Snoop -- or he 

13 doesn't say Snoop, but he says taking that other guy for a 

14 ride and he mentions that in 

15 THE COURT: Yeah. Now which of -- That's the one 

16 thing that struck me as possibly corroborative of something 

17 else I'm letting in. 

18 MR. GUYMON: There are --

19 THE COURT: Which letter is that? 

20 MR. GUYMON: Well, Judge, I'd have to go through 

21 them to get the date, but there are two letters, actually. 

22 One is to Terrell Young wherein he was talking about 

23 THE COURT: Well, these are all to Terrell or Sikia. 

24 MR. GUYMON: That's correct. Would you like-~ 

25 Judge, if you'd give me a minute, I'll find it for you. 
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(Pause in the proceedings) 

MR. GUYMON: All right, Judge, in the letter dated 

3 January 25th, 1999 --

4 THE COURT: Is that one where you can actually read 

5 the postmark? 

6 MR. GUYMON: The postmark is upside down on that 

7 particular letter. At the top of that letter is a 1996 

8 Atlanta Para-Olympic Games. 

9 That's correct. Is your stamp upside down, Judge, 

10 post stamp? 

11 THE COURT: I guess. It's virtually not visible. 

12 Is this the one that says, "What's up with you?" 

13 

14 Dog?" 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 you? 

20 

MR. GUYMON: It's what's up with -- "What's up, 

It's about the fourth page 

THE COURT: No, no. 

MR. GUYMON: Third page deep. 

THE COURT: That's not it then. 

MR. GUYMON: Judge, may I approach and get it for 

THE COURT: Sure. 

21 MR. GUYMON: It looks exactly like this. I think 

22 you actually have one, Judge. That's the letter, Judge. 

23 THE COURT: Oh, this is the way this one starts, 

24 "What's up with you?" 

25 MR. GUYMON: Well, the third page deep, Judge, .page 
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1 3, if it's in the same order that I have it, Judge. 

2 THE COURT: Where it says, "I first off want to 

3 start"? 

4 MR. GUYMON: "I first off want to start." Judge, if 

5 you'll come to the second paragraph, fourth line of the second 

6 paragraph, and I quote, "But don't worry because he's as good 

7 as dropped off. Remember how we" -- and this is -- he's 

s speaking to Terrell, "took a long ride one night and dropped 

9 off that one" -- or, excuse me, ''dropped that one nigger off," 

10 and I quote. 

11 THE COURT: Yeah, you can get it out through other 

12 witnesses without going through nigger, nigger, nigger, 

13 nigger, which sounds like a rap song, and, as I said, 

14 introduces to me the problems that you've got. 

15 Anything else on the record on this, Mr. Guymon? 

16 MR. GUYMON: That would cover the areas in the 

17 letter that I think are --

18 THE COURT: Okay, the letters, except for the 

19 possibility of rebuttal, will not come in. 

20 Now the fourth thing that I wanted to discuss, 

21 before we get just to the clean-up category, is gang 

22 references. Now essentially what Mr. Guymon has been 

23 representing is he would be very careful to avoid gang 

24 references, except he believes it's not going to be an issue 

25 because you're gonna bring it up anyway. 
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1 First of all, is he factually correct as to that 

2 assumption? 

3 MR. SCISCENTO: Yes, Your Honor. 

4 THE COURT: So do you care if people that he has 

5 refer to the gang membership of Mr. Johnson? 

6 MR. SCISCENTO: My understanding is that the 

7 information that Mr. Guymon's gonna bring through PSI reports, 

8 or pre-sentencing investigations, any reports of probation, 

9 are going to reference the gang. We have no objection as to 

10 that. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. The fifth thing is a catchall. 

12 Is there anything I haven't covered, Mr. Figler or Mr. 

13 Sciscento, so far that you want to make a record of? 

14 

15 

MR. FIGLER: Yes, Your Honor, but of course. 

THE COURT: But of course. 

16 MR. FIGLER: In reviewing the State's case, what has 

17 now been presented to us, is what penalty information they're 

18 gonna bring. At the onset I would note that, if it wasn't 

19 already captured in our voluminous pretrial motion, that a 

20 close inspection of the aggravating circumstances which the 

21 State intends to prove do create somewhat of a constitutional 

22 dilemma. More specifically, Aggravator Number 3, which is the 

23 knowingly creating a great risk of death to more than one 

24 person, and Aggravator 12, has, in the immediate proceeding, 

25 been convicted of more than one offense of murder, I think 

I-25 

AA08573



• • 
1 that there is a definite conflict between those two with 

2 regard to the cumulative repetitiveness of the particular 

3 aggravators. 

4 There was no one else present at the Terra Linda 

5 residence but for the victims, who were all killed·, and would 

6 provide for Aggravator Number 12. There was no one else that 

? was there. To say that --

8 THE COURT: Could I see those again, Dave? 

9 MR. FIGLER: Sure. 

10 

11 files. 

12 

THE COURT: They're buried in one of the early 

MR. FIGLER: What I'm showing to you right now is 

13 the notice of intent to seek the death penalty submitted by 

14 the District Attorney's Office. 

15 THE COURT: What about that argument that you strike 

16 and it would probably be striking 3 and leaving 12? 

17 MR. DASKAS: Judge, in the statute the aggravator 

18 makes no distinction between whether it's a victim or whether 

19 it's a co-defendant who was also present in that home when 

20 bullets are being shot. Certainly, when Donte Johnson pulled 

21 the trigger four times, he created a risk of death to the co-

22 defendants as well. Arguably, bullets could have ricocheted 

23 off the cement floors, they could have gone through walls and 

24 people outside the home could have been injured. Certainly 

25 that aggravator is satisfied and that's a separate and 
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1 distinct aggravator from the last aggravator, that he's 

2 convicted of more than one offense of murder. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. 12 was added long after 3 and I'm 

4 not sure they ever thought of this kind of a situation. I 

5 think that the danger of doubling up here is real ·and I' 11 

6 strike Aggravator 3. 

7 In addition, in a situation like this, where all the 

8 evidence was that these boys were killed by bullets at close 

9 range coming out of this gun, I think to speculate that there 

10 was risk of death to co-defendants is awfully tenuous. 

11 3 will be stricken and the others will stand. 

12 Anything else, Mr. Figler? 

13 MR. FIGLER: One other concern, Judge, and I only 

14 bring it to the Court's attention 'cause the Court brought it 

15 to our attention. I'm quite familiar with the case holding in 

16 Vernell Evans and I understand Your Honor's position. And I 

17 think that we all can agree that this is highly emotional for 

18 everyone. It's a horrific result here with these four young 

19 men. It's also horrific with this young man and what he's 

20 facing. 

21 I know Your Honor had indicated to us off the record 

22 before that you are human, as everyone else, and that you 

23 can't avoid the emotion sometimes and I know that it has been 

24 made issue before in front of the Nevada Supreme Court. I 

25 would ask that Your Honor -- Well, I don't know. If Your 
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1 Honor could represent to us that that won't happen in this 

2 case, then certainly we don't have an issue. I only raise it 

3 because Your Honor had indicated to us that you were 

4 compelled, by a lot of the facts in this case, and that this 

5 might be a very real possibility in the case, that· you might 

6 be emotional in front of the jury as well. 

7 And so my concern is --

8 THE COURT: Yeah. And what you're talking about, 

9 because it's sort of not clear from this record, Vernell Evans 

10 was also a quadruple murder and we had four family members up 

11 here and I did everything in the world to try to avoid any 

12 show of emotion and after we had not one, not two, not three, 

13 but four parents testify, from a distance from me of about 

14 four or five feet, and not because I would have necessarily 

15 imposed the death penalty, but because I was very much moved, 

16 as a human being, by what befell these parents and what loss 

17 they suffered, despite doing all the mathematical equations I 

18 could do in my head and all the pinching of my thighs and 

19 biting of my cheek, two things happened. One, when the last 

20 mother testified, a single tear came down my face, which was 

21 litigated later, and my voice shook while I read the 

22 admonition. 

23 And I told you about a week ago I'm gonna do 

24 everything I can, because I don't want the jury to feel one 

25 way or the other, it's their decision not mine, nor does my 
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1 show of emotion -- nor should it indicate to them what I.would 

2 do, if that's important to them, because it's not my decision, 

3 nor does my emotion indicate what I would do if I were sitting 

4 in judgment on this case. That's a judgment I hope I don't 

5 have to make, but it's still possible in this case·. And what 

6 I said to you at that point was in that case they moved for a 

7 mistrial. I had indicated to them I would give them all sorts 

8 of cautionary instructions. Do you have something that, in 

9 case, and I'm hoping it's not gonna happen, will do it? 

10 Now one thing, of course, is this is gonna be the 

11 last part of the case for them. If I feel that I'm not gonna 

12 be able to read the admonition, which is the next thing, is 

13 there any objection to my Clerk reading the admonition? 

14 At the end of the day, when the jury is dismissed 

15 after deliberations, when I'm not around, he reads them the 

16 admonition. Do you care if the Clerk reads the admonition? 

17 MR. FIGLER: I think Your Honor can appreciate our 

18 position and our concern in this particular case. 

19 THE COURT: I want you to suggest something that 

20 will minimize the prejudice that you perceive will happen if 

21 it happens. 

22 MR. GUYMON: Can I have a moment? 

23 (Pause in the proceedings) 

24 MR. FIGLER: Mr. Guymon has made a suggestion that 

25 if we see Your Honor getting overwrought with any type of 
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1 emotion that maybe we could approach the bench and give you a 

2 little time to compose. 

3 THE COURT: The only problem with that is you 

4 probably won't see it. 

5 MR. FIGLER: And I would hope not, that we don't 

6 have to be in that position. Obviously, I mean, that sounds 

7 like a good idea now. We'll have to be in whatever position 

B we are at that time and have to deal with it in the way that 

9 we feel best protects the due process rights. 

10 THE COURT: There's no prejudice if the Clerk reads 

11 that admonition anyway, is there? 

12 MR. FIGLER: It's something inconsistent and it 

13 draws attention to the situation perhaps. 

14 THE COURT: But that's what I'm saying. When Stony 

15 sent them home on Thursday night he read them the admonition, 

16 as he always does when a jury's leaving outside of hours, so 

17 it means nothing to the jury that I'm not reading it then and 

18 it's just a way that may avoid my voice shaking. And, 

19 hopefully, the Clerk's will not. 

20 MR. GUYMON: Judge, if we don't want to bring 

21 attention to it on this one occasion, do you want to begin 

22 having your Clerk read it each and every time now as the 

23 penalty starts? Would that satisfy the defense? 

24 THE COURT: That's fine with me too. 

25 MR. FIGLER: I think that what we're doing here is 
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1 trying to limit that and to that end I think that that's 

2 probably better. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. And the other thing I have 

4 thought of is if Mr. Guymon or Mr. Daskas will call each 

5 succeeding parent without me saying, "Call your next witness." 

6 Not only is there this history with the Evans' case, 

7 which to me was very minor, but, you know, I've been thinking 

8 about this for a year, I've talked to the other judges, I've 

9 talked to all of you folks and it's a very, very emotional 

10 thing and I guess some people can sit and be stoic more than 

11 others and I hope it doesn't happen today. 

12 All right, anything else to come before the Court? 

13 We'll take a five-minute recess and get started. 

14 MR. FIGLER: I just want to make sure that our 

15 record is clear that with regard to this character evidence 

16 that's coming in that we not only object on the grounds that 

17 are set forth by the Nevada statutes in the memorandum which I 

18 was able to compose over the weekend, Your Honor, and which we 

19 might want to make part of the record, but, additionally, 

20 under federal and state constitutional grounds, specifically 

21 the Federal Constitution, Sixth, Eighth, Fifth and Fourteenth 

22 Amendment, and anything else that has to do with due process 

23 or a fair trial and the corresponding rights, which we believe 

24 are greater under the Nevada State Constitution. 

25 THE COURT: All right, we will make -- You must have 
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1 a cleaner copy of this that you can make as part of the 

2 record. 

3 

4 Honor. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

going to 

I don't 

MR. FIGLER: I could offer this one right now, Your 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

Are you gonna be the Clerk all day? 

THE CLERK: I guess. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. FIGLER: May I approach? 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. FIGLER: Your Honor, before we go, there is 

be, I think, some issue with regard to instructions. 

know when you want to deal with that. 

THE COURT: We'll deal with that, at some point, off 

15 the record and then on the record after -- when it's 

16 convenient. 

17 

18 

19 

20 State? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

(Court recessed at 10:00 a.m. until 10:15 a.m.) 

(Jury is present) 

THE COURT: Who's going to make the opening for the 

MR. GUYMON: I am, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Go ahead. 

PLAINTIFF'S OPENING STATEMENT 

MR. GUYMON: Good morning. 

Some time ago we began this process and we indicated 

I-32 
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QURY , • • 
- - - - - - - - CASE - - - - - - - -

DEFN ID: 01586283 CASE NO: 98F02775X RELATED CASE: 
JURISDICTION: LVJC-WAREHOUSE CASE CATEGORY: NARCOTICS 
CASE TYPE: FELONY MULTI DEFN IND: X AGENCY: METRO POLICE 
JUDGE: TRACK-2 JUDGE SMITH PROSECUTOR: ERIC JORGENSON 
TRACK: 02 DEFENSE ATT: DARREN IMLAY 
DEFNSE ATTY TYPE: PUBLIC DEFENDER INTERPRETER: 
@PCN NUMBER: 0015724168 @SEND/GET: GET 

**SUMMARY DATA** STATUS: CLOSED ARRESTED: 02/25/1998 
SUBP REQ: 02/03/2000 DEFN NAME: WHITE, JOHN 
CHG TYPE: COMPLAINT SCHED DATE: PRO: 
JUDGE: SCREENING: 02/25/1998 
COMPLAINT: 04/10/1998 INFO/INDICT: ORIG TRACK: 02 
ORIG CASE#: 98F02775X CASE FINDING: 08/07/2000 GUILTY FINDING: 
SENT DECISION: ACTION: DISMISSED 
REASON: DISMISSED ON COURTS MOTION 
NAME: 
PUB DEF ATTY: PUBLIC DEFENDER 

** PRESS ENTER FOR NEXT PAGE** 

» 

OFFICER ID: 
PUB DEF#: F-98-5682 

APPEAL NOTICE: 

D ' • 2 

PAGE: 2 
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Blackstone Civ,il/Criminal/Pr,te Court Case Inquiry • Page 1 of2 

District Case Inquiry - Minutes 
Home 

Summary 
Case Activity 
Calendar 

Continuance 
Minutes 

Parties 
Def. Detail 
Next Co-Def. 
Charges 
Sentencing 
Bail Bond 
Judgments 

District Case 
Party Search 
Corp. Search 
Atty. Search 
Bar# Search 
ID Search 

Case 01-C-174692-C Just Ct. 01-F-03128 
Case# 

Status CLOSED 

Plaintiff State of Nevada 
Defendant White, John L 

Judge Saitta, Nancy M 

Attorney Bell, Stewart L. 
Attorney Sciscento, Joseph S. 

Dept. 18 

Event 07/18/2001 at 01 :30 PM 

Heard By Saitta, Nancy M 

TRIAL BY JURY 

Officers AMBER FARLEY, Court Clerk 
Kristine Cornelius, Reporter/Recorder 

Parties 0000 - State of Nevada 
S1 
000985 
0001 -
D1 

O'Neale, Lawrence J. 
White, John L 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

004380 Sciscento, Joseph S. Yes 
0002 - D Johnson, Reginald A Yes 
005434 Navarro, Gloria M. Yes 

Calendar Day----------------------------------
Holidays 

Help 
Comments & 

Feedback 
Legal Notice 

Colloquy regarding negotiations. 

AS TO DEFENDANT JOHNSON: Defendant to plead guilty to both counts. The 
State retains the right to argue. Further, Defendant is aware the State has 
filed the habitual criminal allegations, and the State retains the right to 
argue for such treatment at sentencing. Defendant is aware the Court may 
sentence him under such guidelines. As a condition of this plea, the case 
is to be dismissed against Defendant White. No plea agreement provided. 
Court stated the State may file the plea agreement later. DEFENDANT JOHNSON 
ARRAIGNED and PLED GUil TY to COUNT I - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT MURDER (F) and 
COUNT II -ATTEMPT MURDER (F). COURT ACCEPTED plea and ORDERED, matter 
referred to the Division of Parole and Probation and set for sentencing. 
Ms. Navarro requested Defendant be transported back to the High Desert 
facility pending sentencing. COURT SO ORDERED. 

AS TO DEFENDANT WHITE: Mr. O'Neale moved to DISMISS this case against 
Defendant White. No objection thereto by Mr. Sciscento. COURT ORDERED, 
Motion to Dismiss GRANTED with prejudice. Upon Mr. Sciscento's request, 
Court's previous order of Defendant being housed at the Clark County 
Detention Center is REVOKED and Defendant may be transported back to the 
facility where he is housed. 

2:10 p.m. Jury venire present. Court THANKED and EXCUSED the jury venire. 

NIC (COC) 

9/12/01 9:00 AM SENTENCING - JOHNSON 

Due to time restraints and individual case loads, the above case record may not reflect all 

http:// court gate. coca.co .c lark.nv. us/DistrictCourt/ Asp/Minutes. asp ?ItemN o=00 15 &Sched... 4/14/2004 
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WAIVER OF CONFLICT 

I, REGINALD ANDRE JOHNSON, having been represented by Mrs. Gloria M. 

Navarro, when she was in private practice, do hereby knowingly, intelligently and voluntarily 

waive any conflict or attorney-client privilege that may exist in regards to her now being employed 

with the Special Public Defender's office. 

I understand that the Special Public Defender currently represents my prior co­

defendant, Donte Johnson, A.K.A., John White, and that the information disclosed to my 

attorney, Mrs. Navarro, may be helpful to the Special Public Defender's Office for their 

representation of Mr. Donte Johnson in his upcoming re-sentencing / Death Penalty hearing. 

I further understand that if the State tries to introduce evidence that Mr. Donte 

Johnson committed the Attempt Murder upon Oscar lscarias, I may be called as a witness on 

behalf of Mr. Donte Johnson to testify that he did not participate in this incident, and I knowingly, 

intelligently and voluntarily waive any conflict or attorney-client privilege which may exist in that 

regard. 

DATED thi4 day of January, 2003. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me 

this 

OTARY PUBLI , I and for the 
ofNevada 

• 

DONNA L. POLLOCK 
Notary Public • Nevada 

No. 99-25439· 1 
My appt. axp .. Oct. a. 2003 
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Blackstone ~ivil/Criminal/Pr,te Court Case Inquiry • Page 1 of 1 

District Case Inquiry - Minutes 
Home 

Summary 
Case Activity 
Calendar 

Continuance 
Minutes 

Parties 
Def. Detail 
Next Co-Def. 
Charges 
Sentencing 
Bail Bond 
Judgments 

District Case 
Party Search 
Corp. Search 
Atty. Search 
Bar# Search 
ID Search 

Case 99-C-162401-C Just Ct. 98-F -06789 
Case# 

Status CLOSED 

Plaintiff State of Nevada 
Defendant Johnson, Donte 

Judge Mosley, Donald M. 

Attorney Bell, Stewart L. 
Attorney Public Defender 

Dept. 14 

Event 08/30/2001 at 09:00 AM 

Heard By Mosley, Donald M. 

ENTRY OF PLEA 

Officers Linda Skinner, Court Clerk 
Maureen Schorn, Reporter/Recorder 

Parties 0000 - State of Nevada 
S1 
006381 
0001 -
D1 
PUBDEF 
004380 

Knapp, Gregory D. 
Johnson, Donte 

Public Defender 
Sciscento, Joseph S. 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

Calendar Day Holidays There being no objection, Amended Information and Guilty Plea Agreement 
FILED IN OPEN COURT. NEGOTIATIONS: State retains the right to argue at time 

Help 
Comments & 

Feedback 
Legal Notice 

Top Of Page 

of sentencing and is not opposed to concurrent time with C153154. Mr. Knapp 
concurred. DEFENDANT JOHNSON ARRAIGNED AND PLED GUILTY PURSUANT TO 
ALFORD 
to BATTERY WITH DEADLY WEAPON (F). Statements by Mr. Knapp regarding 
circumstances of crime. Court ACCEPTED plea; referred matter to the 
Division of Parole and Probation for a Pre-sentence Investigation Report and 

ORDERED, set for sentencing. 

CUSTODY (COC-NDC) 

10/8/01 9:00 AM SENTENCING 

Due to time restraints and individual case loads, the above case record may not reflect all 
information to date. 

Generated on 4/20/2004 at 5:27:58 AM 
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l JUSTICE COURT, LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP 

2 CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA 

3 THESTATEOFNEVADA, 

4 Plaintiff, CASE NO. 98F06789X 

5 -vs-

6 DONTE JOHNSON, #1586283, 
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT 

7 Defendant. 

8 

9 The Defendant above named having committed the crime of ATTEMPT MURDEF 

10 WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165) 

11 in the manner following, to-wit: That the said Defendant, on or about the 4th day of May, 1998 

12 at and within the County of Clark, State ofNevada, did then and there, without authority oflav 

13 and malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt to kill DERRICK SIMPSON, a humai 

14 being, by shooting at and into the body of the said DERRICK SIMPSON, with a deadly weapon 

15 to-wit: a firearm. 

16 All of which is contrary to the form, force and effect of Statutes in such cases made an, 

17 provided and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Said Complainant makes thi 

18 declaration subject to the penalty of perjury. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 
98F06789X/jgw 

27 L VMPD EV#9805040265 
ATTMWDW-F 

28 (TK5) 

5/14/98 
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Search - 1 Res~lt - 200.100 • 
. , 

~ 

Page 1 of 1 

Source: Legal> States Legal - U.S.> Nevada> Statutes & Regulations> NV. Nevada Revised Statutes Annotated, 
Constitution, Rules & ALS, Combined i ; · 

TOC: Nevada Revised Statutes Annotated > / ... / > HOMICIDE > § 200.100 Death must occur within a year and 
a day 

Terms: 200.100 (Edit Search) 

NRS § 200.100 

NEVADA REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED 
Copyright© 2004 by Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 

a member of the LexisNexis Group. 
All rights reserved. 

*** THIS DOCUMENT IS CURRENT THROUGH ALL 2003 LEGISLATION *** 
*** ANNOTATIONS TO ALL CASELAW PUBLISHED ON LEXIS AS OF DECEMBER 19, 2003 *** 

TITLE 15. CRIMES AND PUNISHMENTS 
CHAPTER 200. CRIMES AGAINST THE PERSON 

HOMICIDE 

• GO TO CODE ARCHIVE DIRECTORY FOR THIS JURISDICTION 

NRS § 200.100 (2004) 

§ 200,100 Death must occur within a year and a day 

Repealed by Acts 1999, ch. 3, § 3, p. 3, effective March 10. 1999. 

Source: Legal > States Legal - U.S.> Nevada > Statutes & Regulations > NV - Nevada Revised Statutes Annotated, 
Constitution, Rules & ALS, Combined ; 

TOC: Nevada Revised Statutes Annotated > / ... / > HOMICIDE > § 200.100 Death must occur within a year 
and a day 

Terms: 200.100 (Edit Search) 
View: Full 

Date/Time: Monday, April 19, 2004 - 11 :39 AM EDT 

About LexisNexis I Te_rms and Conditions 

Copyright© 2004 LexisNexis,_ a division of Reed Elsevier Inc. All rights reserved. 

http://www.lexis.com/research/retrieve? _ m=b l 6859b8843 839fc73 8ab49bb5 81 bl 82&csvc... 4/19/2004 

AA08592



AA08593



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

0 
25 

( y:,. ='126 ( . ' :; . I . : .• J 
II!'' , "27 ., 

' ) . j • ' 
(,., r• ,,;i I )28 r , ~~ ,,i 

r . ' ' .) u 
!,j 

.... 
~ 

• ORIG/A/AL 
RSPN 
DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #002781 
GARY L. GUYMON 
Chief Deputy District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #003726 
200 South Third Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212 
(702) 455-4711 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

• 
FILED 

ArR zs 2 2s PH •o~ 

THE STATE OF NEV ADA, 

Plaintiff, 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

) 

-vs-

DONTE JOHNSON, 
#1586283 

Defendant. 

CASE NO: C153154 

DEPTNO: V 

/5 

ST ATES REPLY TO DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO THE ST A TES NOTICE OF 

EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES 

DATE OF HEARING: 04128104 
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M. 

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DA YID ROGER, District Attorney, through 

GARY L. GUYMON, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby submits the attached 

Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant's Opposition To The State's Notice Of 

Evidence In Support Of Aggravating Circumstances. 

This response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the 

attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if 

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court. 

II I 

Ill 

II I 

P:IWPDOCS\OPPIFOPP\81118111$02.doc 
c., 
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l POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

2 l. Statements of co-Defendant Terrell Young 

3 The Nevada Supreme Court has specifically held that the rule of Bruton applies to a 

4 capital sentencing proceeding. "Nevertheless, the need for cross-examination to test the 

5 fundamental reliability of co- defendants' often suspect statements is no Jess great in the 

6 penalty phase than in the guilt phase. In accord with the California Supreme Court, we 

7 conclude that the right of cross-examination and the need for accuracy are as important, 

8 indeed more important, in the penalty phase than in the guilt phase." Lord v. State, 107 Nev. 

9 28, 44, 806 P.2d 548, 558 (1991). 

l O The State reserves the right to utilize the statements of Terrell Young pursuant to the 

11 rules of evidence in Nevada. The State will not seek to admit the statement absent a proper 

12 evidentiary basis to do so. 

13 2. Statements of co-Defendant Sikia Smith 

14 Same response as #1 above. 

15 3. Statements of Terrell Young and/or Sikia Smith 

16 The State will not seek the admission of these statements pursuant to the dictates of 

17 Lord, supra. Further, the State does not intend to seek, as an enumerated aggravating factor, 

18 the "great risk of death to more than one person" pursuant to NRS 200.033(3). 

19 4. Testimony of Shawn Fletcher 

20 As set forth in #4 above, the State will not be seeking to prove as an enumerated 

21 aggravating factor, conduct to support NRS 200.033(3). As such, testimony of Shawn 

22 Fletcher would be relevant and proper for other enumerated aggravating factors and for 

23 "other relevant evidence". NRS 175.552(3) and Hollaway v. State, 116 Nev. 732, 745, 6 

24 P.3d 987, 996 (2000); Hernandez v. State, 50 P.3d 1100, 1109 (2002) (during a penalty 

25 phase, the State may properly present evidence for three purposes: "to prove an enumerated 

26 aggravator, to rebut specific mitigating evidence, or to aid the jury in determining the 

27 appropriate sentence after any enumerated aggravating circumstances have been weighed 

28 against any mitigating circumstances."). 

2 P:\WPDOCS\OPP\FOPP\811\81183002.doc 
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15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

• 
5. Testimony of Sheree Norman 

Same response as #4 above. 

6. Testimony of David Horn 

Same response as #4 above. 

7. Victim Impact Testimony 

• 

The defense argument seeking to limit victim impact statements to a certain number 

of family members or to a particular length of time for their testimony, is without any legal 

support. In Hornick v. State, 108 Nev. 127, 825 P.2d 600 (1992), this Court explicitly 

adopted the holding of the United State Supreme Court in Payne v. Tennessee, 501 U.S. 808, 

111 S.Ct 2597 (1991), and stated the following: 

[T]he State has a legitimate interest in counteracting the 
miti~ating evidence which the defendant is entitled to put m, by 
remmding the sentencer that just as the murderer should be 
considered as an individual, so too the victim is an individual 
whose death represents a unique loss to society and in particular 
to his family." Booth deprives the State of the full moral force of 
its evidence and may prevent the jury from having before it all 
the information necessary to determme the {)roper punishment 
for a first-degree murder. We applaud the decision in Payne as a 
positive contribution to capital sentencing, and conclude that it 
fully comports with the intendment of the Nevada Constitution. 

Homick,108 Nev. at 136, 825 P.2d at 606 (citations omitted). 

The defense argument seeks to put limits on the presentation of victim impact 

testimony by the number of family members and/or time limits on their testimony. As stated 

previously, no support for such limitations exist in the law. In fact, the law speaks directly to 

an expansion of victim's rights in Nevada. In Wood v. State, 111 Nev. 428, 430, 892 P.2d 

944, 946 (1995), citing, Randell v. State, 109 Nev. 5, 7, 846 P.2d 278,280 (1993), this Court 

stated that: 

[Nevada's victim impact statute] is similar in scope to statutes 
enacted in Arizona and California. Courts in both states take 
expansive views of their victim impact statutes concluding that 
they are designed to grant victims expanded rights, rather than • 
limit the rights of victims. 

Additionally, the Court noted that "NRS 176.015 creates in certain defined 'victims' 

3 P:\WPDOCS\OPP\FOPP\811 \81183002.doc 
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I the undeniable right to appear and express their views concerning the crime, the person 

2 responsible and the impact on the victim." Id. 

3 Simply put, the fundamental fairness of the sentencing proceeding applies to the State 

4 as well as the Defendant. It would be unimaginable to put the same or similar restrictions on 

5 the Defendant in presenting mitigating evidence regarding. 

6 Testimony of non-family members is permitted, so long as the evidence "provide[s] 

7 the jury with the individualized circumstances present in [the victims'] lives, and the specific 

8 harm caused by the crime charged, helping the jury make the individualized sentence 

9 required by the Eighth Amendment." Wesley v. State, 112 Nev. 503, 916 P.2d 793 (1996). 

10 In Wesley, three non-family members testified to proper relevant victim impact evidence and 

11 the Nevada Supreme Court held that such testimony was proper victim impact testimony 

12 under Payne. 

13 In Rippo v. State, 113 Nev. 1239, 946 P.2d 1017 (1997), the Nevada Supreme Court 

14 concluded that five witnesses called by the State to present victim impact testimony was 

15 constitutionally appropriate. There should be no limits put on the State's presentation of 

16 victim impact testimony other than that outlined above as approved by the Nevada and 

17 United States Supreme Court. Fundamental fairness mandates that no such restriction would 

18 be remotely placed on the Defendant's presentation of mitigating evidence and none should 

19 be placed on the State as well. 

20 8. Testimony Re: Purpose of Murders/Robbery 

21 The State will seek the admission of evidence pursuant to the rules of evidence as set 

22 forth by the Nevada Revised Statutes. The State will not seek to admit the testimony of 

23 Terrell Young or Sikia Smith as outlined above. 

24 9. Testimony Re: Motive for Murders/Robbery 

25 Same response as #8 above. 

26 10. Verdict Forms 

27 The defense has submitted this matter to the discretion of the court. 

28 1 I. Donte Johnson's Juvenile Records 

4 P:IWPDOCSIOPPIFOPP\811\81183002.doc 
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1 The State seeks to admit the Defendant's conduct in a take-over robbery of a Cen-Fed 

2 bank in Los Angeles, California. The Defendant was arrested and ultimately pied guilty. 

3 The State will produce certified copies of the Defendant's judgment of conviction for that 

4 offense. The Defendant was incarcerated within the California Youth Authority (CYA) and 

5 ultimately received parole and the Defendant absconded from his parole status. While an 

6 absconder, the Defendant fled to Las Vegas. 

7 The aforementioned evidence is relevant evidence for the jury to consider in the 

8 penalty phase. NRS 175.552(3) and Hollaway v. State, 116 Nev. 732, 745, 6 P.3d 987, 

9 996 (2000); Hernandez v. State, 50 P.3d I 100, 1109 (2002). Judge Sobel has previously 

10 ruled that the juvenile records of the Defendant are relevant and these matters have 

11 previously been presented in the two prior penalty proceedings. 

12 The Nevada Supreme Court has previously held that juvenile records are relevant and 

13 permissible in a capital sentencing proceeding. Castillo v. State, 114 Nev 271, 276 (1998). 

14 12. Evidence of case# 98F02775X 

15 The State will not seek to admit evidence of the facts underlying this incident and 

16 memorialized in L VMPD event #980225-2093. The State would reserve the right to use any 

17 of the facts of this incident should they become relevant during the sentencing proceeding. 

18 13. Evidence of Super 8 Motel - LVMPD 980811-0995 

19 The evidence regarding to this incident is being offered as relevant evidence pursuant 

20 to NRS 175.552(3) and Hollaway v. State, 116 Nev. 732, 745, 6 P.3d 987, 996 (2000); 

21 Hernandez v. State, 50 P.3d 1100, 1109 (2002). To a great extent the relevance of this 

22 testimony is largely self-evident. The Defendant, along with Terrell Young and Sikia Smith 

23 were involved in a "shoot-out" at the Super 8 Motel located at 5288 Boulder Highway on or 

24 about August 11, 1998. This event took place within a short period of time before the four 

25 murders that is the subject of the instant penalty phase proceeding. 

26 Counsel objects to the admission of this event on the basis that the Defendant was 

27 never charged, nor convicted, of any crime related to this event. Unfortunately for the 

28 Defendant, that is not the test for admissibility in a penalty phase or, for that matter a non-

5 P:\WPDOCS\OPP\FOPP\811\81183002.doc 
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capital sentencing proceeding. Rippo v. State, 113 Nev. 1239, 1265, 946 P.2d 1017, 

1033 (1997) (the fact that Rippo was not charged with either burglary or kidnapping does not 

prevent them from being offered as aggravating factors). 

The evidence primarily consists of testimony from friends/associates of the Defendant 

of statements made by the Defendant wherein he directly implicates himself in this shooting. 

The Nevada Supreme Court has succinctly outlined the parameters for the admission 

of evidence at a capital sentencing proceeding as follows: 

The trial court's determination re~arding the admissibility of 
evidence during a sentencing hearmg will not be disturbed on 
appeal absent an abuse of discretion. Wesley v. State, 112 Nev. 
503, 519, 916 P.2d 793, 804 (1996). Furthermore, during a 
penalty hearing, "evidence may be presented concemmg 
aggravating and mitigating circumstances relative to the offense, 
defendant or victim and on any other matter which the court 
deems relevant to sentence, whether or not the evidence is 
ordinarily admissible." NRS 175.552(3); see also Allen v. State, 
99 Nev. 485, 488, 665 P.2d 238, 240 (1983). However, the 
district court may not admit evidence that is impalpable or highly 
suspect. Young v. State, 103 Nev. 233, 237, 737 P.2d 512, 515 
(1987). 

Sherman v. State, 114 Nev. 998, 1012, 965 P.2d 903,913 (1998). 

The evidence presented to establish the Defendant's role in this incident will comport 

with the rules of evidence and will not be impalpable or highly suspect. 

14. Murder of Darnell Lamont Johnson 

The Defendant relies on D'Agostino v. State, 107 Nev. 1001, 823 P.2d 283 (1991) as 

a basis to exclude the admission of the evidence showing the Defendant, along with others, 

murdered Darnell Johnson. Careful review of the D 'Agostino decision reflects the Nevada 

Supreme Court's concern with the use of jail-house witnesses that testify to statements 

allegedly made by an incarcerated inmate awaiting sentencing. Concluding that the trial 

court must make some threshold inquiry prior to the admission of such testimony, the court 

stated: 

It is up to the trial judge to see that there are sufficient 
assurances of reliability prior to admitting the kind of amorphous 
testimony presented to keep this kind of unreliable evidence out 
of the hands of the jury, especially when the supposedly admitted 
crimes of the accused cannot be reasonably described m terms of 

6 P:IWPDOCS\OPPIFOPP\811181183002.doc 
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where, when, against whom (other than "some old man in New 
York") and the circumstances under which the crimes were 285 
committed. More and more frequently, it seems, we are 
confronted with cases in which a jailbird comes forward to 
testify that the accused admitted to him that he not only 
committed the crime that he is accused of but also several other 
assorted crimes. We think it is time that this practice is examined 
more carefully. 

D'Agostino v. State, 107 Nev. 1001, 1003, 823 P.2d 283,284 - 285 (1991). 

Once again, the evidence will comport with the evidentiary rules of this State and will 

directly implicate the Defendant, along with others, in the murder of Darnell Lamont 

Johnson. This evidence includes, once again, statements made by the Defendant to friends 

and associates directly implicating him in this murder. Therefore, this evidence does not 

remotely fall within the concerns raised by D'Agostino. 

15. Records and Evidence of Conduct of the Defendant while at CCDC and NDOC 

Once again, the State seeks to introduce this evidence pursuant to the evidentiary rule 

of the State of Nevada. Specifically, the State will present testimony from a correctional 

officer that was a percipient witness to the Defendant, along with Reginald Johnson, threw 

an inmate off a second tier balcony, see attached Exhibit I. While the defense may claim 

that the officer's vision of this incident was "obstructed" that does not render the evidence 

inadmissible, but is merely argument as to the weight that should be attached to such 

evidence. The proffered evidence is not highly suspect or impalpable. The evidence is 

relevant for establishing the appropriate punishment to be applied to the Defendant. 

Hernandez v. State, 50 P.3d 1100, 1109 (2002). 

16. Gang Evidence 

The State seeks to present evidence of the Defendant's association in a criminal gang 

called 6 Duece Brims. It is undisputed that the Defendant was a member of this gang while 

in California and prior to his moving to Las Vegas. In fact, the Defendant was an absconder 

from parole for Armed Robbery when he moved to Las Vegas. The State seeks to offer this 

evidence to establish and rebut any evidence that the Defendant was compelled to join a 

gang. Further, the Defendant's choice in joining 6 Deuce Brims was one made not of 

necessity but of rational choice. Previously, in the prior penalty hearings held in this matter, 
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1 "mitigating" evidence was presented by the Defendant to show that he was a "follower" and 

2 "had no choice" but to join a gang during his adolescent years in California. 

3 Recently the Nevada Supreme Court has held that gang-affiliation evidence is 

4 relevant evidence in a murder prosecution and its prejudicial effect is not outweighed by its 

5 probative value. Lara v. State, 120 NevAdvOp 20, pg. 5 (April 14, 2004); Hernandez v. 

6 State, 50 P .3d 1100, 1109 (2002). 

7 Expert testimony from LAPD gang officers familiar with the 6 Duece Brims will 

8 establish and rebut the mitigating evidence of the Defendant's adolescent decision making 

9 process. The evidence is competent, relevant and appropriate for purposes of this 

10 proceeding. 

11 17. Evidence of the Death of Derrick Simpson 

12 The essential disagreement regarding this evidence is whether the State can properly 

13 present evidence the undisputed fact that Mr. Simpson, has, since the last proceeding in this 

14 case, has died. The State is prepared to present competent medical testimony that from a 

15 scientific degree of certainty, Mr. Simpson died as a result of the gunshot injuries inflicted 

16 by the Defendant. Specifically, Dr. Gary Telgenhoff performed an autopsy on August 1, 

17 2002 and concluded that, "the death of Derrick Simpson is due to pulmonary 

18 thromoembolism due to debilitated state and paraplegia, due to penetrating gunshot wound 

19 of the back." He further concluded that his death was a "homicide." Attached hereto as 

20 Exhibit 2 is a copy of the autopsy report. Consistent with that medical diagnosis, the State 

21 will supplant this evidence with medical testimony confirming what is in essence, 

22 commonsensical, that Mr. Simpson ultimately died from massive complications from the 

23 multiple gunshot wounds inflicted by the Defendant. 

24 The evidence is relevant "other act" evidence that the jury in this case should be made 

25 aware ofto determine the appropriate punishment for the Defendant. 

26 18. Letters of the Defendant to Sikia Smith, Terrell Young and Charla Seevers 

27 This evidence is offered to specifically rebut any assertion, as has been made in the 

28 past penalty hearings in this case, that the Defendant was a "follower" as it relates to the 
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1 relationship between the co-Defendants Smith and Young. The Defendant signs these letters 

2 as "General Deko". It will be established that "General", within gang culture, of an 

3 individual with command authority over others. Further, the Defendant refers to Young and 

4 Smith as "soldiers". Additionally, the Defendant in one letter claims that he is a "legend 

5 whether breathing or dead." Once again, relevant evidence to establish the relationship 

6 between the various defendants and the character of the Defendant. Hernandez v. State, 50 

7 P.3d 1100, 1109 (2002). 

8 DATED this .,i"~ day of April, 2004. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District At 
Nevada B :.:f#f 02781 
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT 
PAGE 1 

EVENT#: 010224-2350 

SPECIFIC CRIME: ATTEMPT MURDER (IN-CUSTODY) 

DATE OCCURRED: 02/24/01 

LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE: 5TH FLOOR CLARK CO. DETENTION CENTER 

CITY OF LAS VEGAS CLARK COUNTY 

NAME OF PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: A. GONZALEZ, P#6188" 

DOB: SOCIAL SECURITY #: 

RACE: SEX: 

HEIGHT: WEIGHT: 

HAIR: EYES: 

WORK SCHEDULE: DAYS OFF: 

HOME ADDRESS: HOME PHONE: 

TIME OCCURRED: 

WORK ADDRESS: LVMPD 

BEST PLACE TO CONTACT: 

WORK PHONE: 229-3111 

BEST TIME TO CONTACT: 

The following is the transcription of a tape-recorded interview conducted by DETECTIVE 
K. BLASKO. P#2995, LVMPD General Assignment Section, on 02/24/01 at 2145 hours. 

Q Operator. this is Detective Keith Blasko, B-I-a-s-k-o, P number 2995, General 

Assignment, swing shift. Even ... er, conducting a voluntary taped statement under 

Event number 010224-2350. Person giving statement is Corrections Officer A. 

Gonzalez, P number of 6188. Location of occurrence is 5th floor. Clark Co. 

Detention Center. Interview beginning at 2145 hours on 2/24 of '01. Officer 

Gonzalez, on this date were you, uh, working in capacity as a corrections officer? 

A. Yes. 

EXHIBIT 11 1 aa 
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT 
PAGE 2 

EVENT # 010224-2350 

STATEMENT OF A. GONZALEZ 

Q. And you're assigned to Module 5CD? 

A Yes. 

0. And, uh, tonight at around 1956 hours, did you observe, um, two inmates throw 

another inmate over the second, uh, story railing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that was within Module 5C? 

A Correct. 

Q. Is Module 5C a maximum security module? 

A Correct. 

Q. And, tell me in your own words, uh, what you saw. 

A As I was in the module office, I was observing two black male adults walk up the 

stairs, the right stairs, of 5C. As they're walkin' up, I'm observin' them walkin' up. 

As they're walkin' up, inmate Oscar Irias is talking to inmate Celestine (phonetic) in 

Room 5 Charlie 23. One of the inmates, Reginald Johnson, grabs inmate Oscar 

Irias and Donte Johnson starts to swing on him. Connectin' all over his body and 

head. At this time I called a Code Red 416 in 5 Charlie. As I walk out in the 5 

Charlie day room, I observe both inmates liftin' Oscar Irias from the ground and 

throwin' him over the railings of the upper tier in 5 Charlie. And at this time I called 

a Code Red 444 in 5 Charlie. 
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT 
PAGE 3 

EVENT# 010224-2350 

STATEMENT OF A. GONZALEZ 

Q. Okay. Did, uh... When Oscar fell to the ground in the day room, um, did you 

immediately, uh, enter the day room to, uh, give first aid or to try to quell the· ... the 

situation? 

A As 1 ... As I seen Oscar Irias hit the floor, I ana·lyzed the ... the whole scenario. 

secured inmate Reginald Johnson as Officer ... Correctional Officer Hardy secured 

Donte Johnson. As soon as we secured them, I ran to inmate Oscar Irias first aid 

to see what was wrong with him. And at this time, the nurses, uh, gave him first aid. 

Q. Okay. Um, when, uh ... Before you went in, you analyzed the situation due to the 

fact that there were multiple inmates out within ... or, two other inmates, Reginald 

Johnson and Donte Johnson, were still loose inside the 5 Charlie day ... uh, in the 

day room itself, in the module itself. 

A. Yes. 

Q. So, you being a single officer by yourself, that's why you waited momentarily before 

your, uh, backup arrived, and then you guys could proceed safely into the module. 

And then, uh, uh, take corrective action in, uh, placing restraints on Reginald and. 

Donte Johnson. 

A. Yes. It was Officer Hardy and myself, was just us two. And was two of them. So 

I analyzed it for officer safety reasons. 

Q. Very good. Um, d ... When, uh ... Did you see, uh, Oscar Irias, did he, uh, grab the 

top of the ... the railing before he fell to the ground? 
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT 
PAGE 4 

EVENT#: 010224-2350 

STATEMENT OF A. GONZALEZ 

A. He... He tr ... attempted to hold onto Reginald Johnson's arm. And as he was 

holdin' on, inmate Reginald Johnson, like, picked him up and shoved him. Like, 

pushed him, well, over the railing. 

Q. Okay. And Reginald Johnson, he would be the ·bigger of the-

A. He's-

Q. --the two? 

A. He's the bigger of the two and the strongest out of the two. 

Q. Okay. Have, um, you had any trouble with, uh ... with Oscar Irias having any other 

problems within 5 Charlie? 

A. This is not my regular module. So, I know him from past modules. And he's not a 

violent inmate by no means. He's, uh, not all there or a little slower. But, as far as 

being violent or being in any type of gang, not that I'm aware of. No tattoos. 

Nothing I could see. 

Q. And we're ... both you and I are not doctors, but when you saw slow, um, mentally­

wise, he's just not up to ·speed. 

A. No, not... he's not up to speed. I'm ... I'm bilingual so I'll have to speak to him in 

Spanish and not even, uh, in our language of Spanish is he ... I'm not a doctor or 

psychiatrist by no means, but he's ... when talkin' to him, it's not. .. 

Q. He's just slow. 

A. He's a little slower. 
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT 
PAGE 5 

EVENT#: 010224-2350 

ST A TEMENT OF: A. GONZALEZ 

Q. Okay. Um, how long have you been ... This is not your r ... regular assigned post. 

You're down here tonight because the regular people are in a-

A Training. 

Q. --training se ... session tonight? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And, uh, is this just one night, just tonight you're at Post 5CD? 

A Correct. 

Q. Okay. Did, uh, Donte Johnson or, uh, Reginald Johnson make any statements to 

you or Officer Hardy when you guys were taking them into custody? 

A No, they didn't. 

Q. What did, uh ... Uh, when you secured, uh, Donte Johnson, Officer Hardy secured, 

uh, Reginald Johnson. 

A Um, incorrect. It. .. it was the other way around. I secured Reginald Johnson and 

Officer Hardy secured Donte. 

Q. Okay. When ... When you secured those two... Or, when you and Officer Hardy 

secured the two, uh, Johnsons, did Oscar ... was he kinda crawlin' back to his room 

or was he fightin' back or he ... 

A By no means he was fightin'. He was runnin' for life. He crawled to his room and 

sat on his bunk. At this time I ran in his room. I put on my gloves. And asked him 
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VOLUNTARY STATEMENT 
PAGE 6 

EVENT#: 010224-2350 

STATEMENT OF A. GONZALEZ 

where did he have pain. And not to move, that we have medical attention coming 

to see him. 

Q Okay. Did, uh ... Did he say anything to you either In English or Spanish of why 

these two gentle ... or, --

A. Hes-

0. --not gentlemen, but, uh, people were t. .. to throw him over the edge? 

A. In Spanish he said, all I was doin' is I went up to the upper tier to grab the spray 

bottle and to grab a little Bible from inmate Celestine in Room 5 Charlie 23. One 

grabbed me. And the other one grabbed me and started punchin' me. And I spoke 

to Celestine in Spanish. And the stories coincided. 

Q. Okay. And then, uh, he crawl. .. he ... he crawled back to his room and, uh, medical 

attention ... uh, medical people arrived to give him first aid. 

A. Our medical staff arrived, I would say maybe two, three minutes afterwards. 

Q Okay. 

A. A. .. a minute, maybe. After that, then the AMR was called out. 

Q. 0-

A. Because whatever medical reasons, they felt that he needed to go out, 'cause it was 

a hard fall. 

Q Okay. I don't have anything else. Do ... Can you think of anything else that would, 

uh, benefit this investigation? 
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VOLUNTARY STATEMENT 
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EVENT#: 010224-2350 

STATEMENT OF: A. GONZALEZ 

A. I feel that, um, inmate Vigoa (phonetic) could go into details if they had any other. .. 

O And that's Jose Vigoa? 

A. Correct. 

0. And what room is he housed in? 

A. He's housed in 5 Charlie 12. And he spoke to me in Spanish and told me basically 

what was going on. 

0. And what did he ... what did he state to you? 

A. Inmate Vigoa stated that inmate Irias is not all ... he's ... he's a little slow and was 

talkin' stuff, smack or whatever you want, I don't know how to word it correctly, but 

he was talkin' behind the doors to them. And both the black inmates came out, both 

the Johnsons, and they, uh ... they attacked, uh, inmate Irias. 

Q Okay. Very good. Uh, operator, this is end of dictation. And it's going to be 2/24 

of '01, and the hour is 2200. Same persons present, Blasko and Corrections Officer 

Gonzalez. Thanks. 

THIS VOLUNTARY STATEMENT WAS COMPLETED AT THE CLARK CO. DETENTION CENTER ON 
THE 24TH OAY OF FEBRUARY, 2001 AT 2200 HOURS. 

KB:alf 
01-0603 
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